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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

Form 10-K

M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-26906

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 22-3388607
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization Identification No.)
210 Sylvan Avenue, Englewoo 07632
Cliffs, NJ (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive office

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (2) 567-5648
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Exchange Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Exchange Act:

Common Stock, par value $.01 per share
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edB#turities
Act Yes O No M

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the
Act Yes O No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantfi(@dl all reports required to be filed by Sectiaghdr 15(d) of the
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filgggiirements for the past 90 days. Yds No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ab site, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be subrditad posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulationdbing the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegit was required to submit and post such fildgs O No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiiets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ($®t229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not betained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledgeefinitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by referendeart 11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment tasthibrm 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantle&rge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitionslafge accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” arghialler reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Chenk):

Large accelerated file[d Accelerated filerOd Non-acceleratefiler M  Smaller reporting compan
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Aatgs O No
%

The aggregate market value of voting and nonvatorgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the registrwas
approximately $25,976,000 as of the last businag<fithe registrant’'s most recently completed sddiscal quarter.

As of December 21, 2009, the registrant had 1445/2shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding.
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Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimrd-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%rward{ooking statements typically are identified by w$éerms
such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “plan”, “expect”;anticipate”, “estimate”, and similar words, alttlghusome
forward-looking statements are expressed diffeyeRtbrward looking statements represent our judgmegarding
future events, but we can give no assurance thehitjsllgment will prove to be correct. Such stateimare subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause acasailts to differ materially from those projectedsuch forward-
looking statements. Certain factors which couldemally affect our results and our future perforrmamre
described below under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A &d@ditical Accounting Policies” in “Item 7. Managemt's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &®bults of Operations”. Forward-looking statememées
inherently uncertain as they are based on cursgreatations and assumptions concerning future s\ard are
subject to numerous known and unknown risks aneéaioties. We caution you not to place undue mekaon
these forward-looking statements, which are ongdjmtions and speak only as of the date of thisntefxcept as
required by law, we undertake no obligation to upaa publicly announce revisions to any forwardkimg
statements to reflect future events or developméhtkess the context otherwise requires, the témes, “us”, “the
Company”, or “our” as used herein refer to Astadiing, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
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Part |

Iltem 1. Business.
Overview

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngignificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctibed_LC,
Palisades Acquisition XVI, LLC (“Palisades XVI"),ATIV Recovery Solutions LLC (“VATIV”) and other
subsidiaries, not all wholly owned, and not constédamaterial (the “Company”) is engaged in the hess of
purchasing, and managing for its own account, eisd consumer receivables, including chargectoéfivables,
semi-performing receivables and performing recdamtPrimary charged-off receivables are accounaishave
been written-off by the originators and may haverbpreviously serviced by collection agencies. Sganforming
receivables are accounts where the debtor is diyrm@aking partial or irregular monthly paymentsit ithe account
may have been written-off by the originators. Peming receivables are accounts where the debtoaling
regular monthly payments that may or may not haentdelinquent in the past. Distressed consumeiviades ar
the unpaid debts of individuals to banks, finanoepanies and other credit and service providetarde portion o
the Company’s distressed consumer receivables asteCard(R), Visa(R) and other credit card accowitich
were charged-off by the issuers or providers far-payment. The Company acquires these portfoliesiastantial
discounts from their face values. The discountsased on the characteristics (issuer, accountdgaor location
and age of debt) of the underlying accounts of gaxtfolio.

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssagnificant discount to the total amounts acyuaied by
the debtors. We acquire these portfolios afteraittive and quantitative analysis of the undendyieceivables ar
calculate the purchase price so that our estinzst flow offers us an adequate return on our invest after
servicing expenses. After purchasing a portfolie,agtively monitor its performance and review adjlist our
collection and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors aherstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémed
transactions and auctions in which sellers of red#es seek bids from several pre-qualified debthpasers. These
receivables consist primarily of MasterCard(R),a(R), private label and credit card accounts, anuihgr types ¢
receivables. We pursue new acquisitions of consueugivable portfolios from originators of consundebt, on an
ongoing basis through:

« our relationships with industry participants, fieal institutions, collection agencies, investons @aur
financing sources

* brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; ant
* other sources
We fund portfolios through a combination of intdhpgenerated cash flow and bank debt.

Our objective is to maximize our return on investinia acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assult,
before acquiring a portfolio, we analyze the pditfto determine how to best maximize collectionsiicost
efficient manner and decide whether to use ourmaleservicing and collection department, thirdtpaollection
agencies, attorneys, or a combination of all tlog#ons.

When we outsource the servicing of receivables noamagement typically determines the appropriatd-th
party collection agencies and attorneys based etyfhe of receivables purchased. Once a groupcefuables is
sent to third-party collection agencies and attgsneur management actively monitors and reviewdhird-party
collection agencies’ and attorney®rformance on an ongoing basis. Based on portpaiformance consideratiol
our management either will move certain receivabl@® one thirdparty collection agency or attorney to anothe
to our internal servicing department if it antidigathat this will result in an increase in coliess, or it will sell
portions of the portfolio accounts. Additionallyevaave an internal collection unit, which currergtyploys
approximately 47 collection-related staff, incluglisenior management. These employees assist esdhnimarking
our third-party collection agencies and attorneysl give us greater flexibility for servicing a pentage of our
consumer receivable portfolios in-house.
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For the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 @] &0r finance income was approximately $70.2iomil
$115.3 million and $138.4 million, respectivelydaour net (loss) income was approximately $(90.ifljan,
$8.8 million and $52.3 million, respectively. Dugithese same years our net cash collections werexamately
$147.4 million, $208.0 million and $281.8 millioespectively.

We were formed in 1994 as an affiliate of Asta Grouacorporated (“the Family Entity”), an entity oed by
Arthur Stern, our Chairman Emeritus, Gary Sterm,@lbairman, President and Chief Executive Offiesd other
members of the Stern family, to purchase, at alsismdount to face value, retail installment salestracts secured
by motor vehicles. We became a public company imddtber 1995. In 1999, we decided to capitalizewn o
management’s more than 40 years of experiencexpwttese in acquiring and managing consumer rebéiva
portfolios for the Family Entity. As a result, weased purchasing automobile contracts and, withgbistance and
financial support of the Family Entity and a partrurchased our first significant consumer redei@gortfolio.
Since then, the Family Entity ceased acquiring aores receivable portfolios and, accordingly, doescompete
with us.

Industry Overview

The purchasing, servicing and collection of chargBdsemi-performing and performing consumer reables
is an industry that is driven by:

* increasing levels of consumer de
« increasing defaults of the underlying receivabées]

« increasing utilization of thii-party providers to collect such receivab

Strategy

Although we are in a challenging economic environtneur primary objective remains to utilize our
management’s experience and expertise by idengifygaaluating, pricing and acquiring consumer neggle
portfolios and maximizing collections of such reediles in a cost efficient manner. Our strategjuithes:

* managing the collection and servicing of our consuraceivable portfolios, including outsourcing ajomity
of those activities to maintain low fixed overhe

« although reduced pricing has slowed our capalslitiee seek to sell accounts on an opportunistiispbas
generally when our efforts have been exhaustedigfiréraditional collecting methods, when pricingiur
indifference point, or when we can capitalize oieipg during times when we feel the pricing envimant is
high; and

« although we have purchased fewer consumer receiyatstfolios than in recent years, we remain foduse
capitalizing on our strategic relationships to iifgrand acquire consumer receivable portfoliopasing,
financing and conditions perm

Because our purchases of new portfolios of consuetsivables has been reduced, we expect to see a
corresponding reduction in finance income in futyuarters and future years, to the extent we haveeplaced our
receivables acquired for liquidation. Instead, weefacusing, in the short-term, on reducing ourt@etu being
highly disciplined in our portfolio purchases. Wantinue to review potential portfolio acquisitioregularly and
will buy at the right price, where we believe theghase will yield our desired rate of return.

We believe as a result of our managenweakperience and expertise, and the fragmentegrgeting market ir
which we operate, as we implement this short-tdrategy we will be in position to again grow theslmess when
economic conditions stabilize.

We are a Delaware corporation whose principal etvezwoffices are located at 210 Sylvan Avenue, Englod
Cliffs, New Jersey 07632. We were incorporated @wNlersey on July 7, 1994 and were reincorporat&klaware
on October 12, 1995, as the result of a merger aviitelaware corporation.
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Consumer Receivables Busine

Receivables Purchase Program

We purchase bulk receivable portfolios that inclatarged-off receivables, semi-performing receiealaind
performing receivables. These receivables congistgpily of MasterCard(R), Visa(R) and private labeedit card
accounts, among other types of receivables.

From time to time, we may acquire directly and iadily, through the consumer receivable portfolres we
acquire, secured consumer asset portfolios, priynateivables secured by automobiles.

We identify potential portfolio acquisitions on angoing basis through:

our relationships with industry participants, fieal institutions, collection agencies, investons @aur
financing sources

brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabte portfolios; ant

Other sources

Historically, the purchase prices of the consumeeivable portfolios we have acquired have rangau fess
than $100,000 to approximately $15,000,000; howeneracquired one group of portfolios in March 206r7
$300 million (the “Portfolio Purchase”As a part of our strategy to acquire consumer vatee portfolios, we hav:
from time to time, entered into, and may continuertter into, participation and profit sharing agnents with our
sources of financing and our third-party collectagencies and attorneys. These arrangements maghakorm of
a joint bid, with one of our third-party collecti@gencies and attorneys or financing sources wsistasn the
acquisition of a portfolio and provides us with mdavorable nomecourse financing terms or a discounted serv
commission. Current participation agreements irelad0% sharing arrangement after the Companyelcasiped
100% of the cost of the portfolio purchase plusdbst of funds.

We utilize our relationships with brokers, thirdryacollection agencies and attorneys, and setleportfolios
to locate portfolios for purchase. Our senior mamagnt is responsible for:

coordinating due diligence, including, in some saon-site visits to the sell¢'s office;
stratifying and analyzing the portfolio charactgcis,

valuing the portfolio

preparing bid proposal

negotiating pricing and term

negotiating and executing a purchase cont

closing the purchase; ai

coordinating the receipt of account documentat@rttie acquired portfolio:

The seller or broker typically supplies us wittheit a sample listing or the actual portfolio besiodd, through
an electronic form of media. We analyze each comsugateivable portfolio to determine if it meets purchasing
criteria. We may then prepare a bid or negotigiarahase price. If a purchase is completed, managemonitors
the portfolio’s performance and uses this informain determining future buying criteria includipgcing. An
integral part of the acquisition process is thersigiat by the Investment Committee. This commitesgtablished in
January 2008, must review and approve all investsregmove $1 million in value. Voting criteria ar@ra stringent
as the size of the investment increases. Thisaaramember committee composed of the Chairman Easethe
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officand the Senior Vice President. As the Chairmawerfiius and
Chief Executive Officer are related family membaexisieast one other officer must approve transastio

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after seyifees,
including court costs, which are expensed as iecjnve use a variety of qualitative and quantitatactors to
determine the estimated cash flows. Included inamadysis for purchasing a portfolio of receivaldesl
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determining a reasonable estimate of collectiomsthe timing thereof, the following variables arablyzed and
factored into our original estimates:

« the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
« the average balance of the receivak

« the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lessst
effective);

« past history of performance of similar assets -wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beliare
have built significant history on how these recblea will liquidate and cash flov

* number of months since cha-off;
e payments made since cha-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

* the locations of the debtors as there are betigessto attempt to collect in and ultimately wedhetter
predictability of the liquidations and the expectesh flows. Conversely, there are also statesenther
liquidation rates are not as good and that is factinto our cash flow analysi

« financial wherewithal of the selle

« jobs or property of the debtors found within paiitie — with our business model, this is of particular
importance. Debtors with jobs or property are niialy to repay their obligation and converselybtias
without jobs or property are less likely to rephgit obligation; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

We obtain and utilize, as appropriate, input ingigd but not limited to, monthly collection projems and
liquidation rates from our third party collectiogemcies and attorneys, as further evidentiary matessist us in
developing collection strategies and in modelirgéRpected cash flows for a given portfolio.

Once a receivable portfolio has been identifiedpfatential purchase, we prepare various analysssdban
extracting customer level data from external sagirother than the issuer, to analyze the potecdiddctability of
the portfolio. We also analyze the portfolio by qmaring it to similar portfolios previously acquireg us. In
addition, we perform qualitative analyses of ottmatters affecting the value of portfolios, incluglia review of the
delinquency, charge off, placement and recovericigsl of the originator as well as the collectianherity granted
by the originator to any third-party collection agis, and, if possible, by reviewing their recgvefforts on the
particular portfolio. After these evaluations acenpleted, members of our Senior Management digbesfindings,
decide whether to make the purchase and finalz@tite at which we are willing to purchase thetfotio.

We purchase most of our consumer receivable pa#falirectly from originators and other sellerslirating,
from time to time, our third-party collection agé&sand attorneys, through privately negotiatedadisales and
through auction-type sales in which sellers of neat@es seek bids from several pre-qualified delstpasers. We
also, from time to time, use the services of breKer sourcing consumer receivable portfolios. ften for us to
consider a potential seller as a source of rectdgah variety of factors are considered. Sellasstrdemonstrate tt
they have:

< adequate internal controls to detect fre
« the ability to provide po-sale support; an
« the capacity to honor g-back and return warranty reque:

Generally, our portfolio purchase agreements pmotfichit we can return certain accounts to the seltéin a
specified time period. However, in some transastiove may acquire a portfolio with few, if any,htg to return
accounts to the seller. After acquiring a portfplie conduct a detailed analysis to determine waadounts in the
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portfolio should be returned to the seller. Althbube terms of each portfolio purchase agreeméferdexamples
of accounts that may be returned to the selleudel

* debts paid prior to the cutoff da
 debts in which the consumer filed bankruptcy ptiothe cutoff date
* debts in which the consumer was deceased prianttifaate; anc

fraudulent account:

Accounts returned to sellers for fiscal years 2808 2008 have been determined to be immaterial. Our
purchase agreements generally do not contain awspon for a limitation on the number of accoutftat can be
returned to the seller. Significant accounts retdrto sellers for the fiscal year ended 2007 anealitd
approximately $10.0 million of investment for tworffolio purchases. Such accounts were non-conipéiecounts.

We generally use third parties to determine bantkang deceased accounts, allowing us to focusesmurces
on portfolio collections. Under a typical portfolmrchase agreement, the seller refunds the parfithe purchase
price attributable to the returned accounts oveéedi replacement receivables to us. Occasionaliywill acquire a
well-seasoned or older portfolio at a reduced piicm a seller that is unable to meet all of ourghasing criteria.
When we acquire such portfolios, the purchase psiferther discounted beyond the typical discourgsreceive o
the portfolios we purchase.

In 2006, we acquired VATIV, located in Sugar Lamdxas. VATIV provides bankruptcy and deceased auicou
servicing. The acquisition of VATIV provides the @pany with internal experience and proprietary eyt in
support of servicing our own bankruptcy and decgaseounts, while also affording us the opportutatgnter nev
markets for acquisitions in the bankruptcy and dsed account fields.

Receivable Servicing

Our objective is to maximize our return on investinen acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assallt,
before acquiring a portfolio, we analyze the pditfto determine how to best maximize collectionsiicost
efficient manner and decide whether to use a théndy collection agency or an attorney.

Therefore, if we are successful in acquiring thefptio, we can promptly process the receivables there
purchased and commence the collection processké&Jatillection agencies that typically have onlyadfied
period of time to recover a receivable, as thefpliotowners, we have significantly more flexibjliand can
establish payment programs.

Once a portfolio has been acquired, we generallynttead all receivable information provided by tledler into
our account management system and reconcile cénfaimation with the information provided by thellsr in the
purchase contract. We, or our third-party colleté@encies or attorneys, send natification letieigbligors of each
acquired account explaining, among other mattensnew ownership and asking that the obligor cdntacin
addition, we notify the three major credit repagtegencies of our new ownership of the receivables.

We presently outsource the majority of our receleaervicing to third-party collection agencies atirneys.
Our senior management typically determines theagpijate third-party collection agency and attorbeged on the
type of receivables purchased. Once a group ofuaales is sent to a third-party collection ageocwttorney, our
management actively monitors and reviews the tparty collection agency’s and attorney’s perforneaan an
ongoing basis. Our management receives detaildgisssa including collection activity and portfolp@rformance,
from our internal servicing departments for thegmse of evaluating the results of the efforts eftthird-party
collection agencies and attorneys. Based on p@atfarformance guidelines, our management will siggiscertain
receivables from one third-party collection ageocwttorney to another if we believe such chandeemhance
collections.

At September 30, 2009 approximately 29% of ourfpbos were serviced by five collection organizatio We
have servicing agreements in place with theseddliection organizations as well as all other tipatty
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collection agencies and attorneys. These servagngements cover standard contingency fees anitisgrof the
accounts.

We have three main internal servicing departments:

« collection/skiptrace
* customer service; ar
« accounting and financ

Collection/Skiptrace. The Collection/Skiptrace Department is respomesibi making contact with the debtors
and collecting on our consumer receivable portfotitat are not being serviced by third-party coitecagencies
and attorneys. This department uses a friendlypousr service approach to collect on receivablésodgh the use
of our collection software and telephone systerohemllector is responsible for:

 contacting customer
 explaining the benefits of making payment on thikgalions; anc
« working with the customers to develop acceptablamaédo satisfy their obligation

We and our third-party collection agencies andragtgs have the flexibility to structure repaymelaing that
accommodate the needs of obligors by:

« offering obligors a discount on the overall obligat and/ot

« tailoring repayment plans that provide for the paptof these obligations as a component of theyobis
monthly budget

We also use a series of collection letters, layem@ant reminders, and settlement offers that are@grat
specific intervals or at the request of a membeayurfcollection department. When the collectionatépent cannot
contact the customer by either telephone or nfalaccount is referred to the skiptrace department.

The skiptrace department is responsible for logadind contacting customers who could not be coedday
either the collection or legal departments. Thetsace employees use a variety of public and pritlaitd-party
databases to locate customers. Once a custonusaiet and contact is made by a skiptracer, theuatds then
referred back to the collection or legal departnienfollow-up. The skiptrace department is alsspensible for
finding current employers and locating assets ¢ifjobs when this information is deemed necessary.

Customer Service.The Customer Service Department is responsilole fo

« handling incoming calls from debtors and tl-party collection agencie

 coordinating customer inquiries and assisting thikection agencies in the collection proce

handling bu-back and information requests from companies taee [purchased receivables from
» working with the buyers during the transition perand possale process; ar
< handling any issues that may arise once a receiyaitfolio has been sol

Accounting and Finance.n addition to the customary accounting actigtithe Accounting and Finance
department is responsible for:

< making daily deposits of debtor paymet
 posting these payments to each de's account; an

« in conjunction with the customer service departmpraviding senior management with daily, weeklg an
monthly receivable activity and performance repc

Accounting and Finance employees also assist taiedepartment employees in handling customerutésp
with regard to payment and balance information. Abeounting Department also assists the Custometicee
Department in the handling of buy-back requestnfoompanies which have purchased receivables ferinu
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addition, the Accounting Department reviews thailtesof the collection of consumer receivable galitl that are
being serviced by third-party collection agencied attorneys.
Collections Represented by Account Sales

Certain collections represent account sales tar akblet buyers to help maximize revenue and castsfloVe
believe that our business model of not having gdlamumber of collectors, coupled with a legal sggtwhich is
focused on attempting to perfect liens and judgshaghinst obligors, allows us the flexibility tdlsecounts at
prices that are attractive to us, and, just as mapg, sell the less desirable accounts withinamliection portfolios.
There are many factors that contribute to the dmtias to which receivable to sell and which to/gey, including:

« the age of the receivable
« the status of the receivabl— whether paying or nc¢-paying; anc
« the selling price

Net collections represented by account sales #fisical years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 @0id \Rere
$8.7 million, $20.4 million and $54.2 million, resgively. Collections represented by account sades percentage
of total collections for the fiscal years endedt8afber 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were 5.9%, 9.8%d arkbo,
respectively.

Marketing

The Company has established relationships withdyeoWwho market consumer receivable portfolios from
banks, finance companies and other credit providieraddition, the Company subscribes to nationdlipations
that list consumer receivable portfolios for sdlke Company also directly contacts banks, finameepganies or
other credit providers to solicit consumer recelgalior sale.

Competition

Our business of purchasing distressed consumeradtes is highly competitive and fragmented, ared w
expect that competition from new and existing conigawill continue. We compete with:

« other purchasers of consumer receivables, incluttind-party collection companies; a
« other financial services companies who purchasswuer receivable:

Some of our competitors are larger and more estaddi and may have substantially greater financial,
technological, personnel and other resources thahave, including greater access to the capitakenaystem. We
believe that no individual competitor or group ohtpetitors has a dominant presence in the market.

We compete in the marketplace for consumer reclvadrtfolios based on many factors, including:

 purchase price

 representations, warranties and indemnities regdg
« timeliness of purchase decisions; :

* reputation of the purchast

Our strategy is designed to capitalize on the markack of a dominant industry player. We beli¢kat our
management’s experience and expertise in idengfy@maluating, pricing and acquiring consumer resiglie
portfolios and managing collections, coupled witin strategic alliances with third-party collectiagencies and
attorneys and our sources of financing, give usmpetitive advantage. However, we cannot assutenthavill be
able to compete successfully against current aréutompetitors or that competition will not incsedn the future.

10
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Technology

We believe that a high degree of automation is sy to enable us to grow and successfully convpitte
other finance companies. Accordingly, we continudbk to upgrade our technology systems to suppert
servicing and recovery of consumer receivablesigedydior liquidation. Our telecommunications andheology
systems allow us to quickly and accurately protagge amounts of data necessary to purchase avideser
consumer receivable portfolios. In addition, we/ rah the information technology of our third-paciyllection
agencies and attorneys and periodically review #atems to ensure that they can adequately settvicconsumer
receivable portfolios outsourced to them.

Due to our desire to increase productivity throagtomation, we periodically review our systemsgfossible
upgrades and enhancements.

Government Regulation

The relationship of a consumer and a creditor isrestvely regulated by federal, state and locatlawles,
regulations and ordinances. These laws includeateubot limited to, the following federal statusesl regulations:
the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act, the Fair CredilliBg Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act andetlirair Credit
Reporting Act, as well as comparable statutesatestwhere consumers reside and/or where creditergcated.
Among other things, the laws and regulations applie to various creditors impose disclosure requénmts
regarding the advertisement, application, estafvlesit and operation of credit card accounts or difms of credit
programs. Federal law requires a creditor to degxlo consumers, among other things, the inteméss rfees, grace
periods and balance calculation methods assoaidthdheir accounts. In addition, consumers ardledtto have
payments and credits applied to their accounts ptigrrto receive prescribed notices and to reqgtiestbilling
errors be resolved promptly. In addition, some lgwzhibit certain discriminatory practices in cootien with the
extension of credit. Further, state laws may litinét interest rate and the fees that a creditorimapse on
consumers. Failure by the creditors to comply \&jtiplicable laws could create claims and rightsfisfed by
consumers that would reduce or eliminate theirgattions, which could have a material adverse etieaur
operations. Pursuant to agreements under whichuwehase receivables, we are typically indemnifigdiast losse
resulting from the failure of the creditor to has@mplied with applicable laws relating to the reebies prior to ou
purchase of such receivables.

Certain laws, including the laws described abovay fimit our ability to collect amounts owing withspect to
the receivables regardless of any act or omissioous part. For example, under the Federal FaidiCBilling Act,
a credit card issuer may be subject to certaimdaind defenses arising out of certain transactiondich a credit
card is used if the consumer has made a gooddtémpt to obtain satisfactory resolution of a peabrelative to
the transaction and, except in cases where therspecified relationship between the person hagdtie card and
the credit card issuer, the amount of the initiahsaction exceeds $50 and the place where tlied inénsaction
occurred was in the same state as the consuméing lsiddress or within 100 miles of that addresscordingly, as
a purchaser of defaulted receivables, we may pescheceivables subject to valid defenses on thieopére
consumer. Other laws provide that, in certain msés, consumers cannot be held liable for, or ttadility is
limited to $50 with respect to, charges to the itremkd credit account that were a result of anutimarized use of
the credit card account. No assurances can be fiaticertain of the receivables were not estabiisis a result of
unauthorized use of a credit card account, andyrdagly, the amount of such receivables may natdikectible by
us.

Several federal, state and local laws, rules, egguis and ordinances, including, but not limitedthe Federal
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (“FDCPAdhd the Federal Trade Commission Act and compasdate statute
regulate consumer debt collection activity. Althbutpr a variety of reasons, we may not be speatlficubject to
the FDCPA or certain state statutes that goverd-jhérty debt collectors, it is our policy to complith applicable
laws in our collection activities. Additionally, pthird-party collection agencies and attorneys mayubject to
these laws. To the extent that some or all of thess apply to our collection activities or ourrthiparty collection
agencies’ and attorneys’ collection activities|uia to comply with such laws could have a mateathlerse effect
on us.
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Additional laws, or amendments to existing lawsyrha enacted that could impose additional resbristion
the servicing and collection of receivables. Suet taws or amendments may adversely affect ouityhil collect
the receivables.

We currently hold a number of licenses issued uageficable consumer credit laws or other licensitagutes
or regulations. Certain of our current licensesl any licenses that we may be required to obtatherfuture, may
be subject to periodic renewal provisions and/beptequirements. Our inability to renew licensedake any
other required action with respect to such licermsesdd have a material adverse effect upon ourtsestioperation
and financial condition.

Employees

As of September 30, 2009, we had 105 full-time exygés. We are not a party to any collective barggin
agreement.

You can visit our web site at www.astafunding.c@uopies of our Form 10-Ks, 10-Qs, 8-Ks and other SEC
reports are available there as soon as reasoneddtiqal after filing electronically with the SEThe Asta Funding,
Inc. web site is not incorporated by referencéhia section.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider these risk factorevaluating the Company. In addition to the follogviisks,
there may also be risks that we do not yet knoar tfiat we currently think are immaterial that malgo impair our
business operations. If any of the following risksur, our business, results of operation or finahcondition
could be adversely effected, the trading pricewwsfammon stock could decline and shareholders nihigie all or
part of their investmen

We have recently recorded substantial impairmersdes in the value of our portfolios

We have recorded impairments on the value of otfgims of $183.5 million in fiscal 2009 and $53llion
in fiscal year 2008. The impairments are the printaason for the $90.7 million loss in fiscal ye@09. While we
believe we have written down the impaired portfelio their net reliazable values, no assurancepeaiven that
we will not record additional impairments in theufte.

Our current financing facility is a twelve month flity of $6 million which will limit our ability to purchase
larger portfolios of consumer receivables.

Our revolving credit facility with Israel DiscouBank (“IDB”), as agent for a consortium of banksg(tBank
Group”), would have been due on December 31, 2008.balance of the credit line had been paid dowm fa
principal balance of approximately $84 million &pSember 30, 2008 to $18.3 million at Septembef809 and
further reduced to $6.2 million on November 30, 200n December 14, 2009 the Company entered inewa
$6 million senior revolving credit agreement witarik Leumi (“New Senior Facility”)A portion of the New Senic
Facility was used to pay off the remaining balaotthe IDB credit facility. The New Senior Facilihas a maturity
date of December 31, 2010, carries an interesofatee Bank Leumi Reference Rate plus 2% wittoarfiof 4.5%.
The New Senior Facility is fully collateralized hi} of the assets of the Company other than thbgalkisades XVI
and pledged assets of GMS Family Investors, LL@aastment company 100% owned by members of tha Ste
family (or trusts for their benefit). There arefirtancial covenant restrictions for the New Serfiacility.
Approximately $2.4 million was immediately availaliin the New Senior Facility after the liquidatmfithe credit
facility with IDB. Although a line of credit is imgrtant for strategic purposes, a larger facilitywbdonot be a
requirement for us to continue to operate and @geltonsumer receivable portfolios. However, we beaymited
in our efforts to make larger purchases withoutitamithl financing.
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The Company has risks associated with its purcha&6.9 billion in face value of receivables purcéed for
$300 million in March 2007 (the “Portfolio Purchas® which has not met our expectations.

Since the inception of the Portfolio Purchase faehby the Receivables Financing Agreement, theiRable:
Financing Agreement has been modified four timestdicollections not meeting our expectations. Poefolio
Purchase has not met our expectations, and théahbas been exacerbated by the general econdown turn.
We have recorded impairments on the Portfolio Pasettotaling $84.2 million ($30.3 million in fiscgbar 2008
and $53.9 million in fiscal year 2009). The PoiiidPurchase was transferred to the cost recovetliadesffective
with the third quarter of fiscal year 2008, as edlions became increasingly more difficult to peedAccordingly,
we will recognize income only after we recover oarrying value, which, as of September 30, 200% wa
approximately $121.5 million. As a result, our reuwe since April 1, 2008 has been and will contitaube
negatively impacted. There can be no assuraneewalsdn or if the current carrying value will be ogered. Furthe
all cash collections from the Portfolio Purchase ased to repay our loan under the Receivable Eingn
Agreement, which had a principal balance of $10dilBon at September 30, 2009.

We may not be able be to timely satisfy all amouthtie to Bank of Montreal under the Receivables Fir@ng
Agreement

Pursuant to the Receivables Financing Agreemefisadas XVI borrowed approximately $227 million in
March 2007. As of September 30, 2009 the balaneeBaunk of Montreal (“BMO”) was $104.3 million. Thean
matures on April 30, 2011 unless the outstandirgriz® is reduced to $25 million, or less by thaedk is likely
we will not be able to reduce the balance of thdifa to $25 million by April 30, 2011. The colletal held by
Palisades XVI has a book value at September 3® 20§121.5 million after recent impairments. Then@hbany ha
servicing obligations with respect to the collatamwell as certain obligations to assist BMOny &quidation of
that collateral. If we are unable to repay the Idaa to BMO, or extend it (automatically for oneyéd the balance
is $25 million or less, or through negotiation) tbempany may be obligated to BMO on its $8.0 millionited
guarantee (which is not due until 2014 as long ahave a senior facility, currently the New Sefacility). The
Company may also be obligated to the Family Eriitity$700,000. There can be no assurance that BM(neti
seek to take other action against the Companyifdhan is not repaid when due.

The Company will be applying for a Federal tax refd of approximately $46 million upon filing the tareturn
for fiscal year 2009 and may not receive such reflim a timely manner.

Due to the significance of the application requist,Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) process cdake a
considerable amount of time and we may not redhigeefund in a timely manner which could impactmagions if
we were considering acquiring a portfolio with greficant purchase price. In addition, there cambeassurance t
IRS will not challenge our refund request.

There is no assurance the Company will realize th# value of the deferred tax asset.

Although the carry forward period for income taiesp to twenty years, such allowance period isideta
reasonable period to forecast full realizationhaf tleferred tax asset. The Company recognizedanditlion
deferred tax asset allowance during fiscal yea®2@te Company continually monitors forecast infation to
ensure the valuation allowance is appropriate.

The current economic environment has slowed ourlapito collect from our debtors.

The recent worldwide financial turmoil has adveysaffected all businesses, including our own. Tineent
collection environment is particularly challengiag a result of factors in the economy over whicthaee no
control. These factors include:

* aslowdown in the econom
 severe problems in the credit and housing mar

* higher unemploymen
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* reductions in consumer spendil
< changes in the underwriting criteria by originat@nsd
« changes in laws and regulations governing consleneling and the related collectiol

Our litigation strategy is highly dependent on ahility to locate debtors with jobs and/or homes Bélieve
that our debtors are straining to pay their oblayet owed to us. Higher unemployment rates padityimpact our
debtors’ ability to pay obligations and our abilityget wage executions as a source of paymentldPns in the
credit markets and lower home values have redutedhility of our debtors to secure financing tlglosecond
mortgages and home equity lines to pay obligatemed to us. A continuation of the current probléemthe credit
and housing markets and general slowdown in thaaog will continue to adversely affect the effeetiess of our
litigation strategy, and the value of our portfsliand our financial performance.

We may not be able to purchase consumer receivablgfolios at favorable prices or on sufficienthaforable
terms or at all.

Our success depends upon the continued availabilitpnsumer receivable portfolios that meet ouchpasing
criteria and our ability to identify and financesthurchases of such portfolios. The availabilitgofisumer
receivable portfolios at favorable prices and amteacceptable to us depends on a number of famitsile of our
control, including:

« the growth in consumer del

« the volume of consumer receivable portfolios avddldor sale

« availability of financing to fund purchase

» competitive factors affecting potential purchasard sellers of consumer receivable portfolios;

 possible future changes in the bankruptcy lawse $¢avs and homestead acts which could make it more
difficult for us to collect.

Our future operating results will be negatively irapted as we have not replaced our defaulted consume
receivables at historic levels.

To operate profitably, we must continually acqursufficient amount of distressed consumer recéieaio
generate continued revenue. Our buying activitiggnd fiscal year 2009 and the last three quadéfiscal year
2008 slowed dramatically. As the economic environinaketeriorated, we felt that pricing of portfolibad not faller
enough to offset the decline in ultimate collecsioAccordingly, our purchases of receivables in2@@re only
$19.6 million, compared to $49.9 million in 20080$440.9 million in 2007. In part, this led to met cash
collections in fiscal 2009 decreasing $60.6 million28.8% from $208 million in fiscal year 2008%b47.4 million
in fiscal year 2009. Further, of those collectidb40.7 million for fiscal year 2009 and $45.3 naiilifor fiscal perio
2008 came from zero basis portfolios (whose cagyialue has already been reduced to zero.) Ouedsed level
of buying new portfolios during 2009 and 2008 wikkly result in future reduced net cash collecsiam 2010 and
slow the growth of our future revenues and opegatasults. Furthermore, we cannot predict how bilitato
identify and purchase receivables, and evaluatguhéty of those receivables, would be affectetthéfre is a shift i
consumer lending practices whether caused by clkangegulations or by a sustained economic downtur

Our inability to purchase sufficient quantities akceivables portfolios may necessitate workforcduetions,
which may harm our business.

Because fixed costs, such as personnel costs,tobast significant portion of our overhead, we nhay
required to reduce the number of employees if waataontinually purchase receivables acquiredidmidation.
Reducing the number of employees can affect ounbas adversely and lead to:

« lower employee morale, higher employee attritidesand fewer experienced employe
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« disruptions in our operations and loss of efficieiccollection functions
« excess costs associated with unused space intamtidacilities; anc
« further reliance on our third party collection ages and attorney

We have seen at certain times that the market fogairing consumer receivable portfolios has becomere
competitive, thereby diminishing from time to tinoair ability to acquire such receivables at prices are
willing to pay.

The growth in consumer debt may also be affected by

+ the continuation of a slowdown in the econol
 continuation of the problems in the credit and lhoyisnarkets
* reductions in consumer spendi

« changes in the underwriting criteria by originat@sd

» changes in laws and regulations governing consieneing.

Any slowing of the consumer debt growth trend caelsult in a decrease in the availability of coneum
receivable portfolios for purchase that could &ftee purchase prices of such portfolios.

Any increase in the prices we are required to padich portfolios, in turn, will reduce the profie generate
from such portfolios.

With portfolios classified under the interest metthoour projections of future cash flows from our pifolio
purchases may prove to be inaccurate, which cowgult in reduced revenues or the recording of impaéent
charges if we do not achieve the collections forsteal by our model.

We use qualitative and quantitative analyses tgeptduture cash flows from our portfolio purchasgkere ca
be no assurance, however, that we will be ablehdese the collections forecasted by our analysise are not
able to achieve these levels of forecasted cotlastiour revenues will be reduced and we may hanestjto record
additional impairment charges, which would resulaireduction of our earnings. For the year endgrde®nber 30,
2009, we recorded impairment charges of $183.5anjlcompared to $53.2 million and $9.1 million the years
ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

As the mix of our portfolios has shifted to the ¢agcovery method, there is a negative impact orafice
income as no finance income is recognized on thstaecovery portfolios until the carrying value hdeen
recovered.

Historically we have utilized the interest methodécognize finance income on most consumer relkeva
portfolios purchased. As the economy has impactedosiness, making collections more unpredictakéehave
transferred portfolios from the interest methodhi® cost recovery method, which delays the recmgndf finance
until the carrying value has been fully recovered.

We use estimates for recognizing finance incomeaoportion of our consumer receivables acquired for
liquidation and our earnings would be reduced if ta@l results are less than estimated.

We utilize the interest method of revenue recognifor determining a portion of our finance income
recognized, which is based on projected cash ftbbasmay prove to be less than anticipated andddeald to
reductions in revenue or additional impairment gearunder FASB Accounting Standard Codification§@X) 310
Receivables — Loans and Debt Securities Acquired eteriorated Credit Quality, (“ASC 310"). Stagiools of
accounts are established. These pools are aggidamded on certain common risk criteria. Eachcspaiol is
recorded at cost and is accounted for as a simgidar the recognition of income, principal paynteand loss
provision. Once a static pool is established fquarter, individual receivable accounts are noeddd the pool
(unless replaced by the seller) or removed fronpti@ (unless sold or returned to the seller). A0 requires that
the excess of the contractual cash flows over @ggazash flows not be recognized as an adjustniertrenue or
expense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310 inifiiidgzes the internal rate of return, (“IRR”), esited
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when the accounts receivable are purchased, dmtlie for subsequent impairment testing. Significaereases in
actual, or expected future cash flows may be reizedrprospectively through an upward adjustmerthefiRR ove
a portfolio’s remaining life. Any increase to ttRR then becomes the new benchmark for impairmstinte
Rather than lowering the estimated IRR if the atifa estimates are not received or projected teebeived, the
carrying value of a pool would be written down taimain the then current IRR. Any reduction in earnings
resulting from such a write down could materialtivarsely affect our stock price.

We may not be able to collect sufficient amountsaur consumer receivable portfolios to recover thasts
associated with the purchase of those portfolioglan fund our operations.

We acquire and collect on consumer receivable glavt that contain charged-off, semi-performing and
performing receivables. In order to operate prbfitaver the long term, we must continually purehasd collect
on a sufficient volume of receivables to generatenue that exceeds our purchase costs. For asdbantare
charged-off or semi-performing, the originatorsraerim owners of the receivables generally have:

* made numerous attempts to collect on these oldiggtioften using both their in-house collectiorifstad
third-party collection agencies; al

» subsequently deemed these obligations as uncolie

These receivable portfolios are purchased at sigmf discounts to the amount the consumers owesdh
receivables are difficult to collect and actualaegries may vary and be less than the amount eaghelet addition,
our collections may worsen in a weak economic cyle may not recover amounts in excess of our aitgpn and
servicing costs.

Our ability to recover the purchase costs on outf@iios and produce sufficient returns can be tiegly
impacted by the quality of the purchased receisablethe normal course of our portfolio acquisispsome
receivables may be included in the portfolios fhdtto conform to certain terms of the purchaseagents and we
may seek to return these receivables to the deligrayment or replacement receivables. Howevergavaot
guarantee that any of such sellers will be abla¢et their payment obligations to us. Accounts Watre unable 1
return to sellers may yield no return. If cash ffofirom operations are less than anticipated asuwdtraf our inability
to collect sufficient amounts on our receivablag, ability to satisfy our debt obligations, purceasew portfolios
and achieve future growth and profitability mayrbaterially adversely affected.

We are subject to competition for the purchase ohsumer receivable portfolios.

We compete with other purchasers of consumer rabks\portfolios, with third-party collection ageesiand
with financial services companies that manage th&it consumer receivable portfolios. We competé¢herbasis o
price, reputation, industry experience and perforteaSome of our competitors have greater capigasonnel and
other resources than we have. The possible entmgwfcompetitors, including competitors that histally have
focused on the acquisition of different asset typesl the expected increase in competition fromeciimarket
participants may reduce our access to consumeivadte portfolios. Aggressive pricing by our conmipats has
raised the price of consumer receivable portfadibsve levels that we are willing to pay, which ebréduce the
number of consumer receivable portfolios suitableus to purchase or if purchased by us, reducpribfés, if any,
generated by such portfolios. If we are unableueipase receivable portfolios at favorable priaeatall, our
finance income and earnings could be materialluced.

We are dependent upon third parties to service garity of our consumer receivable portfolios.

Although we utilize our in-house collection stadfihitiate the collection process to collect sorhewr
receivables, we outsource a majority of our redd&vaervicing. As a result, we are dependent uperefforts of ot
third-party collection agencies and attorneys twise and collect our consumer receivables. Howesey failure
by our third-party collection agencies and attos®yadequately perform collection services foousgemit such
collections to us could materially reduce our fioeimcome and our profitability. In addition, oimdnce income
and profitability could be materially adverselyeafted if we are not able to secure replacement farty collection
agencies and attorneys and redirect payments fierdebtors to our new third party collection ages@nd
attorneys promptly in the event our agreements aiththird-party collection agencies and attornanyes
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terminated, our third-party collection agencies attdrneys fail to adequately perform their obligas or if our
relationships with such third-party collection agies and attorneys adversely change. As 29% ofonfolios are
serviced by five organizations, we are dependerthem to maximize collections.

The current economic environment has had adversiets on others in this industry, including parties
providing services to us.

The current economic environment has had an adeffieset on others in our industry. One of our fimest
significant third party servicers recently filedbankruptcy proceeding and will be liquidating. vl taken steps
in that servicer’s bankruptcy proceeding intendedrisure that our collections continue to be segeggand timely
remitted. We have received the consent of the Rariky Court to move our accounts to another servitke are in
the process of moving our accounts to another aarwith whom we have experience. In addition vafiam used
by the bankrupt servicer has advised us thatiit fmancial difficulty and will be closing. Thaaw firm is assisting
in transitioning the accounts to the new servicet laas advised us that it will consent to substiather counsel in
its place. The replacement servicer will be talsteps to arrange for the substitution of counsetwithstanding th
efforts of various parties to provide for a coni@nsof the accounts to the new servicer, theseroenoes could
interfere with the collection of certain of our ffotios including the ability of judgment debtositientify Asta, the
new servicer or new counsel as the parties to witiey should direct payments. In addition, represtargs of
creditors of the insolvent servicer and troubled fam may endeavor to assert claims with respegartfolios that
those companies relinquish including our accounts.

We rely on our third party collectors to comply Wil rules and regulations and maintain proper iatnal
controls over their accounting and operations.

Because the receivables were originated and serpigesuant to a variety of federal and/or stateslawa
variety of entities and involved consumers in @lisates, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico &adith America,
there can be no assurance that all original senyientities have, at all times, been in substantiedpliance with
applicable law. Additionally, there can be no aasge that we or our third-party collection ageneied attorneys
have been or will continue to be at all times ibstantial compliance with applicable law. The feglto comply
with applicable law and not maintain proper corgtriol their accounting and operations could matgradversely
affect our ability to collect our receivables amliltl subject us to increased costs, fines and pesal

We may rely on third parties to locate, identify duievaluate consumer receivable portfolios availafide
purchase.

We may rely on third parties, including brokers anidd-party collection agencies and attorneysdemtify
consumer receivable portfolios and, in some ingano assist us in our evaluation and purcha#igest portfolios.
As a result, if such third parties fail to identifgceivable portfolios or if our relationships withch third parties are
not maintained, our ability to identify and purchaslditional receivable portfolios could be matgriadversely
affected. In addition, if we, or such parties, failcorrectly or adequately evaluate the valueotiectability of these
consumer receivable portfolios, we may pay too nfoctsuch portfolios and suffer an impairment, vitweould
negatively impact our earnings.

Business issues with a significant third party semer (the “Servicer”) led to the need to secure subinated
financing, reduced purchases and other disruptioinsthe business relationship.

The Servicer that provides servicing for certaintiolios within the Bank Group Collateral (all pfotios
excluding the Portfolio Purchase), was also engége@alisades Collection, LLC, the Company’s sengc
subsidiary (“Palisades Collection”), after the dsdion of the Portfolio Purchase, to provide cart@management
services with respect to the portfolios owned blyjsBdes XVI and financed by the BMO Facility andotovide
subservicing functions for portions of the PortidRurchase. Collections with respect to the Paatfeurchase, and
most portfolios purchased by the Company, arethess the costs and fees which were expended toatertbose
collections, particularly when court costs are ambeal to pursue an aggressive litigation strategyyas the case
with the Portfolio Purchase. Start-up cash flowésswith respect to the Portfolio Purchase wereerkated by
(a) collection challenges caused by the economig@mment, (b) the fact that Palisades Collectietlidved that it
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would be desirable to engage the Servicer to perfaanagement services with respect to the PortRilichase
which services were not contemplated at the tima@initial acquisition of the Portfolio Purchaamed (c) Palisades
Collection believed it would be desirable to comeeelitigation and incur court costs at a fastee than initially
budgeted. As previously described in the CompahRgisn 10-K and Form 10-K/A for the year ended Sejben30,
2007, the agreements with the Servicer call foaf€e on substantially all gross collections frdra Portfolio
Purchase on the first $500 million and 7% on sutiithy all gross collections from the Portfolio ileRhase in excess
of $500 million. Additionally, the Company paid tBervicer a monthly fee of $275,000 for 25 monts f
consulting, asset identification and skiptracinige$ in connection with the Portfolio Purchasejieg in May 200¢
The Servicer also receives a servicing fee witheesto those accounts it actually subservicegsh@gees due to i
Servicer for management and subservicing functiomtsthe amounts spent for court costs were hidgtaer those
initially contemplated for subservicing functiomsd as start-up collections with respect to thef®lar Purchase
were slower than initially projected, the amouniged to the Servicer with respect to the Portfolivpdhase for fees
and advances for court costs to pursue litigatgairest debtors, from time to time, exceeded amoavasable to
pay the Servicer from collections received by thevi&er on the Portfolio Purchase on a currentshadie Compar
considered the effects of these trends on thedtiorfPurchase valuation.

Rather than waiting for collections from the PditfdPurchase to satisfy sums of approximately $8illon
due the Servicer for court cost advances and és, fine Servicer seff that amount against amounts it had colle
on behalf of the Company with respect to the Bandu@ Collateral. While the Servicer disagrees,Goenpany
believes that those sums should have been rentittén® Bank Group without setoff.

The Company determined to remedy any shortfaténreceipts under the Bank Group facility by obtagrthe
$8.2 million subordinated loan from the Family Bpind causing the proceeds of the loan to be efeli/to the
Bank Group and not to pursue a dispute with theiGarat that time. The Company believed that angjc dispute
with the Servicer was is in its best interestghasServicer should improve collections on the fBbot Purchase ow
time.

On April 29, 2008, the Company entered into a teitreement with the Bank Group in which the Bam&up
consented to the Subordinated Loan from the Falnilyty. On January 18, 2009, the Company enterid in
amended agreements with the Servicer pursuantichwiie Servicer agreed that it would not make famgher set-
offs against collections.

We have an ongoing dispute with a significant semi for which we are currently negotiating a setthent.

The Company has an ongoing dispute with one @igfsificant third party servicers regarding certain
provisions in the servicing agreement between tlmepanies. The Company contends that there are amdue the
Company under a profit-sharing arrangement. Thécarhas acknowledged the profit sharing arrangerinet
disagrees with the calculation of the amount owattiitionally, the servicer has asserted that them@any owes th
servicer certain amounts with regard to a portfelite and court costs allegedly incurred by theiserand not pai
to the servicer by the Company. The companies icoatio negotiate a settlement for these items.Cdrapany
does not believe the final settlement will haveadierse material effect on the Company.

Our collections may decrease if bankruptcy filingsrease.

During times of economic recession, the amounteddualted consumer receivables generally increadsish
contributes to an increase in the amount of petdmnakruptcy filings. Under certain bankruptcyriijs, a debtor’s
assets are sold to repay credit originators, maesihe defaulted consumer receivables we pur@rasgenerally
unsecured, we may not be able to collect on theseivables. We cannot assure you that our colleetiqperience
would not decline with an increase in bankrupttings. If our actual collection experience withpest to a
defaulted consumer receivable portfolio is sigifity lower than we projected when we purchasegtholio,
our earnings could be negatively affected.

If we are unable to access external sources of fisang, we may not be able to fund and grow our oaons.
The failure to obtain increased financing and @it needed would limit our ability to:

» purchase consumer receivable portfolios;
 achieve our growth plan
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In addition, our financing sources may impose éenastrictive covenants, including financial cogats.
Failure to satisfy any of these covenants could:

» cause our indebtedness to become immediately )
 preclude us from further borrowings from these taxissources; an

« prevent us from securing alternative sources @frfaing necessary to purchase consumer receivable
portfolios and to operate our busine

The loss of any of our executive officers may adsaly affect our operations and our ability to sucstully
acquire receivable portfolios.

Historically, Arthur Stern, our Chairman Emerit@ary Stern, our Chairman, President and Chief Biezu
Officer, Robert J. Michel, our Chief Financial @#ir, and Mary Curtin, our Senior Vice Presidentrexnesponsible
for making substantially all management decisiemduding determining which portfolios to purchaties purchase
price and other material terms of such portfoliquasitions. These decisions are instrumental tetleeess of our
business. On October 5, 2009, it was announcedtuaieron Williams, who had served as Chief Opegdifficer,
will be leaving the Company following a transitipariod. Mr. Williams’ contract expires December 2009.
Additionally, as of January 2009, Arthur Stern gieg down as an employee of the Company, althouglohignues
to serve on the Board and to consult with our ettees. Significant losses of the services of owaepive officers
or the inability to replace our officers with indtiwals who have experience in the industry or wht Company
could disrupt our operations and adversely affectability to successfully acquire receivable palitfs.

The Stern family effectively controls Asta, substily reducing the influence of our other stockhadérs.

Members of the Stern family including Arthur Ste@Gary Stern and Barbara Marburger, daughter ofukrth
Stern and sister of Gary Stern, trusts or custadiabunts for the benefit of minor children of Bando Marburger ar
Gary Stern, Asta Group, Incorporated, and limitadility companies controlled by Judith R. Fedeece of Arthur
Stern and cousin of Gary Stern, in which ArthurrStélice Stern (wife of Arthur Stern and mother@éry Stern
and Barbara Marburger), Gary Stern and trustsheibenefit of the issue of Arthur Stern and thaéssf Gary Ster
hold all economic interests, own, in the aggregap@roximately 26.0% of our outstanding sharesoofimon stock.
In addition, other members of the Stern Familyhsas adult children of Gary Stern and Barbara May&y own
additional shares. As a result, the Stern familghile to influence significantly the actions thequire stockholder
approval, including:

« the election of a majority of our directors; &

« the approval of mergers, sales of assets or othrporate transactions or matters submitted forkstoicler
approval.

As a result, our other stockholders may have reatliftuence over matters submitted for stockhokgproval.
In addition, the Stern familg’influence could preclude any unsolicited acqgoisiof us and consequently materie
adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Current economic conditions, have had a significampact on our ability to sell accounts.

As part of our historic business model, we havd sgkcounts on an opportunistic basis. Our abititgdll
accounts has been limited in 2009 and in 2008 aayd e limited in the future. Net collections repaed by
account sales for 2009 were only $8.7 million, cangpl to $20.4 million and $54.2 million in 2008 £@D7,
respectively. Collections represented by accouessas a percentage of total collections were 592009,
compared to 9.8% and 19.2% in 2008 and 2007, réspbc We had launched a sales effort to enhaasé dow
and pay debt, particularly from the Portfolio Puasé, but sales have been slower than expected dueatiety of
factors, including a slow resale market, similathte decrease in pricing we are seeing in genasakell as lack of
supporting documentation (media) and validatiothefPortfolio Purchase accounts.

Government regulations may limit our ability to rewer and enforce the collection of our receivables.

Federal, state and local laws, rules, regulatiomsaadinances may limit our ability to recover adorce our
rights with respect to the receivables acquiredidyThese laws include, but are not limited to féllewing federal
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statutes and regulations promulgated thereundecamgbarable statutes in states where consumedgeresi
and/or where creditors are located:

» The Fair Debt Collection Practices A

e The Federal Trade Commission A

e TheTruth-In-LendingAct;

» The Fair Credit Billing Act

» The Equal Credit Opportunity Act; al

« The Fair Credit Reporting Ac

We may be precluded from collecting receivablepwechase where the creditor or other previous owner
third-party collection agency or attorney failecctumply with applicable law in originating or serivig such
acquired receivables. Laws relating to the coltatbf consumer debt also directly apply to our bess. Our failure
to comply with any laws applicable to us, includstgte licensing laws, could limit our ability tecover on
receivables and could subject us to fines and iesaWhich could reduce our earnings and resudt diefault under
our loan arrangements. In addition, our third-padifection agencies and attorneys may be subjettistse and
other laws and their failure to comply with suctvéacould also materially adversely affect our fiomincome and
earnings.

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws rbayenacted that could impose additional restristmm the
servicing and collection of receivables. Such nawsl or amendments may adversely affect the albditollect on
our receivables, which could also adversely affectfinance income and earnings.

Because our receivables are generally originatddsarviced pursuant to a variety of federal, dtates
and/or local laws by a variety of entities and nrayolve consumers in all 50 states, the Distric€ofumbia, Puerto
Rico and South America, there can be no assuraatall originating and servicing entities havealatimes, been
in substantial compliance with applicable law. Adwhally, there can be no assurance that we othord-party
collection agencies and attorneys have been orcasitinue to be at all times in substantial comul@with
applicable law. Failure to comply with applicabdevi could materially adversely affect our abilityctmllect our
receivables and could subject us to increased,dosts and penalties.

Class action suits and other litigation in our incitry could divert our management’s attention fronperating
our business and increase our expenses.

Originators, debt purchasers and thaatty collection agencies and attorneys in the wones credit industry a
frequently subject to putative class action lawssaitd other litigation. Claims include failure wnaply with
applicable laws and regulations and improper oeggee origination and servicing practices. Beimdpfendant in
such class action lawsuits or other litigation domlaterially adversely affect our results of opierat and financial
condition.

We may seek to make acquisitions that prove unsasfig or strain or divert our resources.

We may seek to grow Asta through acquisitions Iafteel businesses. Such acquisitions present higksould
materially adversely affect our business and fir@merformance, including:

« the diversion of our managem’s attention from our everyday business activi
« the assimilation of the operations and personnéi@ficquired busines

* the contingent and latent risks associated wittpdst operations of, and other unanticipated proslarisinc
in, the acquired business; a

« the need to expand management, administration p@icitional system:
If we make such acquisitions we cannot predict \wbiet

« we will be able to successfully integrate the opilers of any new businesses into our busin
» we will realize any anticipated benefits of comptéacquisitions; ¢
« there will be substantial unanticipated costs aaseat with acquisitions

In addition, future acquisitions by us may resnit i
« potentially dilutive issuances of our equity setiesi,
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« the incurrence of additional debt; a

« the recognition of significant charges for depréoiaand impairment charges related to goodwill atigbr
intangible asset:

Although we have no present plans or intentions¢@rginuously evaluate potential acquisitions dédbed
businesses. However, we have not reached any agnt@marrangement with respect to any particulauré
acquisition and we may not be able to completeamupisitions on favorable terms or at all.

Our investments in other businesses and entry inew business ventures may adversely affect our afiens.

We have and may continue to make investments irpaoilms or commence operations in businesses and
industries that are not identical to those withalhive have historically been successful. If thesestments or
arrangements are not successful, our earnings beutdaterially adversely affected by increased esee and
decreased finance income.

If our technology and phone systems are not operatl, our operations could be disrupted and our ktyito
successfully acquire receivable portfolios and raaecollections from debtors could be adverselyeated.

Our success depends, in part, on sophisticatecbi@imunications and computer systems. The temp&rasyo!
our computer and telecommunications systems, threagualty, operating malfunction or service previthilure,
could disrupt our operations. In addition, we nmasbrd and process significant amounts of datakguand
accurately to properly bid on prospective acquisgiof receivable portfolios and to access, mairaad expand the
databases we use for our collection and monitaatiyities. Any failure of our information systerasd their
backup systems would interrupt our operations. Vg not have adequate backup arrangements for alirof
operations and we may incur significant losses ibatage occurs. In addition, we rely on third-paxdllection
agencies and attorneys who also may be adverdelsted in the event of an outage in which the tpiadty
collection agencies and attorneys do not have adedpackup arrangements. Any interruption in o@rations or
our third-party collection agencies’ and attorneysérations could have an adverse effect on ouftsesf
operations and financial condition. However, thenpany is in the process of implementing a disasteovery
program which would mitigate this risk.

Our organizational documents and Delaware law mayke it harder for us to be acquired without the cgamt
and cooperation of our board of directors and maragent.

Several provisions of our organizational documemis Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeovemagi,
including a takeover attempt in which the poterpiaichaser offers to pay a per share price gréaaerthe current
market price of our common stock. Under the terfruo certificate of incorporation, our board ofetitors has the
authority, without further action by the stockhatslgo issue shares of preferred stock in one aerseries and to
fix the rights, preferences, privileges and resitiits thereof. The ability to issue shares of prefé stock could tend
to discourage takeover or acquisition proposalsuapported by our current board of directors. Iditah, we are
subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General @atpn Law, which restricts business combinatiaith some
stockholders once the stockholder acquires 15%oawve rof our common stock.

Future sales of our common stock may depress oocktprice.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our camstock in the public market could cause a deergathe
market price of our common stock. We had 14,272g&#es of common stock issued and outstandin§ as o
December 21, 2009. Of these shares, 3,669,340 =&tédh our affiliates and are saleable under Rdke df the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The remaindeurmoutstanding shares is freely tradable. Initéad options
to purchase approximately 1,157,905 shares of @wmnmon stock were outstanding as of September 38, 20
which 1,081,912 were vested. In certain casesxbecise prices of such options were higher tharcthrent
market price of our common stock. We may also isglditional shares in connection with our busireess may
grant additional stock options or restricted shéwesur employees, officers, directors and conststander our
present or future equity compensation plans or &g issue warrants to third parties outside of qlahs. As of
September 30, 2009 there were 1,150,668 shardalaledior such purpose with such shares availabiuthe
Equity Compensation Plan and the 2002 Stock Oftlan. No more options are available for issuanceuthe
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1995 Stock Option Plan. If a significant portiontbése shares were sold in the public market, ket value of
our common stock could be adversely affected.

From time to time, the Company’s Chairman Emerifushur Stern and President and Chief Executived@ff
Gary Stern have adopted prearranged stock tradiémsg jin accordance with guidelines specified by
Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act 8#18s amended. While no such plans are in effqueaent,
significant sales by the Stern family could haveadwuerse effect on market price for our commonkstoc

The Company purchased a portfolio in a South Amexniccountry exposing the Company to currency rate
fluctuations.

As a result of this $8.6 million purchase in fisgahr 2008, the Company is exposed to currency rate
fluctuations as the collections on this portfolie denominated in the local currency of the SoutireAcan country.
Additionally, our investment could also be exposethe same currency risk. A strengthened U.Sadelbuld
decrease the U.S. dollar equivalent of the localericy collections, and the local currency conmrdo U.S. dollar
would suffer upon settlement of transactions asdediwith this investment with the parent comparhe Compan
has no foreign currency hedge contracts in place.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate an@uase our stock price to decline.

Because of the nature of our business, our quamedrating results may fluctuate, which may adeigraffect

the market price of our common stock. Our resulty fluctuate as a result of any of the following:

* the timing and amount of collections on our consuraeeivable portfolios

 our inability to identify and acquire additionalrsumer receivable portfolio
 adecline in the estimated future value of our oomsr receivable portfolio recoverie
* increases in operating expenses associated witlrdweth of our operation:

« general and economic market conditions;

« prices we are willing to pay for consumer receiegtdrtfolios.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

The Company has received no written comments ragaits periodic or current reports from the staffthe
Securities and Exchange Commission that were iss8@dlays or more preceding the end of its 20@@ffigear an
that remain unresolved.

Item 2. Properties.

Our executive and administrative offices are lodateEnglewood Cliffs, New Jersey, where we lease
approximately 14,500 square feet of general offjpace for approximately $23,000 per month, pludiesi. The
lease expires on July 31, 2010. The Company i€warg its options with regard to facilities plangin

Our office in Sugar Land, Texas occupies approxiya®,600 square feet of general office space for
approximately $6,000 per month. The lease expi@gelihber 30, 2010. Additionally, we had been leasing
approximately 9,000 square feet of general offfz#ce in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania for a call ceffitefFebruary
2009, the Company closed the Pennsylvania facilitye lease expires in December 2009. The call céumtetion
has been assimilated into our existing New Jeraeitfy.

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguat our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we areliragbin numerous legal proceedings. We regulariljaite
collection lawsuits, using third party law firmgainst consumers. Also, consumers occasionalliaieititigation
against us, in which they allege that we have tala federal or state law in the process of ctfigon their
account. We do not believe that these ordinarysmuratters are material to our business and finhoondition. As
of the date of this Form 10-K, we were not involvecny material litigation in which we were a dedant.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holde
None.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity

Securities.

Since August 15, 2000, our common stock has beetedwn the NASDAQ National Market system under the

symbol “ASFL.” On December 10, 2009 there were 8Rlérs of record of our common stock. High and &ales
prices of our common stock since October 1, 200@parted by NASDAQ are set forth below (such gtiotes
reflect inter-dealer prices without retail markaparkdown, or commission, and may not necessarniyesent actual

transactions):

October 1, 2007 to December 31, 2(
January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2C
April 1, 2008 to June 30, 20(

July 1, 2008 to September 30, 2(

October 1, 2008 to December 31, 2!
January 1, 2009 to March 31, 2C
April 1, 2009 to June 30, 20(

July 1, 2009 to September 30, 2(

Dividends

_High —_Low
$39.7¢  $24.71
26.2¢ 12.92
15.2¢ 6.7¢
10.01 6.7¢
$10.0¢ $ 1.7¢
2.7¢ 1.0C
6.3¢€ 2.4¢
9.2¢ 4.9C

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Coyngheclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating
$1,142,000 ($0.02 per share, per quarter), of wiiz86,000 was paid November 2, 2009. During the gaded
September 30, 2008 the Company declared quartesly dividends aggregating $2,270,000 ($0.04 peespar
quarter), of which $571,000 was paid November 882Future dividend payments will be at the disoreof the
board of directors and will depend upon our finahcbndition, operating results, capital requiretaeand any other
factors the board of directors deems relevantdtiiten, our agreements with our lenders may, ftone to time,
restrict our ability to pay dividends. Currenthetl are no restrictions in place.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

Included in the following table are the number pfions outstanding, the average price and the nuofbe

available options remaining available for futurguignce under equity compensation plans.

Number of
Securities to be
Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding
Options, Warrants

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding
Options, Warrants

Number of
Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance
Under Equity
Compensation Plan:
(Excluding
Securities
Reflected in Column

Equity Compensation Plan and Rights and Rights (@)
Information: Plan Category (a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by security drs 1,157,900 $ 10.7¢€ 1,150,66!
Equity compensation plans not approved by security

holders 0 0 0
Total 1,157,900 $ 10.7¢ 1,150,66:
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrttany of our filings under the Securities Act 883, as

amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 193dresnded, that might incorporate by reference this

Form 1(-K Statement, in whole or in part, the followingf®emance Graph shall not be incorporated by refere

into any such filings.

The following graph compares the cumulative totereholder return on our Common Stock since

September 30, 2004, with the cumulative returrtierNASDAQ Stock Market (US) Index and four stocks
comprising our peer group index over the same gedesuming the investment of $100 on Septembe2(BIB, anc
the reinvestment of all dividends. We declareddénids of $0.12 per share in fiscal 2004 of whicl®9$8 was paid
November 1, 2004. During the year ended Septene2@®5, we declared quarterly cash dividends aggdireg

$0.16 per share, of which $0.04 per share waspaicember 1, 2005. During the year ended Septenhe2®6,
we declared quarterly cash dividends aggregatingehfer share, of which $0.44 per share was paicthiber 1,
2006. Included in the $0.44 was a special dividefi§0.40 per share. During the year ended SepteB8the2007, w
declared quarterly cash dividends aggregating $oet&hare, of which $0.04 per share was paid Nbeerh, 2007
During the year ended September 30, 2008, we dettrarterly cash dividends aggregating $0.16 Iperes of

which $0.04 per share was paid November 3, 2008.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG ASTA FUNDING, INC.,
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX AND PEER GROUP INDEX

z
—+— ASTA FUNDING, 40 — ® — PEER GROUF INDEX
—h— MASDAG MARKET INDEX
ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON SEPT. 30, 2004
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPT. 30, 2009
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
ASTA FUNDING, INC. 100.0C | 188.5¢ | 258.17 | 265.0¢ 49.15 54.2i
PEER GROUP INDEX(1 100.0C | 198.0¢ [ 149.1¢ | 130.3¢ 72.81 71.92
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX 100.0C | 113.7¢ | 120.57 | 144.07 | 111.5¢ | 112.9]

(1) The Peer Group Index is made up of the followingusiges:

Compucredit Corporation
Encore Capital Group

NCO Group Inc. (Through 200
Portfolio Recovery Associates
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth a summary of our smidated financial data as of and for the fivedisyears
ended September 30, 2009. The selected finandialfdiathe five fiscal years ended September 3092Bave been
derived from our audited consolidated financiatestzents. The selected financial data presenteavistould be
read in conjunction with our consolidated finanattements, related notes, other financial inféiomancluded
elsewhere, and Item 7. See “Management’s DiscussidrAnalysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in this Annual Report. Certain item®iior years’ information have been reclassified¢daform to the
current year’s presentation.

Year Ended September 30
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share date

Operations Statement Da

Finance incom: $ 70,15¢ $115,29' $138,35¢ $101,02: $69,47¢
Other income 134 20C 2,181 405 —
Total revenue 70,29( 115,49! 140,53 101,42¢ 69,47¢
Costs and expense
General and administrati\ 25,91t 29,56 25,45( 18,26¢ 15,34(
Interest expens 8,452 17,88: 18,24¢ 4,641 1,85:
Impairments 183,50( 53,16( 9,09 2,24% —
Total expense 217,86° 100,60: 52,79! 25,15¢ 17,19:
Income before equity in earnings in venture and

income taxe: (147,577 14,89 87,74« 76,27¢ 52,28¢
Equity in earnings in ventul 65 55 22t 55( —
Income before income tax (147,51) 14,94¢ 87,96¢ 76,82t 52,28t
Provisions for income taxe (56,787 6,11¢ 35,70 31,06( 21,29(
Net (loss) incom $(90,72F) $ 8,82¢ $ 52,26¢ $ 45,768 $30,99¢
Basic net (loss) income per shi $ (636 $ 06z $ 37¢ $ 33 $ 2.2¢
Diluted net (loss) income per sh $ (636 $ 061 $ 35 $ 31 §$ 2.1f

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

Other Financial Date
For the Year ended September

Cash collection $ 147< $ 208 $ 281¢ $ 214t $ 168.<
Portfolio purchases, at cc 19.€ 49.¢ 440.¢ 200.z 126.C
Portfolio purchases, at fa 577.( 1,456.. 10,891. 5,194.( 3,445.;
Return on average assets (23.5% 1.7% 12.(% 19.€% 18.2%
Return on average stockholc’ equity(1) (44.9% 3.6% 24.&% 27.% 23.%
Dividends declared per share $ 008 $ 0l1l¢ $ 01l $ 056 $ 0.14
At September 3(

Total asset 290.¢ 481.1 580.: 287.¢ 180.(
Total debt 130.¢ 221.% 326.F 82.¢ 29.2
Total stockholder' equity 157.¢ 247 .¢ 237.t 184.: 1452
Inception to dat— September 3(

Cumulative aggregate purchases, at 31,626.¢ 31,049.¢ 29,593.{ 18,701.¢ 13,507.¢

(1) The return on average assets is computed by diviti income by average total assets for the figeat. The
return on average stockholders’ equity is compbiedividing net income by the average stockholdegiity
for the fiscal year. Both ratios have been computdg beginning and peri-end balance

(2) Includes a special dividend of $0.40 per sharedib62

25




Table of Contents

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatior
Cautions Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimfard-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%rward{ooking statements typically are identified by w$éerms
such as “may”, “will", “should”, “plan”, “expect”;anticipate”, “estimate”, and similar words, alttgfusome
forward-looking statements are expressed diffeyeRtbrward-looking statements represent our judgmegrarding
future events, but we can give no assurance tleatjslgments will prove to be correct. Such statgsare subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause acasailts to differ materially from those projectedsuch forward-
looking statements. Certain factors which couldarially affect our results and our future perforraiare
described above under Item 1A “Risk Factors” arldweinder “Critical Accounting Policies” in “ltem.7
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations” Forward-looking
statements are inherently uncertain as they amdb@s current expectations and assumptions comgefuiure
events and are subject to numerous known and unkmnigks and uncertainties. We caution you not &z@lundue
reliance on these forward-looking statements, whighonly predictions and speak only as of the datkis report.
Except as required by law, we undertake no oblbgatth update or publicly announce revisions to famyard-
looking statements to reflect future events or tiguments. Unless the context otherwise requiresteahms “we”,
“us” “the Company”, or “our” as used herein referAsta Funding, Inc. and our subsidiaries.

Overview

We are primarily engaged in the business of aaggiimmanaging for our own account, servicing andvetdng
on portfolios of consumer receivables. These pliodayenerally consist of one or more of the foliogvtypes of
consumer receivables:

 charged-off receivables -accounts that have been written-off by the origireind may have been
previously serviced by collection agenci

« semi-performing receivables aecounts where the debtor is making partial ogirtar monthly payments,
but the accounts may have been wr-off by the originators; and in limited circumstasg

 performing receivable—accounts where the debtor is making regular momhjyments that may or may
not have been delinquent in the p

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssignificant discount to the amount actually owgdhe
borrowers. We acquire these portfolios after aitatale and quantitative analysis of the underlyiageivables and
calculate the purchase price so that our estinzsh flow offers us an adequate return on our invest after
servicing expenses. After purchasing a portfolie,agtively monitor its performance and review adjlist our
collection and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors aherstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémed
transactions and auctions in which sellers of red#des seek bids from several pre-qualified debthpasers. We
pursue new acquisitions of consumer receivabldglm$ on an ongoing basis through:

* our relationships with industry participants, fical institutions, collection agencies, investonsl aur
financing sources

« brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; ant
« other sources

Critical Accounting Policies
We account for our investments in consumer recéavpbrtfolios, using either:

* The interest method; «

« The cost recovery metha
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As we believe our extensive liquidating experieimceertain asset classes such as distressed ceedit
receivables, consumer loan receivables and mixegroer receivables has matured, we use the interthbd
when we believe we can reasonably estimate thedimi the cash flows. In those situations wherediversify our
acquisitions into other asset classes in which avaat possess the same expertise or history, @aweot
reasonably estimate the timing of the cash flonesilize the cost recovery method of accountingfiose
portfolios of receivables.

The Company accounts for its investment in finamoeivables using the interest method under theaggie of
ASC 310. Static pools of accounts are establishiedse pools are aggregated based on certain comshkariteria.
Each static pool is recorded at cost and is aceduior as a single unit for the recognition of ime principal
payments and loss provision. We currently condioleaggregation portfolios of accounts, purchasétiwthe
same fiscal quarter, that generally have the falgvecharacteristics:

e same issuer/originatt

« same underlying credit quali

« similar geographic distribution of the accou

 similar age of the receivable a

» same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuations, etc.

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after seryifees,
including court costs, which are expensed as ied/uve use a variety of qualitative and quantieafactors to
determine the estimated cash flows. As previousintioned, included in our analysis for purchasimp#folio of
receivables and determining a reasonable estini@t@lections and the timing thereof, the followingriables are
analyzed and factored into our original estimates:

 the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
« the average balance of the receivak

« the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lesst
effective);

* past history of performance of similar assets -wapurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beliee
have built significant history on how these recblea will liquidate and cash flov

* number of months since cha-off;
e payments made since chz-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

« the locations of the debtors as there are betitgsto attempt to collect in and ultimately wednhetter
predictability of the liquidations and the expectesgh flows. Conversely, there are also statesenther
liquidation rates are not as good and that is fadinto our cash flow analysi

» financial wherewithal of the selle

* jobs or property of the debtors found within padiitis-with our business model, this is of particular
importance. Debtors with jobs or property are niikely to repay their obligation and converselybties
without jobs or property are less likely to rephgit obligation; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtginal issuer

We will obtain and utilize as appropriate inputluding, but not limited to, monthly collection peajtions and
liquidation rates, from our third party collectiagencies and attorneys, as further evidentiaryemdtt assist us in
developing collection strategies and in modelirgyéRpected cash flows for a given portfolio.
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We acquire accounts that have experienced detBaoraf credit quality between origination and thete of
our acquisition of the accounts. The amount paidafportfolio of accounts reflects our determinatibat it is
probable we will be unable to collect all amountg éccording to the portfolio of accounts’ contuatterms. We
consider the expected payments and estimate therdgrand timing of undiscounted expected principdgrest and
other cash flows for each acquired portfolio codphdth expected cash flows from accounts availédreales. The
excess of this amount over the cost of the podfoBpresenting the excess of the account’s caslsfexpected to
be collected over the amount paid, is accretedintome recognized on finance receivables oveefipected
remaining life of the portfolio.

We believe we have significant experience in adagicertain distressed consumer receivable poosdat a
significant discount to the amount actually owedunglerlying debtors. We acquire these portfolioy after both
gualitative and quantitative analyses of the uryilegl receivables are performed and a calculatedhase price is
paid so that we believe our estimated cash flowrsftis an adequate return on our acquisition dodtsding
servicing expenses. Additionally, when considetarger portfolio purchases of accounts, or portflirom issuers
from whom we have little or limited experience, have the added benefit of soliciting our third paxllection
agencies and attorneys for their input on liqunlkatiates and at times incorporate such input iméqotice we offer
for a given portfolio and the estimates we useoforexpected cash flows.

As a result of the recent and current challengt@nemic environment and the impact it has had diectoons,
for portfolio purchases acquired in fiscal year 208 have extended our time frame of the expectatigecoverin
100% of our invested capital within a 24-39 monghipd from an 18-28 month period, and the expemtaif
recovering 130-140% of invested capital to a pedabd years which is an increase from the previbysar
expectation. We routinely monitor these expectatiagainst the actual cash flows and, in the eventash flows
are below our expectations and we believe thera@reasons relating to mere timing differencesxglainable
delays (such as can occur, particularly when thet®ystem is involved) for the reduced collecticas impairment
would be recorded as a provision for credit los€asversely, in the event the cash flows are iress®f our
expectations and the reason is due to timing, wadwdefer the “excess” collection as deferred rexen

The Company uses the cost recovery method wheectiolhs on a particular pool of accounts cannot be
reasonably predicted. Under the cost recovery ntetho income is recognized until the cost of thefptio has
been fully recovered. A pool can become fully anzed (zero carrying balance on the balance shewt wtill
generating cash collections. In this case, all cadlections are recognized as revenue when redeive

Results of Operations

The following discussion of our operations and ficial condition should be read in conjunction vatir
financial statements and notes thereto includesirdisre in this Report on Form 10-K. In these disituss, most
percentages and dollar amounts have been rounded pwesentation. As a result, all such figures ar
approximations.

Years Ending September 30,

2009 2008 2007
Finance incom 99.6% 99.8% 98.4%
Other income 0.2% 0.2% 1.€%
Total revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
General and administrative expen 36.5% 25.% 18.1%
Interest expens 12.0% 15.5% 13.(%
Impairments 261.7% 46.(% 6.5%
(Loss) income before equity in earnings in ventaurd income taxe (210.0% 12.¢% 62.2%
Equity in earnings in ventul 0.1% 0% 0.2%
(Loss) income before income tax (209.9% 12.% 62.6%
Provision for income taxe (80.8% 5.3% 25.4%
Net (loss) incomi (129.% 7.€% 37.2%
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Year Ended September 30, 2009 Compared to the ¥Eealed September 30, 20l

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2009, finarmmeria decreased $45.1 million or 39.2% to
$70.2 million from $115.3 million for the year emti®eptember 30, 2008. The average outstanding dével
consumer receivable accounts acquired for liquidatiecreased from $497.3 million for the fiscalryeaded
September 30, 2008 to $394.6 million for fiscalryeaded September 30, 2009, reflecting a combinatidower
collections and lower portfolio purchases in 200&npared to the prior period. A significant reasonthe decrease
in finance income is the impact of the Portfoliacéhase being transferred from the interest metbddd cost
recovery method effective in the third quarteris€él year 2008. The finance income recorded orPtiréfolio
Purchase in fiscal year 2008, prior to the transfarost recovery, was $17.7 million, as compacezktro finance
income recorded in fiscal year 2009. No financeme will be recognized on the Portfolio Purchase after the
entire carrying value of $121.5 million, as of Sapber 30, 2009, is collected.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 200%ag@ired consumer receivable portfolios at a abst
$19.6 million as compared to $49.9 million durihg fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. The fiogfo
purchased in fiscal year 2008 include a portfolioghased that is domiciled in South America atst ob
$8.6 million. Further, as we have curtailed ourghaises of new portfolios of consumer receivablemduhe
second, third and fourth quarters of 2008 and 2@@9, finance income was negatively impacted aridcamtinue tc
be negatively impacted going forward since we ater@placing our receivables acquired for liquidatilnstead, w
are focusing, in the short-term, on reducing ount@ad being highly disciplined in our portfolionghases. We
continue to review potential portfolio acquisitiaregularly and will be buyers at the right pricénese we believe
the purchase will yield our desired rate of return.

Finance income recognized from fully amortized foids (zero basis revenue) wdg0.7 million andd
45.3 million for the years ended September 30, 20692008, respectively. There were no accretabld y
adjustments recorded during the fiscal years eSdgdember 30, 2009 and 2008.

Other income. Other income of $134,000 and $200,000 for theafigear ended September 30, 2009 and :
respectively, consisted primarily of service feeome and interest income from banks.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended September 30, 2009, genatadministrative
expenses decreased $3.7 million or 12.3% to $28l@mfrom $29.6 million for the year ended Septean 30,
2008. Lower general and administrative expensdsésprimarily to lower staffing levels as collect®and purcha:
of accounts acquired for liquidation decreasediBaamtly from the prior year. Staffing levels hadecreased, from
158 full time employees as of September 30, 20a®full time employees as of September 30, 2009.
Approximately 38 employees were eliminated in Fabylt2009 as a result of the closing of the Penmsyévcall
center, with a salary cost savings of approxima@ million during the year ended September 8092 Lower
postage expense in the current fiscal year isleatefn of fewer mailings resulting from lower plotto purchases.

Interest expenseFor the year ended September 30, 2009, intexpsise decreased $9.4 million or 52.7% to
$8.5 million from $17.9 million during the year estiSeptember 30, 2008. The decrease was due tweade in
our outstanding borrowings under our line of crediitl our Receivables Financing Agreement, duriegytfar ende
September 30, 2009, as compared to the outstabdimgwings during the year ended September 30, ,2@led
with lower interest rates during the year ended&uaper 30, 2009. The average interest rate (exwudnused
credit line fees) for the year ended SeptembePB09 on the line of credit and the Receivable RiiranAgreemen
was 4.72% as compared to 6.11% during the yearde®dptember 30, 2008. The rate on the subordirmktiet—
related party is fixed at 6.25%. The average onthtay borrowings decreased from $274.1 million 16& 1 million
for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 20§)8ctvely, reflecting the Company’s continuingoetfto pay
down its debt.

Impairments. Impairments of $183.5 million were recorded by @ompany during the year ended
September 30, 2009 as compared to $53.2 milliothi®year ended September 30, 2008. Included inutrent
yeals impairments is approximately $108.5 million teld to the interest method portfolios and $75.0ionil
related to cost recovery method portfolios, inchgd$53.9 applied to the Portfolio Purchase. Foririterest method
portfolios, relative collections with respect tor@xpectations were deteriorating and this detation was
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confirmed by our third party collection agencies attorneys. The deterioration, which has impaatethroughout
the year, became more significant during the foqttarter of the fiscal year ended September 309.28Btorically,
moving through the year and into the fourth quakteliections tend to be stable or perhaps incremperformance.
For cost recovery portfolios the impairments reedrdirote down the cost recovery portfolios to tmeit realizable
value. As with the interest method portfolios, third party collection agencies and attorneys cargd during the
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009, the recentdrefnthe deterioration of collections. Althoughlections on the co
recovery method portfolios are expected to contimeshave determined the final estimated collestioill not be
enough to recover the original cost of or curremtying value of the portfolio. The impairment aparfor the
Portfolio Purchase wrote down the value of thefpbia to $121.9 million. Impairment charges in 20@8luded
$30.3 million on the Portfolio Purchase prior ®titansfer to the cost recovery method.

Income tax (benefit) expense Income tax benefit for fiscal year 2009 of $56.8liom consists of a federal t
benefit of $46.0 million and a state tax benefis®0.8 million. The state deferred tax benefinidusive of a
$4.4 million valuation allowance. Although the gdarward period for state income tax purposes isougventy
years, given the economic conditions, such econemiironment could limit growth over a reasonabieetperiod
to realize the deferred tax asset. The Companyrdeted the time period allowance for carryforwasutside a
reasonable period to forecast full realizationhaf tleferred tax asset, therefore recognized therrdefftax asset
valuation allowance. The Company continually mamsitiorecast information to ensure the valuatioovadince is at
the appropriate value. In fiscal year 2008 the imedax expense of $6.1 million was comprised oéEfederal tax
of $4.6 million (including $6.6 million current) dra net state tax of $1.5 million (including $2.1lion current).
The current year tax benefit is driven primarilythg impairment charges recorded during the figeal 2009.

Net (loss) income.For the year ended September 30, 2009, net incemreased $99.5 million to
$(90.7) million from $8.8 million for the year erti&eptember 30, 2008, primarily reflecting increbisepairments
and reduced finance income in fiscal year 200%jgilyr offset by lower income taxes and expensest.iNcome per
diluted share for the year ended September 30, @66&ased $6.96 per diluted share to $(6.36)ipeed share,
from $0.61 per diluted share for the year endededelper 30, 2008.

Year Ended September 30, 2008 Compared to the ¥Eealed September 30, 2007

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2008, finammeria decreased $23.1 million or 16.7% to
$115.3 million from $138.4 million for the year extiSeptember 30, 2007. Although the average oulisigutevel
of consumer receivable accounts acquired for lighide increased from $401.4 million for the fisgahr ended
September 30, 2007 to $497.3 million for fiscalryeaded September 30, 2008, the decrease in firacome
resulted primarily from the Portfolio Purchase logiransferred from the interest method to the casbvery metho
effective in the third quarter of fiscal year 200®8e finance income recorded on the Portfolio Pasehduring the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 was approgiynd22.6 million (which relates to our ownershitiee
Portfolio Purchase for only seven months during gesiod), as compared to $17.7 million recordethmfirst six
months of fiscal year 2008 prior to the transfecast recovery. As a result of the transfer to cesbvery, no
finance income was recognized on the Portfolio Pase during the second half of fiscal year 2008ranturther
finance income will be recognized on the Portf®iarchase after September 30, 2008 until the ecdinging value
of $207.3 million value as of September 30, 208&aillected.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 200&ag@ired consumer receivable portfolios at a abst
$49.9 million as compared to $440.9 million durthg fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, whidhded the
Portfolio Purchase at a cost of $300 million. Tleetfplios purchased in fiscal year 2008 includepafplio purchas
domiciled in South America at $8.6 million. Furthas we have curtailed our purchases of new p@talf
consumer receivables during the second, third andH quarters of 2008, we expect to see a reduatifinance
income in future quarters and future years, sineare not replacing our receivables acquired éuridiation.
Instead, we are focusing, in the short-term, onicad) our debt and being highly disciplined in portfolio
purchases. We continue to review potential podfatiquisitions regularly and will be buyers at ttigit price,
where we believe the purchase will yield our desiae of return. However, purchases in the fitgtregr of fiscal
2009 have remained at the reduced 2008 levelshéervironment continues to be challenging, dateived in the
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second quarter of fiscal year 2009 reflects a coetil slowness of collections, in relation to odinestes. As this
data impacts the first quarter of fiscal year 206fhairments of approximately $21.4 million areuiqd in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2009.

There were no accretable yield adjustments recalldeidg the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008.
Adjustments to accretable yields on certain padfoWere recorded in the amount of $44.5 milliontfe year
ended September 30, 2007. Finance income relati taccretable yield reclassifications duringytbar ended
September 30, 2007 was approximately $11.1 milliocome recognized from fully amortized portfoli@ero
based revenue) was $45.3 million and $23.9 mill@rthe years ended September 30, 2008 and 20§ectvely.
The increase is due primarily to more pools whigrevfully amortized in the fourth quarter of 20@Rd were
predominantly derived from credit card purchasemfone issuer made in 2003 and 2004 and teleconcatiorns
portfolios purchased from 2004 through 2005. Caibexs with regard to the Portfolio Purchase werg.$4nillion
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 abd$hillion for the period owned through SeptemB@r2007,
which includes approximately $5.5 million collectiedm the seller for accounts returned to the selle

Other income. Other income of $200,000 for the fiscal year eéh8eptember 30, 2008 consisted primarily of
service fee income and interest income from ba@kser income of $2.2 million for the year ended t8epber 30,
2007 includes interest income from banks and dteer instruments substantially acquired in 2007ictvivere
collected during the fourth quarter of 2007.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended September 30, 2008, genata@ministrative
expenses increased $4.1 million or 16.2% to $29ll&mfrom $25.5 million for the year ended Septsen 30,
2007, and represented 29.4% of total expensesu@rg income taxes) for the year ended Septemhe2(BIB as
compared to 48.2% for the year ended Septembe&080,. The increase in general and administratipeeses was
primarily due to an increase in receivable serng@rpenses during the year ended September 30, 20@8mpare
to the year ended September 30, 2007. The incieaseeivable servicing expenses resulted fromirtbeease in ot
average number of accounts acquired for liquidagomarily due to the Portfolio Purchase in thes®l quarter of
2007. A majority of the increased costs were frahection related expenses, consulting and skiptopfees
(further described below), salaries, payroll taard benefits, professional fees, telephone changeésravel costs,
as we are visiting our third party collection ages@and attorneys on a more frequent basis fonfiahand
operational audits. In December 2007, the Compagyptiated an agreement with a third party serviceassist the
Company in the asset location, skiptracing effartd ultimately the suing of debtors with respedht Portfolio
Purchase. The agreement calls for a 3% perceminfagbstantially all gross collections from thetRidio Purchase
on the first $500 million and 7% on substantiallycallections from the Portfolio Purchase in exce$
$500 million. The fee was agreed to in Decembe2Qff7 and retroactive to March 2007 and we belibise t
arrangement enhances our collection efforts. Thée2¥s applied to collections on the Portfolio ¢hase and is ni
included in general and administrative expenseslitiahally, the Company is paying this third pasgrvicer a
monthly fee of $275,000 per month for 25 monthsitoconsulting and skiptracing efforts in connestivith the
Portfolio Purchase. The $275,000 fee is includegeineral and administrative expenses. This feerbiegslay
2007. During the fiscal year ended September 308 283.3 million was recorded as collection expeaseompare
to $1.3 million in fiscal year 2007.

Interest expense For the year ended September 30, 2008, intexpsinse decreased $365,000 to $17.9 mi
from $18.2 million during the year ended Septen88r2007, and represented 17.8% of total experesetufling
income taxes) for the year ended September 30, 20@8mpared to 34.6% for the year ended SepteBth@007.
The decrease was due to a decrease in our outsganalirowings under our line of credit and our Reasfeles
Financing Agreement, slightly offset by the ince@sthe subordinated debt from a related partyinduhe year
ended September 30, 2008, as compared to the mditsgaborrowings during the year ended Septembg2@07,
coupled with lower interest rates during the yeatesl September 30, 2008. The average interestenatkiding
unused credit line fees) for the year ended Septel®, 2008 on the line of credit and the Recew#bhancing
Agreement was 6.11% as compared to 7.34% duringgaeended September 30, 2007. The rate on the
subordinated debt — related party is fixed at 6.2B%hough outstanding borrowings decreased apprasely
$104.0 million during the fiscal year ended Septen@9, 2008, the average outstanding borrowingeased from
$241.5 million to $274.1 million for the years eddgeptember 30, 2007 and 2008, respectively. Ttrease was
caused by the higher levels of borrowing stemmiogifthe Portfolio Purchase in the second

31




Table of Contents

quarter of 2007. Since then, the Company has hestinlg portfolio purchases and concentrating opipg down
debt.

Impairments. Impairments of $53.2 million were recorded by @@mpany during the year ended
September 30, 2008 as compared to $9.1 milliothieryear ended September 30, 2007, and represeh@¥h of
total expenses (excluding income taxes) for the gaded September 30, 2008, as compared to 17 R#icfyear
ended September 30, 2007. Because relative coltexctiith respect to our expectations on these glmsfwere
deteriorating, and this deterioration was confirrbgdur third party collection agencies and attgmeave believed
that impairment charges became necessary.

Equity in earnings of ventureln August 2006, the Company invested approximek@l8 million for a 25%
interest in a newly formed venture. The venturesigd in a bankruptcy liquidation that collectsesrsting rental
contracts and the liquidation of inventory. The @amy’s share of the income was $55,000 and $225,00aglthée
years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, resggclite Company has received approximately $8.1ianiin
cash distributions from the inception of the veatthrough September 30, 2008.

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2008, net incatreased $43.4 million, or 83.1% to
$8.8 million from $52.3 million for the year end8éptember 30, 2007, primarily reflecting the ineezh
impairments recorded in fiscal year 2008 and tldeiced finance income from the Portfolio Purchasétfe last six
months of 2008 due to the switch from the intemesthod to the cost recovery method. Net incomespare for the
year ended September 30, 2008 decreased $2.98yseddhare, or 83.0% to $0.61 per diluted shinoen $3.56
per diluted share for the year ended Septembe2(BLY,.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of cash from operations inclemlkections on the receivable portfolios that veerdn
acquired. Our primary uses of cash include repaymiedebt, our purchases of consumer receivabldgios,
interest payments, costs involved in the collectiohconsumer receivables, taxes and dividendggfoved. In the
past we relied significantly upon our lenders tovide the funds necessary for the purchase of ¢coesand
accounts receivable portfolios. As of September2B09, the Eighth Amendment to the Credit Fac#ityered into
on July 10, 2009, granted an initial $40 milliondiof credit from the Bank Group for portfolio phases and
working capital and was scheduled to reduce to bgmecember 31, 2009. The Credit Facility boréra@rest at
the lesser of LIBOR plus an applicable margin her prime rate minus an applicable margin basecedaio
leverage ratios, with a minimum rate of 5.5%. Thedit Facility was collateralized by all assetsted Company
other than the assets of Palisades XVI and corddinancial and other covenants (relative to talegitet worth,
interest coverage, and leverage ratio, as defithed)must be maintained in order to borrow funds Tredit
Facility’s commitment original termination date wascember 31, 2009. As of September 30, 2009, thasean
$18.3 million outstanding balance on the CreditilitgcThis Credit Facility was repaid on Decemidet, 2009. As
the loan was repaid there were no covenant reqeinesion the Credit Facility.

On December 14, 2009 Asta Funding, Inc. and itsislidries other than Palisades XVI, entered int@w&a
revolving credit agreement with Bank Leumi, whidrmits maximum principal advances of up to $6 ailliThe
term of the agreement is through December 31, ZDli@.interest rate is a floating rate equal toBaak Leumi
Reference Rate plus 2%, with a floor of 4.5%. Theent rate is 5.5%. The loan is secured by calteonsisting
of all of the assets of the Company other thandloddalisades XVI. In addition, other collaterad the loan
consists of a pledge by GMS Family Investors, L@ jnvestment company owned 100% by members dbtiye
family in the form of cash and securities with &ueaof 133% of the loan commitment. On December2D09
approximately $3.6 million of the Bank Leumi crelitite was drawn and used to pay off in full the aémng
balance on the credit facility the Company formérhd with the bank group with IDB as agent.

In March 2007, Palisades XVI consummated the Plastfeurchase. The Portfolio Purchase is made up of
predominantly credit card accounts and includesaais in collection litigation and accounts as tuch the sellers
have been awarded judgments and other traditidvaabe-offs. The Company’s line of credit with thar® Group
was fully utilized, as modified in February 2007thwthe aggregate deposit of $75 million paid fue Portfolio
Purchase.

The remaining $225 million was paid on March 5, 20§ borrowing approximately $227 million (inclusiof
transaction costs) under a new Receivables Fingraimeement entered into by Palisades XVI with goma
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financial institution as the funding source, andgists of debt with full recourse only to Palisad&4, and, as of
June 30, 2008, bore an interest rate of approxignd&9 basis points over LIBOR. The term of thegoral
agreement was three years. All proceeds receivadesult of the net collections from the Portfdfiorchase are
applied to interest and principal of the underlyiogn. The Company made certain representationsvan@nties to
the lender to support the transaction. The PodfBlirchase is serviced by Palisades Collection,,ld @holly
owned subsidiary of the Company, which has als@aged several unrelated subservicers.

On February 20, 2009, the Company entered inté-thieth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreement.
The effect of this Fourth Amendment is, among othargs, to (i) lower the collection rate minimum&1 million
per month (plus interest and fees) as an averagsafih period of three consecutive months, (iivjg® for an
automatic extension of the maturity date from Apf| 2011 to April 30, 2012 should the outstandiatance be
reduced to $25 million or less by April 30, 2011 4iii) permanently waive the previous terminat®rents. The
interest rate remained unchanged at approximagybasis points over LIBOR, subject to automattution in
the future should certain collection milestonesatiained.

As additional credit support for repayment by Radiss XVI of its obligations under the Receivablemfcing
Agreement and as an inducement for BMO to entertimt Fourth Amendment, the Company provided BMO a
limited recourse, subordinated guaranty, securetthéyyssets of the Company, in an amount not teezkc
$8 million plus reasonable costs of enforcementatigction. Under the terms of the guaranty, BM&Dimot
exercise any recourse against the Company untédhleer of (i) five years from the date of the RbuAmendment
and (ii) the termination of the Company'’s exists&nior lending facility or any successor senioilitstc

The aggregate minimum repayment obligations reduiraler the Fourth Amendment to the Receivables
Financing Agreement entered into on February 209240ith Palisades XVI including interest and prjadifor
fiscal years ending September 30, 2010 and Septed®h@011 (seven months), are $12.0 million an® #illion,
respectively, plus monthly interest and fees. Th&en additional requirement that the balancdeffacility be
reduced to $25 million by April 30, 2011. While tB®mpany believes it will be able to make all payptsaedue
under the new payment schedule, it is likely we mdit be able to reduce the balance of the faditit$25 million by
April 30, 2011, and there is no assurance the Valibe extended. We anticipate working with BMOexrtend the
facility by the expiration date.

On September 30, 2009 and 2008, the outstanditmgdalon the Receivable Financing Agreement loan was
approximately $104.3 million, and $128.6 millioespectively. The average interest rate of the Rabts
Financing Agreement was 4.82% and 6.10% for tleafigear ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, résggct

On April 29, 2008, the Company obtained a subotdthéoan pursuant to a subordinated promissory fnote
the Family Entity. The Family Entity is a greateah 5% shareholder of the Company beneficially ahared
controlled by Arthur Stern, the Chairman Emeritiithe Company, Gary Stern, the President, ChairamhChief
Executive Officer of the Company, and members eirtfamilies. The loan is in the aggregate princgraount of
$8,246,493, bears interest at a rate of 6.25%nuaura, is payable interest only each quarter usstinaturity date ¢
January 9, 2010, subject to prior repayment indithe Company’s senior loan facility with a cortgan of banks.
Interest expense on this loan was $515,000 foy¢lae ended September 30, 2009.

The Family Entity loan has been extended until Ddwper 31, 2010 with a new interest rate (subsegoent
January 9, 2010) of 10.0% per annum.

The subordinated loan was incurred by the Compamgdolve certain issues with a significant senvice
Proceeds of the subordinated loan were used taeetthe balance due on our line of credit with tla@BGroup on
June 13, 2008. This facility is secured by subslintall of the assets of the Company and its &libses, other
than the assets of Palisades XVI, which was seggrfitanced by BMO.

As of September 30, 2009, our cash decreased $illi@nto $2.4 million from $3.6 million at Septerab30,
2008, including an $8,000 positive effect of foregxchange on cash. The decrease in cash duririgtheyear
ended September 30, 2009, was due to a decremstiimcome for the period, partially offset by anrease in cash
flows from investing and financing activities.
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Net cash provided by operating activities was $32ilson during the fiscal year ended SeptemberZm9,
compared to net cash provided by operating acwitf $55.8 million for the fiscal year ended Sepier 30, 2008.
The decrease in net cash provided by operatingitesi virtually mirrors the change in net incondjusted for non-
cash items. Net cash provided by investing actisitvas $57.4 million during the fiscal year endedt&mber 30,
2009, as compared to net cash used by investingt&st of $44.6 million during the fiscal year estil
September 30, 2008. The increase in net cash @y investing activities was primarily due to tlecrease in
the purchase of accounts acquired for liquidationng the fiscal year ended September 30, 200%iafigroffset by
a decrease in collections during the same perietichish used in financing activities was $91.1liomlduring the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, as compareabh used in financing activities of $101.3 miilin the prior
period. The change in net cash used by financitigities was primarily due to a smaller pay dowrdebt during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 comparttt in the prior period.

Our cash requirements have been and will contiadeetsignificant and we have depended on external
financing to acquire consumer receivables and d@éna business. Significant requirements inclubayments
under our debt facilities, purchase of consumegivable portfolios, interest payments, costs ingdhin the
collections of consumer receivables, and taxeadttition, dividends are paid if approved by the i8lazf Directors.
Acquisitions have been financed primarily througistt flows from operating activities and a crediilfy. We
believe we will be less dependent on a credititgdih the short-term as our cash flow from opearas will be
sufficient to purchase portfolios and operate th&iiess. However, as the collection environmengies
challenging, we may seek additional funding.

Our business model affords us the ability to setloaints on an opportunistic basis. While we hawe no
consummated any significant sales from our PodfBlirchase, we launched a sales effort in ordattéonpt to
enhance our cash flow and pay down our debt faBler results are slower than expected for a vadgefgctors,
including a slow resale market, similar to the éase in pricing we are seeing in general.

The following table shows the changes in finanoeirables, including amounts paid to acquire nevtfpiios:

Year Ended September 30

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

Balance at beginning of peri $449.C $545.€ $257.0 $172.7 $146.1
Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of buybs 19.€ 49.¢ 440.¢ 200.z 126.C
Cash collections from debtors applied to principgi) (69.7) 81.7) (114.9 (90.9 (59.6)
Cash collections represented by account saleseajiali

principal(1) (8.2 (11.0 (29.7) (23.0 (39.9
Impairments/Portfolio write dow (183.%) (53.2) (9.2 (2.2 —
Effect of foreign exchang 0.4 (0.6) — — —
Balance at end of peric $208.c $449.( $545.¢ $257.2 $172.i

(1) Cash collections applied to principal consistsasftccollections less income recognized on finaaceivables
plus amounts received by us from the sale of corsuateivable portfolios to third partie

(2) In 2007, includes put backs of purchased accoatised to the seller totaling $5.5 millic
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Supplementary Information on Consumer Receivabtefdbios:

Portfolio Purchases

Year Ended September 30

2009 2008 2007
(In millions)
Aggregate Purchase Pri $19.€ $ 49.C $ 440.¢
Aggregate Portfolio Face Amou 577.C 1,605.: 10,891.¢

The prices we pay for our consumer receivable plio are dependent on many criteria includingabe of
the portfolio, the number of third party collectiagencies and attorneys that have been involvétkigollection
process and the geographical distribution of théfgla. When we pay higher prices for portfoliohieh are
performing or fresher, we believe it is not at faerifice of our expected returns. Price fluctuagiéor portfolio

purchases from quarter to quarter or year to yeapamarily indicative of the overall mix of theges of portfolios
we are purchasing.

Schedule of Portfolios by Income Recognition Categp

September 30, 2009 September 30, 2008 September 30, 2007

Cost Interest Cost Interest Cost Interest
Recovery Method Recovery Method  Recovery Method
Portfolios  Portfolios  Portfolios  Portfolios Portfolios  Portfolios

(In millions)
Original Purchase Price (at period e $ 4422 9% 772.¢8$ 405¢$ 789.E % 101.1$ 1,045.
Cumulative Aggregate Managed Portfolios (at
period end 13,884.! 17,725.¢ 12,053.. 18,980. 3,961.! 25,464.
Receivable Carrying Value (at period el 137.€ 70.€ 245t 203.t 32.C 513.¢
Finance Income Earned (for the respective pel 2.5 67.7 1.2 114.C 2.2 136.2
Total Cash Flows (for the respective peri 47.C 100.4 24.¢ 183.( 21.2 260.¢

The original purchase price reflects what we paidlie receivables from 1998 through the end oféispectiv
period. The cumulative aggregate managed porthi@iance is the original aggregate amount owed &ytrower:
at the end of the respective period. Additionaledénces between year to year period end balanagsesult from
the transfer of portfolios between the interesthndtand the cost recovery method. We purchase omrsu
receivables at substantial discounts from the &weunt. We record finance income on our receivalheter either
the cost recovery or interest method. The receévabirying value represents the current basiseémebeivables
after collections and amortization of the origipate.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Collections
Represented Finance
By account Income
Year Sales Recognized
2009 $ 8,662,00! $ 3,085,001
2008 20,395,00 9,361,001
2007 54,193,00 25,164,00
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Portfolio Performance (1)

The following table summarizes our historical politi purchase price and cash collections on intarethod
portfolios on an annual vintage basis since Oct@b@001 through September 30, 2009.

Total
Net Cash Estimated
Collections Estimated Total Collections
Purchase Purchase Including Remaining Estimated as a Percentage
Period Price(2) Cash Sales(3 Collections(4) Collections(5) of Purchase Price
2001 $ 65,120,000 $105,427,00 $ — $105,427,00 162%
2002 36,557,00 47,955,00 — 47,955,00 131%
2003 115,626,00 209,396,00 1,392,00! 210,788,00 182%
2004 103,743,00 177,670,00 682,00( 178,352,00 172%
2005 126,023,00 198,857,00 10,931,00 209,788,00 16€%
2006(6) 163,392,00 225,327,00 22,479,00 247,806,00 152%
2007(7) 109,235,00 73,602,00 37,865,00 111,467,00 102%
2008 26,626,00 25,661,00 3,936,00! 29,597,00 111%
2009 19,129,00 3,043,001 19,240,00 22,283,00 11€%

(1) Total collections do not represent full collectimfthe Company with respect to this or any othesan

(2) Purchase price refers to the cash paid to a geleecquire a portfolio less the purchase pricenaéadl by a seller
due to the return of n-compliant accounts (also defined as-backs), plus third party commissic

(3) Cash collections include: net collections from third-party collection agencies and attorneys,emibns from
our ir-house efforts and collections represented by adsales

(4) Does not include estimated collections from poitfothat are zero bas
(5) Total estimated collections refer to the actualaaesth collections, including cash sales, plus eggohremaining

collections.

(6) Four portfolios purchased in 2006 with an aggregatrehase price of $36,845,000 were reclassifieoh fthe
interest method to the cost recovery method duigstgl year 2009. The following table describesithpact of

the reclassification on the year 201

Total
Net Cash Estimated
Collections Estimated Total Collections
Purchase Including Remaining Estimated as a Percentage
Price Cash Sales Collections Collections of Purchase Prict
As reported 200 $200,237,00 $149,368,00 $ 160,913,000 $310,281,00 155%
Less: Portfolio purchases
transferred to cost recovery
method in 200¢ 36,845,00 15,112,00 34,539,001 49,651,00 135%
Interest method Portfolic $163,392,00 $134,256,00 $ 126,374,000 $260,630,00 16(%
2008 and 2009 Activit 91,071,00 (103,895,00) (12,824,00)
As reported 200 $163,392,00 $225,327,00 $ 22,479,000 $247,806,00 152%
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(7) The Portfolio Purchase was reclassified from thergst method to the cost recovery method duriagtiid
quarter of fiscal year 2008. The following tablesdgbes the impact of the reclassification on teary2007

Total
Net Cash Estimated
Collections Estimated Total Collections
Purchase Including Remaining Estimated as a Percentage
Price Cash Sales Collections Collections of Purchase Prict
As reported 200 $ 384,850,00 $ 69,409,000 $ 460,205,00 $529,614,00 13&%
Less: Portfolio Purchas (275,615,00) (45,499,00) (334,701,00) (380,200,00) (136)%
Interest method Portfolios withc
Portfolio Purchas-2007 $ 109,235,00 $ 23,910,000 $ 125,504,00 $ 149,414,00 137%
2008 and 2009 Activit — 49,692,00 (87,639,00) (37,947,00)
As reported 200 $ 109,235,00 $ 73,602,000 $ 37,865,00 $111,467,00 102%

We do not anticipate collecting the majority of fhechased principal amounts. Accordingly, theed#hce
between the carrying value of the portfolios areldghoss receivables is not indicative of futurarfioe income from
these accounts acquired for liquidation. Since welpased these accounts at significant discourgtsnticipate
collecting only a portion of the face amounts.

For the year ended September 30, 2009, we recabfimnce income of $1.9 million under the cosiorary
method because we collected $1.9 million in exoésair purchase price on certain of these portfolin addition,
we earned $68.2 million of finance income underititerest method based on actuarial computatiorishym turn,
are based on actual collections during the penmbamn what we project to collect in future periofsring the year
ended September 30, 2009, we purchased portfoltbsaw aggregate purchase price of $19.6 milliothaiface
value (gross contracted amount) of $577.0 million.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC 105 Generallyeptad Accounting Principles, (“ASC 105"). Under
ASC 105, The FASB Accounting Standards Codificafft@odification”) is now the source of authoritagiv
U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied bggovernmental entities. Rules and interpretiveasés of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) uadéhority of the federal securities laws are @gorces of
authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. On the etifee date of ASC 105, the Codification supersealkthen-
existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standa&ti®ther non-grandfathered n@EC accounting literature r
included in the Codification is now nathoritative. ASC 105 is effective for financightements issued for inter
and annual periods ending after September 15, 20@8e FASB’s views, the issuance of ASC 105 dmad t
Codification will not change GAAP, except for thasenpublic nongovernmental entities that must npplyathe
American Institute to Certified Public Accountaitischnical Inquiry Service Section 5100, “Revenuedgmition”
paragraphs 38-76. The adoption of ASC 105 has teflatted in the Company’s consolidated financiatements.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@issued FASB Statement 167, Amendments to FASB
Interpretation No. 46(R), which is not yet reflatia the FASB ASC, to improve how enterprises aotdor and
disclose their involvement with variable interesties (VIE's), which are special-purpose entitiaad other
entities whose equity at risk is insufficient othacertain characteristics. Among other thingstedient 167 chang
how an entity determines whether it is the primaepeficiary of a variable interest entity (VIE) antlether that
VIE should be consolidated. The new Statement reguin entity to provide significantly more discles about its
involvement with VIEs. As a result, the Company treemprehensively review its involvements with Vigsd
potential VIEs, including entities previous consetkto be qualifying special purpose entities,atedmine the
effect on its consolidated financial statements rtated disclosures. Statement 167 is effectivef #ise beginning
of a reporting entity’s first annual reporting petithat begins after November 15, 2009 and forimt@eriods
within the first annual reporting period. Earligrpdication is
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prohibited. The Company does not believe that thaption of Statement 167 will have a significarfeef on its
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 855, Subseglegents, (“ASC 855”) to incorporate the accougtin
and disclosures requirements for subsequent eirgot& AAP. ASC 855 introduces new terminology, def a dat
through which management must evaluate subsequentss and lists the circumstances under whichnéityenust
recognize and disclose events or transactions oonguafter the balance-sheet date. The Companytad@sC 855
as of June 30, 2009, which was the required effectate. The Company evaluated its September 89, @ancial
statements for subsequent events through Decer@b20Q9.

In April 2009 the FASB issued ASC 718, Compensatietstock Compensation, (“ASC 718"). ASC 718
expands disclosures for fair value of financiatimsents that are within the scope of FASB statdrfenvalue
disclosures in interim period reports. ASC 718ffedive for interim reporting periods ending affeme 15, 2009.
ASC 718 expresses the views of the staff regartfiagise of a “simplified” method in developing atimate of
expected term of “plain vanilla” share optionsphrticular, the staff indicated in ASC 718 thawill accept a
company’s election to use the simplified methodardless of whether the company has sufficientimédion to
make more refined estimates of expected term. étithe ASC 718 was issued, the staff believedrime detailed
external information about employee exercise beahrge.g., employee exercise patterns by industdycarother
categories of companies) would, over time, becapadily available to companies. Therefore, the staffed in AS!
718 that it would not expect a company to use itmglified method for share option grants after Draber 31,
2007. The staff understands that such detailedrimdtion about employee exercise behavior mightiagt been
widely available by December 31, 2007. Accordingie staff will continue to accept, under certancumstances,
the use of the simplified method beyond Decembef8@7. This portion of ASC 718 does not have aenlt
impact on the Company.

Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a materigdaet on our results of operations for the yeargdnd
September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Seasonality and Trends

Our management believes that our operations magrtee extent, be affected by high delinquency raneksby
lower recoveries on consumer receivables acquoetiquidation during or shortly following certaholiday period:
and during the summer months. In addition, on doocathe market for acquiring distressed receivabtess becom
more competitive thereby possibly diminishing obility to acquire such distressed receivablestaaetive prices
in such periods

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

We are exposed to various types of market riskértormal course of business, including the imp#aiterest
rate changes and changes in corporate tax ratemtérial change in these rates could adverselgtafier operating
results and cash flows. At September 30, 2009Coedit Facility, all of which is variable rate debtd an
outstanding balance of $18.3 million and our Realgies Financing Agreement, all of which is variatalee debt,
had an outstanding balance of $104.3 million. AaSis-point increase in interest rates would hageeased our
annual interest expense by approximately $400,@8@don the average debt obligation outstandinggitiie
fiscal year. We do not currently invest in derivatifinancial or commodity instruments.
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Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Data.

The Financial Statements of the Company, the Nb®to and the Report of Independent RegisterétdPu
Accounting Firms thereon required by this item appén this report on the pages indicated in thieviong index:

Index to Audited Financial Statements Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings F-2
Consolidated Balance She— September 30, 2009 and 2C F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operati— Years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and F-5
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity — Years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl— Years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-8

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys chief executive officer and chief financial offichave reviewed and evaluated the effective
of the Company’s disclosure controls and proced(asslefined in Exchange Act Rules 240.13a-15(d) an
240.15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period endedefeher 30, 2009. Based on that evaluation, theg bancluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and proasias of the end of the period covered by thisrtege effective
in providing them with timely material informatioelating to the Company required to be disclosetiénreports
the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establj and maintaining adequate internal control ove
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(fidar the Exchange Act). Under the supervision aitidl tlve
participation of the Company’s management, inclgdia principal executive officer and principaldimcial officer,
the Company conducted an assessment of the e#aetg of its internal control over financial repat In making
this assessment, the Company used the criterfarsietoy the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe
Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integdakgamework. Based on management’s assessment the
Company believes that, as of September 30, 208;timpany’s internal control over financial repugtis
effective based on those criteria.

The Companys internal control system was designed to provedsonable assurance regarding the reliabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegenerally
accepted accounting principles in the U.S. The Gomgjs internal control over financial reporting indes those
policies and procedures that:

() pertain to the maintenance of records thatgasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet th
transactions and dispositions of the assets oftmpany;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accourgimciples generally accepted in the U.S., and thegipts
and expenditures of the Company are being madein@gcordance with authorization of management and
directors of the Company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prtawer timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose
or disposition of the Comparg/assets that could have a material effect ondhedidated financial statemer
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There are inherent limitations to the effectivengfsany control system. A control system, no matier well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasomeislerance that its objectives are met. No evaluati controls
can provide absolute assurance that all controksand instances of fraud, if any, within the Camphave been
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation éé&fveness to future periods are subject to thlethiat controls
may become inadequate because of changes in anwddr because the degree of compliance with theigmand
procedures may deteriorate.

Our independent registered public accounting fi@rgnt Thornton LLP, audited the Compasiriternal contre
over financial reporting as of September 30, 20t®their report dated December 29, 2009 expressenhgualifiec
opinion on our internal control over financial refiag and is included in this Item 9A.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There have not been any changes in the Compartgimai controls over financial reporting identified
connection with an evaluation thereof that occudedng the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter thatdnanaterially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf the Company’s internal control over financigborting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiafties “Company”) internal control over financiaporting
as of September 30, 2009, based on criteria eshedaliininternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal cohbver financial reporting and for its assessnudrihe
effectiveness of internal control over financighogting, included in the accompanying Managemehitiaual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti@gir responsibility is to express an opinion o @ompany’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financieporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and ¢ipgraffectiveness of internal control based onabsessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we comsldercessary in the circumstances. We believethaudit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwdipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiariesintained, in all material respects, effectivielinal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 20@8ed on criteria establishediimernal Control-Integrated
Frameworkissued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shedistaf Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Septerd®e2009 and
2008 and the related consolidated statements aabpes, stockholders’ equity and comprehensivernmne, and
cash flows for each of the years in the two-yeaiopeended September 30, 2009, and our report dated
December 29, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
New York, New York

December 29, 2009
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Iltem 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventz.

Directors and Executive Officers

Information contained under the caption “Directdsgecutive Officers, and Corporate Governance”un o
definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed with therfmission on or before January 28, 2010, is incaigal by
reference in response to this Iltem 10.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for our Senicarkéial Officers that is incorporated into this FattK in
Exhibit 14.1.

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

Information contained under the caption “Executi@npensation” in our definitive Proxy Statementhé&o
filed with the Commission on or before JanuaryZ®10, is incorporated by reference in responshisoltem 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afhinagement and Related Stockholder Matte

Information contained under the caption “Securityr@rship of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managefnen
in our definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed witlte Commission on or before January 28, 201®csrporated by
reference in response to this ltem 12.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence.

Information contained under the caption “Certaitaenships and Related Transactions” in our datfiai
Proxy Statement, to be filed with the Commissioroobefore January 28, 2010, is incorporated bgregfce in
response to this Item 13.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

Information contained under the caption “Principatounting Fees and Services” in our definitivex§ro
Statement to be filed with the Commission on oobeflanuary 28, 2010 is incorporated by referemcesponse to
this ltem 14.

Part IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibits designated by the symbol * are filed viltiis Annual Report on Form 10-K. All exhibits nat s
designated are incorporated by reference to a filileg as indicated.

Exhibits designated by the symbol T are managenwnitacts or compensatory plans or arrangementsitba
required to be filed with this report pursuanthistitem 15.

The Company undertakes to furnish to any stockm@deequesting a copy of any of the following éxisi
upon payment to us of the reasonable costs incbyreds in furnishing any such exhibit.

(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport
1. Financial Statements — See Index to Consolidaieancial Statements in Part I, ltem 8
2. Exhibits
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Exhibit
Number
3.1
3.2
3.3
10.1
10.2
10.3
104

105

10.6
10.7

10.8
109
1C0.10

10.11
10.12
10.13
1C0.14
10.15
10.16
10.17

10.18
10.19

10.20
10.21

10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27

10.28

Certificate of Incorporation.(1

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation|

By laws.(2)

Asta Funding, Inc 1995 Stock Option Plan as Ame(itdc

Asta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan(

Asta Funding, Inc. Equity Compensation Plan(

Third Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ages¢aiated May 11, 2004, between the Company
and Israel Discount Bank of NY/(

Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Aggaedated July 10, 2006, between the Company
and Israel Discount Bank of NY(

Lease agreement between the Company and 210 SAdsearue LLC dated July 29, 2005(

Receivables Finance Agreement dated March 2, 266veden the Company and the Bank of Montreal
(10)

Subservicing Agreement between the Company an8uheervicer dated March 2, 2007(.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 5, PIX

Third Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restiatesh and Security Agreement dated March 30,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount B&)

Fourth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restaiad and Security Agreement dated May 10,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount Ba&)

Fifth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restateth and Security Agreement dated June 27,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount Bah)

First Amendment to the Receivables Finance Agreeéweied July 1, 2007 between the Company and
Bank of Montreal(15

Sixth Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restabarh and Security Agreement dated December 4,
2007, between the Company and Israel Discount B#)

Second Amendment to the Receivables Financing Ageeedated December 27, 2007(

Third Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agresndated May 19, 2008(1

Amended and Restated Servicing Agreement dated18a2008 between the Company and The Bank of
Montreal(19)

Subordinated Promissory Note between Asta Funditegand Asta Group, Inc. dated April 29, 2008(
Seventh Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Restai@n Agreement, Dated February 20, 2009
between the Company and IDB(Z

Form of Amended and Restated Revolving Note betwesta Funding and IDB, as lending agent(
Fourth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agm dated February 20, 2009 between the
Company and Bank of Montreal(2

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement datedugep 20, 2009 to Bank of Montreal(2
Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetddigebruary 20, 2009(2

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement datedugep 20, 2009 to Asta Group, Inc.(z
Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetddaebruary 20, 2009 to Asta Group.(

Form of Intercreditor Agreement between Asta Fugdind IDB as lending agent(2

Amended and Restated Management Agreement, datddlasuary 16, 2009, between Palisades
Collection, L.L.C., and [*].(29

Amended and Restated Master Servicing Agreemeteddes of January 16, 2009, between Palisades
Collection, L.L.C., and [*](30
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Exhibit
Number
10.29 First Amendment to Amended and Restated MastericegvAgreement, dated as of September 16,
2007, by and among Palisades Collection, L.L.Cd, [&h and [*](31)
10.30 Consulting Services Agreement dated November 309 d@tween Cameron E. Williams and the
Company.(32
10.31 Loan Agreement Between Asta Funding and Bank Ledated December 14, 2009.(:
10.32 Indemnification agreement between Asta Funding@kts Family Investors LLC.
141 Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officer
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*
23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*
311 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive O#ig Gary Stern, pursuant to Section 302 of the Swrb-
Oxley Act of 2002.*
31.2 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Offic Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 302 ef th
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*
32.1 Certification of the Registrant’'s Chief Executivéfi€er, Gary Stern, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*
32.2 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief FinanciaffiCer, Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 90éhe
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.*

(1) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2
(File No. 3:-97212).

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the yeaded
September 30, 199

(3) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the ¢hre
months ended March 31, 20(

(4) Not used

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢'s Current Report oForm &K filed May 19, 2004
(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢'s Current Report oForm &K filed March 3, 2006
(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading's Current Report oForm &K filed July 12, 2006
(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading's Current Report oForm €K filed August 2, 2005
(9) Not usec

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the éhre
months ended March 31, 20(

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astidiin¢’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K filed February 9, 200

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astimdiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended March 31, 20t

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the FEhre
Months Ended March 31, 20t

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the FEhre
Months Ended June 30, 20

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Fhre
Months Ended June 30, 20(

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astading’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Decembey
2007

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astiadiing’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Ehre
Months Ended March 31, 20t
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(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Astimding’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thesthr
months ended March 31, 20

(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Astadin¢ s Current Report oForm &K filed May 1, 200¢

(21) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Astmding’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(22) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(23) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(24) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(25) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(26) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(27) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Astmding’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(28) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(29) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(30) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Astading’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(31) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Astmding’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
September 30, 20(

(32) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Astmdiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December
2009

(33) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadiing’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Decemb@r
2009
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgfeeAct, the Registrant caused this report to tpeesi on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

By: /s/ Gary Ster

Gary Stern
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: December 29, 2009

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiheen signed below by the following persons oraletf
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary Stern Chairman of the Board, President, and December 29, 20(
Gary Sterr Chief Executive Officer
/s/ Robert J. Michel Chief Financial Officer December 29, 20(
Robert J. Michel Principal Financial Officer and

Accounting Officer

/sl Arthur Stern Chairman Emeritus and Director December 29, 20(
Arthur Stern

/s/ Herman Badillo Director December 29, 20(
Herman Badillc

/s/ Edward Celano Director December 29, 20(
Edward Celant

/sl Harvey Leibowitz Director December 29, 20(
Harvey Leibowitz

/s/ David Slackman Director December 29, 20(
David Slackmar

/s/ Louis A. Piccolo Director December 29, 20(
Louis A. Piccola
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries (t
“Company”) as of September 30, 2009 and 2008 amdelated consolidated statements of operatiooskisblders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flowedoh of the years in the two-year period endedeBdger 30,
2009. These consolidated financial statementsharesisponsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgesotidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighagio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Asta Funding, Inc. and sulmiés as of September 30, 2009 and 2008 and sudsef their
operations and their cash flows for the years ef®tgatember 30, 2009 and 2008, in conformity wittoaating
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidsaiigernal control over financial reporting asSgptember 30,
2009, based on criteria establishedniternal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis&DSO) and our report dated December 29, 2009%egpd
an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
December 29, 2009




Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséaitts of operations, stockholders’ equity and ¢ksts of
Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries for the yeaeenSeptember 30, 2007. These consolidated finastai@ments
are the responsibility of the Company’s managent@uat.responsibility is to express an opinion orsthe
consolidated financial statements based on out.audi

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightrigoa
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurerifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfieancial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements enumeratsale present fairly, in all material respects, ¢bnsolidated
results of operations and consolidated cash fldwssta Funding, Inc for the year ended SeptembeB07, in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

/sl EISNER LLP

New York, New York
December 27, 2007
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30

2009 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2.385000 $ 3,623,00
Restricted cas 2,130,001 3,047,001
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation @trealizable value 208,261,00 449,012,00
Due from third party collection agencies and attys 2,573,001 5,070,001
Prepaid and income taxes receive 47,727,00 —
Investment in ventur 168,00( 555,00(
Furniture and equipment (net of accumulated deatieci of $2,758,000 in 2009

and $2,367,000 in 200: 538,00( 762,00(
Deferred income taxe 24,072,00 15,567,00
Other asset 2,902,001 3,500,001

Total asset $290,756,00 $481,136,00
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Liabilities
Debt $122,622,00 $213,485,00
Subordinated del— related party 8,246,001 8,246,001
Other liabilities 2,166,00 4,618,001
Dividends payabl 286,00( 571,00(
Income taxes payab — 6,315,00!

Total liabilities 133,320,00 233,235,00
Commitments and contingenci
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 5,00,3sue— none
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000sb@@es, issued and

outstanding 14,272,357 shares in 2009 and 14,286m13008 143,00( 143,00(
Additional paic-in capital 70,189,00 69,130,00
Retained earning 87,058,00 178,925,00
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 46,00( (297,000

Total stockholder equity 157,436,00 247,901,00
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $290,756,00  $481,136,00

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended September 30

2009 2008 2007
Revenues:
Finance income, nt $ 70,156,000 $115,295,00 $138,356,00
Other income 134,00( 200,00( 2,181,001
70,290,00 115,495,00 140,537,00
General and administrative expen 25,915,00 29,561,00 25,450,00
Interest expense (2009 — Related party $515,000;
2008— Related part— $154,000) 8,452,001 17,881,00 18,246,00
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fpridiation 183,500,00 53,160,00 9,097,00!

217,867,00 100,602,00 52,793,00

(Loss) income before equity in earnings in venaumd income

taxes (147,577,00) 14,893,00 87,744,00
Equity in earnings in ventul 65,00( 55,00( 225,00(
(Loss) income before income tax (benefit) expe (147,512,00) 14,948,00 87,969,001
Income tax (benefit) expen (56,787,00) 6,119,00! 35,703,00
Net (loss) income $ (90,725,00) $ 8,829,000 $ 52,266,00
Basic net (loss) income per shar $ (6.3) $ 0.6z $ 3.7¢
Diluted net (loss) income per shar: $ (6.3 $ 061 $ 3.5€
Weighted average shares outstandin¢

Basic 14,272,42 14,138,65 13,807,83

Diluted 14,272,42 14,553,34 14,691,86

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
For the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and20

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in Retained  Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total

Balance, September 30, 20C 13,755,15 $138,00( $61,803,00 $122,321,00 $ — $184,262,00
Exercise of option 95,001 1,00C 1,328,001 1,329,00!
Restricted stock grante 68,00(
Stock based compensation expe 1,140,00! 1,140,00i
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non

qualified stock option 759,00( 759,00(
Dividends (2,221,00i) (2,221,001
Net income 52,266,00 52,266,00
Balance, September 30, 20C 13,918,15 139,00( 65,030,00 172,366,00 — 237,535,00
Exercise of option 300,00( 3,00( 422.,00( 425,00(
Restricted stock grante 58,00( 1,00¢ (1,000 —
Stock based compensation expe 1,013,00i 1,013,001
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non

qualified stock options and vesting of

restricted stocl 2,666,001 2,666,00!
Dividends (2,270,00i) (2,270,00I)
Other comprehensive loss(net of tax benefit

of $202,000 (297,001) (297,000
Net income 8,829,001 8,829,00!
Balance, September 30, 20C 14,276,15 143,000 69,130,00 178,925,00 (297,00() 247,901,00
Exercise of option 533 1,00(C 1,00(C
Restricted stock forfeite (4,339
Stock based compensation expe 984,00( 984,00(
Tax benefit arising from exercise of non-

qualified stock options and vesting of

restricted stocl 74,00( 74,00(
Dividends (1,142,00i) (1,142,001
Other comprehensive income (net of tax of

$233,000 343,00( 343,00(
Net (loss) (90,725,00) (90,725,00)

Balance, September 30, 20C

14,272,35 $143,00( $70,189,00 $ 87,058,00 $

46,000 $157,436,00

Comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

Net (loss) incomi

Other comprehensive income (loss), net o-foreign currency translatic

Comprehensive (loss) incor

2009 2008

$(90,725,00) $8,829,00I

343,00( (297,000

$(90,382,00) $8,532,00I

Accumulated other comprehensive income (li $

46,000 $ (297,000

There were no elements of other comprehensive irdomthe year ended September 30, 2007.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30

2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) incomt $(90,725,00) $ 8,829,000 $ 52,266,00
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,664,00! 1,278,00! 841,00(
Deferred income taxe (8,505,00i) (2,634,001 (4,772,001
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired €pridiation 183,500,00 53,160,00 9,097,00!
Stock based compensati 984,00( 1,013,001 1,140,001
Changes in
Income taxes payable and receive (54,042,00) (1,846,00i) (2,216,001
Due from third party collection agencies and aggs 2,497,001 (161,000) (1,847,001
Other asset (655,000) (136,000) (2,324,00i)
Other liabilities (2,193,001 (3,725,001 3,390,00!
Net cash provided by operating activit 32,525,00! 55,778,00 55,575,00
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordajian (19,552,00) (49,886,00) (440,895,00)
Principal payments received from collection of aamer receivables
acquired for liquidatior 71,936,00 81,645,00 114,421,00
Principal payments received from collections repnésd by sales of
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal 5,317,00! 11,034,00 29,029,00
Effect of foreign exchange on consumer receivaabegiired for
liquidation (542,000) 658,00( —
Cash distribution received from ventt 387,00( 1,485,00! 3,925,00!
Purchase of other investmel — — (5,777,00i)
Collections on other investmer — — 8,251,00!
Capital expenditure (187,000 (361,000 (163,00()
Net cash provided by (used) in investing activi 57,359,00! 44,575,00 (291,209,00)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 1,00( 425,00( 1,329,00!
Tax benefit arising from exercise of r-qualified stock option 74,00( 2,666,00! 759,00(
Change in restricted ca 917,00( 2,647,001 (5,694,00i)
Dividends paic (1,427,00i) (2,256,001 (7,716,001
(Repayments) borrowings of debt, | (90,695,00) (113,001,00) 243,655,00
Advance under subordinated d— related party — 8,246,00! —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (91,130,00) (101,273,00) 232,333,00
Net decrease in cash and cash equivaler (1,246,00i) (920,000) (3,301,001
Effect of foreign exchange on cas 8,00( 18,00( —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 3,623,00! 4,525,00! 7,826,00!
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $ 2,385,000 $ 3,623,000 $ 4,525,000
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest (Related Party: 2009 — $472,000
200— $112,000) $ 9,082,000 $ 19,784,00 $ 16,644,00
Income taxe: $ 5,887,000 $ 8,282,000 $ 41,932,00

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE A —THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[1] The Company:

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngignificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctibed_LC,
Palisades Acquisition XVI, LLC (“Palisades XVI"),ATIV Recovery Solutions LLC (“VATIV”) and other
subsidiaries, not all wholly owned, and not constédematerial (the “Company”) is engaged in the hess of
purchasing, managing for its own account and senyidistressed consumer receivables, includinggethoff
receivables, semi-performing receivables and petifg receivables. The primary charged-off receigalare
accounts that have been written-off by the origirmand may have been previously serviced by da@leagencies.
Semi-performing receivables are accounts wheredhéor is currently making partial or irregular rifug
payments, but the accounts may have been writtelyahe originators. Performing receivables arecants where
the debtor is making regular monthly payments thay or may not have been delinquent in the pastr&ised
consumer receivables are the unpaid debts of iV to banks, finance companies and other qpeaiders. A
large portion of the Company’s distressed consuergivables are MasterCard(R), Visa(R), and othedticcard
accounts which were charged-off by the issuerafor-payment. The Company acquires these portfalios
substantial discounts from their face values. Tisealints are based on the characteristics (isaoeount size,
debtor location and age of debt) of the underlydngounts of each portfolio.

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatlgepted
in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”) and industry giiees.

[1A] Liquidity:

The Company’s cash requirements have been andamtinue to be significant. In the past we haveetdejed
upon external financing to acquire consumer redBésa fund operating expenses, interest and inderes. If
approved, dividends paid is also a significantafseash. As our revolving debt level decreasesgdependency on
external sources to fund the acquisition of poid®tebt, pay operating expenses, dividends irtarestaxes
should be greatly reduced over the next 12 moikfisctive December 14, 2009, the Eighth Amendmerthé
Fourth Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (thediCFacility”) with a consortium of banks (“The Bla
Group”) has been repaid and replaced with a sleom-tredit facility (the “Short-Term Credit Fagyfi) with
another lending institution. This Short Term Crdshicility will limit our ability to acquire signifiantly-sized
consumer receivable portfolios; however our abtiityurchase small- to medium-sized portfolios lsariunded out
of operating cash flows, with the ability of thed®hTerm Credit Facility to fund larger portfolidgfsthe right
opportunity is available. See Note O — Subsequerhis for more information. As of December 29, 2068
outstanding amount on the Bank of Montreal (“BM®¢ility (“Receivables Financing Agreement”) thatdnced
the $6.9 billion in face value receivables for aghase price of $300 million, (the “Portfolio Puaste”) is
$99.7 million. We continue to pay down the balaffoen the collections of the Portfolio Purchase.

Net collections decreased $60.6 million or 28.886rfi$208.0 million in fiscal year 2008 to $147.4lmoi in
fiscal year 2009. Although the Company’s collecsiaeteriorated from the prior year, the Companiebes its net
cash collections over the next twelve months wélisifficient to cover its operating expenses, serdebt and pay
interest. See Note D - Debt and Subordinated Dalbted party, for further information.

[2] Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include twants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiels.
The Company’s investment in a venture, represeraiff% interest, is accounted for using the equitthod. All
significant intercompany balances and transacti@ve been eliminated in consolidation.
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE A —THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies — (CONTINUED)
[3] Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:

The Company considers all highly liquid investmeanith a maturity of three months or less at theedxt
purchase to be cash equivalents.

The Company maintains cash balances in depositstititions mandated by the Company’s lenders.
Management periodically evaluates the creditwogkinof such institutions. Cash balances exceed&ddeposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limits from time tone.

On February 5, 2007, Palisades Acquisition XV, LlaGyholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, enténéal
a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Portfolio Risetgreement”) with Great Seneca Financial Cotfmraand
other affiliates (collectively, the “Sellers”), uadwhich we agreed to acquire the Portfolio Pureas a purchase
price of $300 million plus 20% of any future NetyReents (as defined in the Portfolio Purchase Agezen
received by the Company after the Company hasweddéiet Payments equal to 150% of the purchase phs
our cost of funds, which recovery has not yet o@airThe Portfolio Purchase (now owned by Palisades
XVI) predominantly consists of credit card accousmtsl includes some accounts in collection litigatimd accounts
as to which the Sellers have been awarded judgmEméstransaction was consummated on March 5, ZD87.
finance this purchase, the Company entered inteciRables Financing Agreement with BMO as the ifvgnd
source, consisting of debt with full recourse awyPalisades XVI, and bearing an interest rate whjgproximates
170 basis points over LIBOR. The term of the agre®mwvas originally three years. All assets of Ralés XVI,
principally the Portfolio Purchase, are pledgededoure such borrowing.

As part of the Receivables Financing Agreemenpralteeds received as a result of the net collexfimm the
Portfolio Purchase are to be applied to interedtm@imcipal of the underlying loan. The restrictath at
September 30, 2009 represents cash on hand, stidbtaadl of which is designated to be paid to éemder
subsequent to September 30, 2009. The lender hadatea in which depository institutions the castoibe
maintained.

[4] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabigeld adjustments:
Income Recognition

The Company accounts for its investment in consueegivables acquired for liquidation using therast
method under the guidance of FASB Accounting Stedsl€odification (“ASC”) 310, Receivables — Loamxla
Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Creditafity, (“ASC 310"). In ASC 310 static pools of aemts are
established. These pools are aggregated basedtaim@mmon risk criteria. Each static pool isareted at cost
and is accounted for as a single unit for the reitmm of income, principal payments and loss psai.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to thed funless
replaced by the seller) or removed from the ponlgss sold or returned to the seller). ASC 310ireguhat the
excess of the contractual cash flows over expemst flows not be recognized as an adjustmentvehree or
expense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310 inifi@bzes the internal rate of return (“IRR"), estiethwhen the
accounts receivable are purchased, as the basialieequent impairment testing. Significant inoeeas actual, or
expected future cash flows may be recognized patisiedy through an upward adjustment of the IRRrave
portfolio’s remaining life. Any increase to the IRRen becomes the new benchmark for impairmerintedtnder
ASC 310, rather than lowering the estimated IRfRéf collection estimates are not received or ptefeto be
received, the carrying value of a pool would betten down to maintain the then current IRR.

Finance income is recognized on cost recovery @i after the carrying value has been fully rexred
through collections or amounts written down.
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE A —THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies — (CONTINUED)

[4] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: — (Continued)
Impairments and accretable yield adjustments

The Company accounts for its impairments in acamdavith ASC 310, which provides guidance on how to
account for differences between contractual an@éetgal cash flows from an investor’s initial investrhin loans or
debt securities acquired in a transfer if thostedinces are attributable, at least in part, tditality. Increases i
expected cash flows are recognized prospectivebutth an adjustment of the internal rate of retunile decrease
in expected cash flows are recognized as impain&8C 310 makes it more likely that impairmensksand
accretable yield adjustments for portfolios’ perfi@nces which exceed original collection projectiafisbe
recorded, as all downward revisions in collectistireates will result in impairment charges, givea tequirement
that the IRR of the affected pool be held constAsta result of the slower economy and other factioat resulted |
slower collections on certain portfolios, impairneof $183.5 million were recorded in fiscal ye@09, of which
$108.5 million related to the interest method pwits and $75.0 million related to cost recovenyttme portfolios.
During fiscal year 2008 all of the $53.2 millionimpairment charges were recorded to interest nagplootfolios.
Finance income is not recognized on cost recovethad portfolios until the cost of the portfoliofidly recovered
Collection projections are performed on both inderaethod and cost recovery method portfolios. Wétard to th
cost recovery portfolios, if collection projectioimglicate the carrying value will not be recoveeedrite down in
value is required. There were no accretable yidjJdsdments recorded in the fiscal years ended 8d@e30, 2009
and 2008.

In the quarter ended June 30, 2008, the Compangmtisued using the interest method for income gai®mn
under ASC 310 for the Portfolio Purchase. The raitam of income under ASC 310 is dependent onGbepany
having the ability to develop reasonable expeatatif both the timing and amount of cash flowsdabllected. In
the event the Company cannot develop a reasongpéei@tion as to both the timing and amount of ¢hstis
expected to be collected, ASC 310 permits the chamghe cost recovery method. Due to uncertaiméilsged to th
timing of the collections of the older judgmentsghased in this portfolio as a result of the ecoiccgnvironment,
the lack of reasonable delivery of media requéiés|ack of validation of certain account composeand the sale
of the primary servicer (which was commonly owngdle seller), the Company determined that it myér had
the ability to develop a reasonable expectatiahetiming of the cash flows to be collected aretdifiore,
transferred the Portfolio Purchase to the costweigomethod. The Company will recognize income aftgr it has
recovered its carrying value, which, as of Septer30e 2009 was approximately $121.5 million. Theaa be no
assurance as to when or if the carrying valuelv@ltecovered. The change to the cost recovery metas not don
to avoid additional impairment charges. Prior tmgghe cost recovery method, impairment chargesing
$30.3 million were recognized during the first sbonths of fiscal year 2008.

Our analysis of the timing and amount of cash flbwvbe generated by our portfolio purchases aredan the
following attributes:

* the type of receivable, the location of the delated the number of collection agencies previousnapting
to collect the receivables in the portfolio. We &dound that there are better states to try teecoll
receivables and we factor in both better and wsiaes when establishing our initial cash flow etatons.

« the average balance of the receivables influengeamalysis in that lower average balance portsalénd to
be more collectible in the short-term and highesrage balance portfolios are more appropriate tfiotaw
suit strategy and thus yield better results overddmger term. As we have significant experiend Wwoth
types of balances, we are able to factor thesalbias into our initial expected cash floy
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE A —THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLicies — (CONTINUED)

[4] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: — (Continued)

« the age of the receivables, the number of day® siharge-off, any payments since charge-off, aadtadit
guidelines of the credit originator also repredantors taken into consideration in our estimapoocess .
For example, older receivables might be more diffiand/orrequire more time and effort to colle

« past history and performance of similar assetsieetiuAs we purchase portfolios of like assets, we
accumulate a significant historical data base ert¢éndencies of debtor repayments and factor ritdsaur
initial expected cash flow:

 our ability to analyze accounts and resell accoth@smeet our criterie

« jobs or property of the debtors found within padiids. With our business model, this is of partiat
importance. Debtors with jobs or property are nii&ly to repay their obligation through the lawsui
strategy and, conversely, debtors without jobsroperty are less likely to repay their obligatidvie believe
that debtors with jobs or property are more likelyepay because courts have mandated the debsipay
the debt. Ultimately, the debtor with property vglly to clear title or release a lien. We alsodwdithat thes
debtors generally might take longer to repay amdl ithfactored into our initial expected cash flpasd

« credit standards of issut

We acquire accounts that have experienced detgdoraf credit quality between origination and thege of
our acquisition of the accounts. The amount paidafportfolio of accounts reflects our determinatibat it is
probable we will be unable to collect all amountg éccording to the portfolio of accounts’ contuatterms. We
consider the expected payments and estimate therdrand timing of undiscounted expected principaérest and
other cash flows for each acquired portfolio codpigth expected cash flows from accounts availéreales. The
excess of this amount over the cost of the podfoBpresenting the excess of the accounts’ caslsfexpected to
be collected over the amount paid, is accretediim@ome recognized on finance receivables accounteah the
interest method over the expected remaining lifdhefportfolio.

We believe we have significant experience in adagicertain distressed consumer receivable poosdat a
significant discount to the amount actually owedubglerlying debtors. We acquire these portfolioly after both
qualitative and quantitative analyses of the uryilegl receivables are performed and a calculatedhase price is
paid so that we believe our estimated cash flowrsftis an adequate return on our acquisition edtsisour
servicing expenses. Additionally, when considetarger portfolio purchases of accounts, or porw®firom issuers
with whom we have limited experience, we have tihdea benefit of soliciting our third party collemti agencies
and attorneys for their input on liquidation raséesl, at times, incorporate such input into thenestiés we use for
our expected cash flows.

As a result of the recent and current challengt@nemic environment and the impact it has had diectoons,
for portfolio purchases acquired in fiscal year 208 have extended our time frame of the expectatigecoverin
100% of our invested capital within a 24-39 monghi@d from an 18-28 month period, and the expemtati
recovering 130-140% over 7 years which is an irswdeom the previous 5 year expectation. We rolytimenitor
these expectations against the actual cash flodisimmhe event the cash flows are below our exgtieets and we
believe there are no reasons relating to mere girdifierences or explainable delays (such as caarquarticularly
when the court system is involved) for the reduceltections, an impairment is recorded on portfeiecounted fc
on the interest method. Conversely, in the eventtsh flows are in excess of our expectationgtadeason is dt
to timing, we would defer the “excess” collectiadeferred revenue.
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[5] Commissions and fees:

Commissions and fees are the contractual commisgiamed by third party collection agencies anuf s,
and direct costs associated with the collectioarefjenerally court costs. The Company expectotdinue to
purchase portfolios and utilize third party collentagencies and attorney networks.

[6] Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost. Deplieni#s provided using the straight-line method rowe
estimated useful lives of the assets (5 to 7 yeAmaprtization on leasehold improvements is prouitg the
straight line-method of the remaining life of tlespective lease. An accelerated depreciation méshaskd for tax
purposes.

[7] Income taxes:

Deferred federal and state taxes arise from (Dgaition of finance income collected for tax purpssbut not
yet recognized for financial reporting; (ii) proia for impairments/credit losses, all resultingiming differences
between financial accounting and tax reporting, @idamortization of leasehold improvements réigig in timing
differences between financial accounting and taorméng.

[8] Net (loss) income per share:

Basic per share data is determined by dividingmegime by the weighted average shares outstandiriggithe
period. Diluted per share data is computed by digichet income by the weighted average sharesamdtistg,
assuming all dilutive potential common shares vigsaed. The assumed proceeds from the exercisautvel
options are calculated using the treasury stockatkebased on the average market price for thegherio

The following table presents the computation ofibasd diluted per share data for the years ended
September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Per Weighted  Per Weighted Per
Net Average Share Net Average Share Net Average Share
Income Shares  Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares  Amount
Basic $(90,725,00) 14,272,42 $ (6.3€) $8,829,001 14,138,65 $ 0.6z $52,266,000 13,807,83 $ 3.7¢
Dilutive effect of stock Option — 414,69¢ 884,02:
Diluted $(90,725,00) 14,272,42 $ (6.3€) $8,829,001 14,553,34 $ 0.61 $52,266,00 14,691,86 $ 3.5¢€

At September 30, 2009, 133,250 options at a weihaterage exercise price of $8.30 were not includé¢le
diluted earnings per share calculation as they astiedilutive. At September 30, 2008, 400,160 opsiat a
weighted average exercise price of $18.70 werénehided in the diluted earnings per share calmnas they
were anti-dilutive. There were no anti-dilutive sgties at September 30, 2007.

[9] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management toenegkkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgittgassets and liabilities at the date of the fir@rstatements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhemeporting period. With respect to income ggtition
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under the interest method, the Company takes imsideration the relative credit quality of the ariging
receivables constituting the portfolio acquireds #trategy involved to maximize the collectiong¢ioé, the time
required to implement the collection strategy a#i agother factors to estimate the anticipatedh ¢svs. Actual
results could differ from those estimates includingnagement’s estimates of future cash flows aadesultant
allocation of collections between principal andenest resulting therefrom. Downward revisions tingeted cash
flows will result in impairments.

[10] Stock-based compensation:

The Company accounts for stock-based employee awsafien under FASB ASC 718, CompensatiorSteck
Compensation, (*“ASC 718"ASC 718 requires that compensation expense assdaiath stock options and vesti
of restricted stock awards be recognized in theeistent of operations.

[11] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC 105, (“ASC 108f)der ASC 105, The FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (“Codification”) is now the source afithoritative U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB ¢odpplied
by nongovernmental entities. Rules and interpratleases of the Securities and Exchange Commi§$&iC”)
under authority of the federal securities lawsadse sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC regigsaOn the
effective date of ASC 105, the Codification supdeskall then-existing non-SEC accounting and répgrt
standards. All other non-grandfathered non-SECwattig literature not included in the Codificatisnmow non-
authoritative. ASC 105 is effective for financightements issued for interim and annual periodingrafter
September 15, 2009. In the FASB's views, the isseafi ASC 105 and the Codification will not charg&AP,
except for those nonpublic nongovernmental entttias must now apply the American Institute to @ied Public
Accountants Technical Inquiry Service Section 5I&®&venue Recognition” paragraphs 38-76. The adopif
ASC 105 has been reflected in the Company’s cottesteld financial statements.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@tssued FASB Statement 167, Amendments to FASB
Interpretation No. 46(R), which is not yet reflatia the FASB ASC, to improve how enterprises aotdor and
disclose their involvement with variable interestites (VIE's), which are special-purpose entitiaad other
entities whose equity at risk is insufficient oclecertain characteristics. Among other thingstedient 167 chang
how an entity determines whether it is the printaepeficiary of a variable interest entity (VIE) antlether that
VIE should be consolidated. The new Statement reguin entity to provide significantly more discles about its
involvement with VIEs. As a result, the Company tre@mprehensively review its involvements with Viasd
potential VIEs, including entities previous consitkto be qualifying special purpose entities,dtednine the
effect on its consolidated financial statements rtated disclosures. Statement 167 is effectivef #ise beginning
of a reporting entity’s first annual reporting petithat begins after November 15, 2009 and forimt@eriods
within the first annual reporting period. Earligypdication is prohibited. The Company does notéhadithat the
adoption of Statement 167 will have a significaifé@ on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 855, Subseglegents, (“ASC 855”) to incorporate the accougtin
and disclosures requirements for subsequent eirgot& AAP. ASC 855 introduces new terminology, def a dat
through which management must evaluate subsequentsg and lists the circumstances under whicméityenust
recognize and disclose events or transactions boguafter the balance-sheet date. The CompanytaddxsC 855
as of June 30, 2009, which was the required effectate.

In April 2009 the FASB issued ASC 718, Compensatietstock Compensation, (“ASC 718”). ASC 718
expands disclosures for fair value of financiatimsents that are within the scope of FASB statdrfenvalue
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[11] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)

disclosures in interim period reports. ASC 718ffedive for interim reporting periods ending affeme 15, 2009.
ASC 718 expresses the views of the staff regartfiagise of a “simplified” method in developing atimate of
expected term of “plain vanilla” share optionsphrticular, the staff indicated in ASC 718 thawill accept a
company’s election to use the simplified methodardless of whether the company has sufficientrimédion to
make more refined estimates of expected term. étithe ASC 718 was issued, the staff believedrime detailed
external information about employee exercise bahge.g., employee exercise patterns by industdycarother
categories of companies) would, over time, becapadily available to companies. Therefore, the staffed in AS!
718 that it would not expect a company to use itmglified method for share option grants after Draber 31,
2007. The staff understands that such detailedrimdtion about employee exercise behavior mightiast been
widely available by December 31, 2007. Accordingie staff will continue to accept, under certancumstances,
the use of the simplified method beyond Decembef8@7. This portion of ASC 718 does not have aenlt
impact on the Company.

[12] Reclassifications:

Certain items in prior years’ financial statemedmise been reclassified to conform to current year’s
presentation.

NoTeE B —CoNSUMER RECEIVABLES ACQUIRED FOR LIQUIDATION

Accounts acquired for liquidation are stated airthet estimated realizable value and consist milynaf
defaulted consumer loans to individuals throughibetcountry and in Central and South America.

The Company accounts for its investments in consueteivable portfolios, using either:

 the interest method; ¢
« the cost recovery metha

The Company accounts for its investment in finamoeivables using the interest method under theagugie of
ASC 310. Under the guidance of ASC 310, static poblaccounts are established. These pools aregaged base
on certain common risk criteria. Each static peakicorded at cost and is accounted for as a simifiéor the
recognition of income, principal payments and lpssvision.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to thed funless
replaced by the seller) or removed from the ponlgss sold or returned to the seller). ASC310 meguihat the
excess of the contractual cash flows over expemst flows not be recognized as an adjustmentvehree or
expense or on the balance sheet. ASC310 initiedyzles the internal rate of return, referred tlR&s estimated
when the accounts receivable are purchased, dmtlie for subsequent impairment testing. Significaereases in
actual or expected future cash flows may be re@eghprospectively through an upward adjustmerh@fiRR over
a portfolio’s remaining life. Any increase to tHeR then becomes the new benchmark for impairmstihte
Rather than lowering the estimated IRR if the atifa estimates are not received or projected teebeived, the
carrying value of a pool would be impaired, or venit down to maintain the then current IRR. Underittierest
method, income is recognized on the effective yir&thod based on the actual cash collected durpegiad and
future estimated cash flows and timing of suchemibns and the portfolio’s cost. Revenue arishognf collections
in excess of anticipated amounts attributablentinigy differences is deferred until such time asvaaw results in a
change in the expected cash flows. The estimatedefeash flows are reevaluated quarterly.
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The Company uses the cost recovery method whegctiolhs on a particular pool of accounts cannot be
reasonably predicted. Under the cost recovery nietho income is recognized until the cost of thefptio has
been fully recovered. A pool can become fully anzed (zero carrying balance on the balance shewt wtill
generating cash collections. In this case, all cadlections are recognized as revenue when redeive

The Company’s extensive liquidating experienceithe field of distressed credit card receivables,
telecommunication receivables, consumer loan ratd®s, retail installment contracts, consumer red#es, and
auto deficiency receivables. The Company usesitieegst method for accounting for asset acquistigithin these
classes of receivables when it believes it canoressly estimate the timing of the cash flows. losth situations
where the Company diversifies its acquisitions iottoer asset classes where the Company does reggsothe san
expertise or history, or the Company cannot redsigrestimate the timing of the cash flows, the Camputilizes
the cost recovery method of accounting for thos¢f@as of receivables. At September 30, 2009, ragimately
$70.7 million of the consumer receivables acqufoediquidation are accounted for using the intérasthod, while
approximately $137.6 million are accounted for gdime cost recovery method.

After FASB ASC 310, Receivables — Loans and Delou8tes Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality,
(“ASC 310") was adopted, the Company aggregatefghios of receivables acquired sharing specifimomon
characteristics which were acquired within a gigearter. The Company currently considers for agajieg
portfolios of accounts, purchased within the saiseaf quarter, that generally meet the followingueltteristics:

e same issuer/originata

« same underlying credit qualit

« similar geographic distribution of the accout

 similar age of the receivable; a

» same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuation, etc.’

The Company uses a variety of qualitative and dtaive factors to estimate collections and thangpthereof
This analysis includes the following variables:

 the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol

« the average balance of the receivables, as higllendes might be more difficult to collect whilevo
balances might not be cost effective to coll

« the age of the receivables, as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lessst
effective. On the other hand, the passage of fimegrtain circumstances, might result in highdlemtions
due to changing life events of some individual ded

 past history of performance of similar ass

« time since char¢-off;

e payments made since chz-off;

« the credit originator and its credit guidelin

« our ability to analyze accounts and resell accoti@ttmeet our criteria for resal

« the locations of the debtors, as there are bdtérssto attempt to collect in and ultimately than(any has
better predictability of the liquidations and thepected cash flows. Conversely, there are alsestahere
the liquidation rates are not as favorable andithfsictored into our cash flow analys
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* jobs or property of the debtors found within palitie. In our business model, this is of particulaportance
Debtors with jobs or property are more likely tpag their obligation and conversely, debtors wittjobs or
property are less likely to repay their obligatiangd

« the ability to obtain timely customer statementsxfrthe original issue

The Company obtains and utilizes, as appropriafgjtj including but not limited to monthly collewti
projections and liquidation rates, from our thiaty collection agencies and attorneys, as futh@fentiary matte
to assist in evaluating and developing collectimategies and in evaluating and modeling the exgaecash flows
for a given portfolio.

The following tables summarize the changes in tidarite sheet of the investment in receivable patfo
during the following periods.

For the Year Ended September 30, 200

Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $ 203,470,00 $245,542,00  $ 449,012,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 19,129,00 423,00( 19,552,00
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidatiol (96,543,00) (42,204,00) (138,747,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sél
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal (4,963,00i) (3,699,000 (8,662,001
Transfer to cost recovery( (20,128,00) 10,128,00 —
Impairments (108,534,00) (74,966,00) (183,500,00)
Effect of foreign currency translatic — 450,00( 450,00(
Finance income recognized( 68,219,00 1,937,00! 70,156,00
Balance, end of peric $ 70,650,000 $137,611,00 $ 208,261,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 67.2% 4.2% 47.€%

(1) During the 12 months ended September 30, 200% thoefolios were transferred from the interesthodtto
the cost recovery method. Based on the natureesktbortfolios and the recent cash flows, our edémof the
timing of expected cash flows became uncer

(2) Includes $40.7 million derived from fully amortizedols.
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of peric $508,515,00 $ 37,108,00 $545,623,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolios, n 26,626,00 23,260,00 49,886,00
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidation(1 (163,494,00) (24,085,00) (187,579,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sél
consumer receivables acquired for liquidal (19,545,00) (850,000 (20,395,00)
Transfer to cost recovery( (209,518,00) 209,518,00 —
Impairments (53,160,00) — (53,160,00)
Effect of foreign currency translatic — (658,000 (658,000
Finance income recognized| 114,046,00 1,249,00! 115,295,00
Balance, end of peric $ 203,470,00 $245,542,00 $ 449,012,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 62.2% 5.C% 55.4%

(1) The Company acquired the Portfolio Purchase in K&@07. During the quarter ending June 30, 20G8, th
Company transferred the carrying value of the BbatfPurchase to the cost recovery mett

(2) Includes $45.3 million derived from fully amortizedols.
As of September 30, 2009 the Company had $208,261rDconsumer receivables acquired for liquidatin

which $70,650,000 are accounted for on the interethod. Based upon current projections, net cakéotions,
applied to principal for interest method portfolexe estimated as follows for the twelve monthth@periods

ending:
September 30, 201 $23,518,00
September 30, 201 19,508,00
September 30, 201 15,073,00
September 30, 201 7,761,001
September 30, 201 3,856,001
September 30, 201 885,00(
September 30, 201 691,00(
71,292,00
Deferred revenu (642,000
Total $70,650,00

Accretable yield represents the amount of incoreeQbmpany can expect to generate over the remaining
amortizable life of its existing portfolios based estimated future net cash flows as of Septembe?@9. The
Company adjusts the accretable yield upward whbaliéves, based on available evidence, that gartfo
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collections will exceed amounts previously estirdaterojected accretable yield for the fiscal yearded
September 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Year Ended
September 30
2009
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2 $ 58,134,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (68,219,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from plaes 5,980,001
Transfer to cost recove (3,372,00i)
Reclassifications from n«accretable difference (. 33,352,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, 2 $ 25,875,00
Year Ended
September 30
2008
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2 $ 176,615,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (114,046,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from plaes 9,569,00!
Transfer to cost recove (57,951,00)
Reclassifications from n«accretable difference (. 43,947,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, 2 $ 58,134,00

(1) Includes portfolios that became zero based poodadiuring the period, removal of zero basis pddfofrom the
accretable yield calculation and, other immatanmdairments and accretions based on the certalaction
curves being extende

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Coynmarchased $577 million of face value charged-off
consumer receivables at a cost of approximatelygbifilion. During the year ended September 3082@0e
Company purchased $1.5 billion of face value chduafé consumer receivables at a cost of $49.9 amilliThis
includes a portfolio with an approximate value 8f@Gmillion that was purchased in South Americae €hktimated
remaining net collections on the receivables pwsetand classified under the interest method, {%hdlion)
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 20@9$22.3 million.

The following table summarizes collections on asgrbasis as received by the Company'’s thady collectior
agencies and attorneys, less commissions and dstg for the years ended September 30, 2009, &0d2007,
respectively.

For the Years Ended, September 3(

2009 2008 2007
Gross collections(1 $224,528,00 $332,711,00  $398,432,00
Commissions and fees( 77,119,00 124,737,00 116,626,00
Net collections $147,409,00 $207,974,00 $281,806,00

(1) Gross collections include: collections from thirdAy collection agencies and attorneys, collectfoos in-
house efforts and collections represented by a¢sales
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(2) Commissions and fees are the contractual commissiamed by third party collection agencies anutadtys,
and direct costs associated with the collectioareffjenerally court costs. The Company expectotdinue to
purchase portfolios and utilize third party collentagencies and attorney networ

Finance income recognized on net collections remtesl by account sales was $3.1 million, $9.4 omland
$25.2 million for the fiscal years ended Septen8ir2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
NoTe C —FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture and equipment as of September 30, 20626608 consist of the following:

2009 2008

Furniture $ 310,00 $ 310,00(
Equipment 2,783,001 2,714,001
Software 117,00( —
Leasehold improvemen 86,00( 105,00(

3,296,001 3,129,001
Less accumulated depreciati 2,758,001 2,367,001
Balance, end of peric $ 538,000 $ 762,00

Depreciation expense for the years ended SepteBh@009, 2008 and 2007 aggregated $411,000, $319,0
and $279,000, respectively.

NoTe D —DEBT AND SUBORDINATED DEBT — RELATED PARTY
Credit Facility

On July 11, 2006, the Company entered into the iCFettility with the Bank Group. As a result ofghi
agreement, the loan commitment increased to $1M®mifrom $125 million and had an expandable eatwhich
enabled the Company to increase the line to $28Bmwvith the consent of the Bank Group. Since itieeption of
the Credit Facility on July 11, 2006, material adrents are as follows:

Second Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated M&c2007 — Amendment consented to the proposed
Portfolio Purchase by non-credit party affiliatédgshee Company.

Third Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated MaBfh 2007 — Amendment granted a temporary over
advance of $16 million from March 30, 2007 throday 17, 2007 to permit the Portfolio Purchase.

Fourth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated M&y 2007 — Amendment reduced the borrowing base
availability advance rate to $40 million from Ma§,2007 through October 7, 2007, and further redtce
$20 million effective October 8, 2007 and thereafte

Fifth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated J@Te 2007 —Amendment established an 80% advance ra
eligible receivables and further reduced the boimgvbase availability advance rate to $15 millidfeetive June 27
2007.

Sixth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated Debem4, 2007 — Amendment granted a temporary inereas
to the Credit Facility to $185 million. The tempnrancrease was never utilized.

Seventh Amendment to the Credit Facility, datedréaty 20, 2009 — Amendment revises the Credit FEgcil
to, among other items, reduce the level of the lImanmitment as described below, redefine certaianitial

F-19




Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE D —DEBT AND SUBORDINATED DEBT — RELATED PARTY — (CONTINUED)

covenant ratios the requirement for an unqualifipohion on annual audited financial statements, @erthit certain
encumbrances relating to restructuring of the BM@ilRy (the “Receivables Financing Agreement”) father
described below. Pursuant to the Seventh Amendrttentpan commitment was revised down from $175I0om
to the following schedule: (1) $90.0 million uritllarch 30, 2009, (2) $85.0 million from March 31,080through
June 29, 2009, and (3) $80.0 million from JuneZBM9 and thereafter. Beginning with the fiscal yerading
September 30, 2008 (and for each period includedliculating fixed charge coverage ratio for tisedi year
ending September 30, 2008) and continuing thenefaiteeach reporting period thereafter (and forheaeriod
included in calculating fixed charge coverage réiosuch reporting period), the earnings befoomime taxes
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) and fixedagipes attributable to Palisades XVI as further dieed below
are to be excluded from the computation of thedigbarge coverage ratio for Asta Funding and itss@liaries. In
addition, the fixed charge coverage ratio was evi® exclude impairment expense of portfoliosafsumer
receivables acquired for liquidation and increderatio from a minimum of 1.50 to 1.0 to a minimofil.75 to
1.0. The permitted encumbrances under the Credilityavere revised to include certain encumbrarioesirred by
the Company in connection with certain guaranteekslians provided to BMO Facility and Asta Grough@ Family
Entity”). Further, individual portfolio purchases éxcess of $7.5 million now require the consernthefagent and
portfolio purchases in excess of $15.0 millionhia figgregate during any 120 day period requireddhsent of the
Bank Group.

Eighth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated JLOy 2009 (and in effect as of September 30, 2609)
Amendment revised the Commitment Termination DadefJuly 11, 2009 to December 31, 2009. Also, thedi®
Facility commitment shall not exceed the followimgounts: (1) $40.0 million through July 30, 2009;

(2) $34.0 million from July 31, 2009 through Aug@gt, 2009; (3) $30.8 million from August 31, 2008dugh
September 29, 2009; (4) $22.9 million from Septend@e 2009 through October 30, 2009; (5) $15.0iamlfrom
October 31, 2009 through November 29, 2009; (62 #7llion from November 30, 2009 through Decemb@y 3
2009; and (7) Zero Dollars on December 31, 200@duiition, use of Advances to finance portfolioghases in
excess of $7.5 million shall require the conserthefAdministrative Agent and use of Advances tiafice portfolio
purchases in excess of (a) $15.0 million in theregate as of July 31, 2009 and August 31, 200968) million in
the aggregate as of September 30, 2009; (c) $6lidomin the aggregate as of October 31, 2009 andexber 30,
2009; and (d) $2.0 million in the aggregate as e€é&nber 31, 2009, during any 120 day period redo@eonsent
of the Requisite Lenders. In addition, the Compsimgil have no net loss on a consolidated basiaglay Fiscal
Year, provided however, for Fiscal Year ending 8eyiter 30, 2009 only, a net loss not to exceed $hdlion was
permitted under this Amendment. The Credit Fachigars interest at the lesser of LIBOR plus aniealple margin
or the prime rate minus an applicable margin basedertain leverage ratios, with a minimum rat®.&06 per
annum.

The Credit Facility is collateralized by all assetshe Company, other than those of Palisades ¥\l | LC
which contains the Portfolio Purchase, discusséallgeand contains customary financial and otheroants
(relative to tangible net worth, interest coveraa®] leverage ratio, as defined) that must be miaied in order to
borrow funds. The applicable rate at SeptembeR309 and 2008 was 5.5% and 5.00%, respectively aVheage
interest rate excluding unused credit line feegHerfiscal years ended September 30, 2009 and, 28§ &ectively,
was 4.47% and 6.12%. The outstanding balance o@ridit Facility was approximately $18.3 million on
September 30, 2009 and $84.9 million on Septembe2@08.

On December 14, 2009, Asta Funding, Inc. and isisliaries other than Palisades XVI, entered imews
revolving credit agreement with Bank Leumi, whigrmits maximum principal advances of up to $6 williThe
term of the agreement is through December 31, ZDli@.interest rate is a floating rate equal toBaak Leumi
Reference Rate plus 2%, with a floor of 4.5%. Theent rate is 5.5%. The loan is secured by catidteonsisting
of all of the assets of the Company other thangtoddalisades XVI. In addition, other collaterad the loan

F-20




Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE D —DEBT AND SUBORDINATED DEBT — RELATED PARTY — (CONTINUED)

consists of a pledge by GMS Family Investors, LBG jnvestment company owned by members of the $erity.
On December 14, 2009 approximately $3.6 milliothef Bank Leumi credit line was drawn and used togffin
full the remaining balance on the credit facilingtCompany formerly had with the bank group witl18s agent.
As the Credit Facility was repaid there were nost@ant requirements on the Credit Facility. See Syilpasnt
Events — Note O.

Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima@&2g7 million under the Receivables Financing
Agreement, as amended in July 2007, December 208y 2008 and February 2009 with BMO, in order twafice
the Portfolio Purchase. The Portfolio Purchaseapdrchase price of $300 million (plus 20% of neyments after
Palisades XVI recovers 150% of its purchase prige post of funds, which recovery has not yet ol Prior to
the modification, discussed below, the debt wasrédourse only to Palisades XVI and bore an isterate of
approximately 170 basis points over LIBOR. The ioadjterm of the agreement was three years. This teas
extended by each of the Second, Third and Fourteréments to the Receivables Financing Agreement as
discussed below. The Receivables Financing Agreteotenains cross default provisions related toGhedit
Facility. This cross default can only occur in thent of a non-payment in excess of $2.5 milliothef Credit
Facility. Proceeds received as a result of theealltctions from the Portfolio Purchase are applaeohterest and
principal of the underlying loan. The Portfolio Bhase is serviced by Palisades Collection LLC, allwlowned
subsidiary of the Company, which has engaged dis&éfil subservicers for a majority of the Portfdfiorchase.

Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment amendments have been signed to revisausario
terms of the Receivables Financing Agreement. BHeviing is a summary of the material amendments:

Second Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendatéd December 27, 2007 revised the amortization
schedule of the loan from 25 months to approxinge@&lmonths. BMO charged Palisades XVI a fee of63d00
which was paid on January 10, 2008. The fee waitatiapd and is being amortized over the remaitifegof the
Receivables Financing Agreement.

Third Amendment —Receivables Financing Agreement, dated May 19, 260@&ded the payments of the |
through December 2010. The lender also increasethtarest rate from 170 basis points over LIBOR to
approximately 320 basis points over LIBOR, subjeciutomatic reduction in the future if additiowapital
contributions are made by the parent of Palisadés X

Fourth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendated February 20, 2009, among other things,
(i) lowered the collection rate minimum to $1 nahi per month (plus interest and fees) as an avéoagach perio
of three consecutive months, (ii) provided for atoanatic extension of the maturity date from ABfl, 2011 to
April 30, 2012 should the outstanding balance eiced to $25 million or less by April 30, 2011 and
(iii) permanently waived the previous terminatioreets. The interest rate remains unchanged at sippately
320 basis points over LIBOR, subject to automagduction in the future should certain collectionestones be
attained.

As additional credit support for repayment by Radiss XVI of its obligations under the Receivablemfcing
Agreement and as an inducement for BMO to entertimt Fourth Amendment, the Company provided BMO a
limited recourse, subordinated guaranty, securetthéyssets of the Company, in an amount not teezkc
$8.0 million plus reasonable costs of enforcemadt@llection. Under the terms of the guaranty, BM&not
exercise any recourse against the Company untédhleer of (i) five years from the date of the RbuAmendment
and (ii) the termination of the Company'’s exists&nior lending facility or any successor senioilitstc

The aggregate minimum repayment obligations reduiraler the Fourth Amendment including interest and
principal for fiscal years ending September 30,@284d 2011 (seven months), are $12.0 million and &illion,

F-21




Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE D —DEBT AND SUBORDINATED DEBT — RELATED PARTY — (CONTINUED)

respectively, plus monthly interest and fees. WtkikeCompany believes it will be able to make alpents due
under the new payment schedule, it is likely we mdt be able to reduce the balance of the faditit$25 million by
April 30, 2011, and there is no assurance the Valibe extended. We anticipate working with BMOexrtend the
facility by the expiration date.

On September 30, 2009 and 2008, the outstandimgdalon this loan was approximately $104.3 milleomg
$128.6 million, respectively. The applicable instrete at September 30, 2009 and 2008 was 3.76%.68%,
respectively. The average interest rate of the Rebke Financing Agreement was 4.82% and 6.10%heryears
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company’s average debt obligation (excludirgsihbordinated debt — related party) for the figesrs
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, was approxin®itéP.5 million and $283.1 million, respectivelhe
average interest rate was 4.72% and 6.11%, resphctior the years ended September 30, 2009 af8.20

In addition, as further credit support under theddeables Financing Agreement, the Family Entityvidled
BMO a limited recourse, subordinated guaranty, setgolely by a collateral assignment of $700,00D®
$8.2 million subordinated note executed by the Camyfor the benefit of the Family Entity (See fanthliscussion
below on the Family Entity loan under Subordindbebt — Related Party ). The subordinated note wparsited
into a $700,000 note and a $7.5 million note fatspurpose. Under the terms of the guaranty, exgem the
occurrence of certain termination events, BMO camemxercise any recourse against the Family Entitil the
occurrence of a termination event under the Rebiga-inancing Agreement and an undertaking oforesse
efforts to dispose of Palisades XVI's assets. Agidncement for agreeing to make such collatesibasnent, the
Family Entity was also granted a subordinated gugray the Company (other than Asta Funding, Ifar.the
performance by Asta Funding, Inc. of its obligattomrepay the $8.2 million note, secured by thetssf the
Company (other than Asta Funding, Inc.), and themm@any agreed to indemnify the Family Entity to &xéent that
BMO exercises recourse in connection with the telld assignment. Without the consent of the ageder the
senior lending facility, the Family Entity will ndite permitted to act on such guaranty, and camueive payment
under such indemnity, until the termination of @@mpany’s senior lending facility or any successanior facility.
On September 30, 2009, the Company was in com@iasith the Receivables Financing Agreement loarenants

Subordinated Debt — Related Party

On April 29, 2008, the Company obtained a subotdthéoan pursuant to a subordinated promissory fnote
the Family Entity. The Family Entity is a greateah 5% shareholder of the Company beneficially ahared
controlled by Arthur Stern, a Director of the CompaGary Stern, the Chairman, President and Chietttive
Officer of the Company, and members of their fagsiliThe loan is in the aggregate principal amofint o
approximately $8.2 million, bears interest at & 1@it6.25% per annum, is payable interest only eaelnter until its
maturity date of January 9, 2010, subject to premayment in full of the Company’s senior loan liacivith the
Bank Group. The subordinated loan was incurrechbyGompany to resolve certain issues related tadtieities of
one of the subservicers utilized by Palisades Ctfle LLC under the Receivables Financing Agreemriceeds
from the subordinated loan were used initiallyudHter collateralize the Company’s revolving loanifity with the
Bank Group and was used to reduce the balancerdti@bfacility as of May 31, 2008. In December 20he
subordinated debt-related party maturity date wésneled through December 31, 2010. In additiorirttexest rate
was changed to 10% per annum. See Note O- Subddeuemts.

The Companys cash requirements have been and will continbe tsignificant. The Company has depende
external financing to acquire consumer receival®estfolio acquisitions are financed primarily thgh cash flows
from operating activities and with the Company’edit Facility. With limited purchases of portfoliéar the
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current fiscal year, availability under the borrogibase formula is approximately $4.6 million apt®enber 30,
2009. Our borrowing availability is limited to arfoula based on the age of the receivables. Asdlhection
environment remains challenging, we may be requmexkbek additional funding.

If the Company'’s collections deteriorate below mvest projections, the Company might need to secur
another source of funding in order to satisfy iteking capital needs, downsize its operationsgeouee financing ¢
terms that are not favorable to the Company. Howekie Company believes its net cash collectiores tive next
12 months will be sufficient to cover its operatigxpenses, continue paying down debt to the ertressary,
purchase additional portfolios and pay dividenfidetlared.

The Company’s debt and subordinated debt — reladety at September 30, 2009 and 2008 are summagzed

follows:
2009
Stated Average
Interest Interest
2009 2008 Rate Rate
Credit Facility $ 18,301,000 $ 84,934,00 5.5(% 4.47%
Receivables Financing Agreemt 104,321,00 128,551,00 3.7¢% 4.82%
Total debt $122,622,00 $213,485,00 n/e 4.72%
Subordinated del— related party $ 8,246,00i 8,246,001 6.25% 6.25%
NoTe E —OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities as of September 30, 2009 and 28@8as follows:
2009 2008
Accounts payable and accrued expet $1,425,000  $3,145,00!
Accrued interest payab 504,00( 1,135,00!
Other 237,00( 338,00(
Total other liabilities $2,166,000  $4,618,00
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The components of the provision for income taxenéfit) for the years ended September 30, 20098 264
2007 are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Current:
Federa $(47,062,00) $6,567,000 $30,476,00
State (1,220,00i) 2,152,001t 9,999,00!
Foreign — 34,00( —
(48,282,01) 8,753,001 40,475,00
Deferred:
Federa 1,092,00! (1,987,001 (3,593,00)
State (9,597,001 (647,000 (1,179,001
(8,505,001 (2,634,001 (4,772,00i)
Provision for income taxe $(56,787,00) $6,119,000 $35,703,00

The difference between the statutory federal inctareate on the Company’s pre-tax income and the
Company’s effective income tax rate is summarizetbdows:

2009 2008 2007

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income tax, net of federal ben 5.8 5.8 5.8
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (2.2) — —
Other (0.9) 0.1 (0.9
Effective income tax rat 38.5% 40.€% 40.€%

The Company recognized a net deferred tax as24072,000 and $15,567,000 as of September 30, 20
2008, respectively. The components are as follows:

September 30 September 30

2009 2008
Deferred revenu $ 221,00( 534,00(
Impairments 26,960,00 13,930,00
Compensation expen 1,273,00! 880,00(
Other 26,00( 223,00(
Deferred income taxe 28,480,00 15,567,00
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (4,408,001 —
Deferred income taxe $24,072,00 $15,567,00

We file consolidated Federal and state incomeétxns. Our subsidiaries are single member liritdality
companies (LLC) and, therefore, do not file sepatax returns.

We account for income taxes using the asset ahifityamethod which requires the recognition of eieéd tax
assets and, if applicable, deferred tax liabiljitfes the expected future tax consequences of teanpalifferences
between the carrying amounts and the tax basessefsaand, if applicable, liabilities. Additionallye would
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adjust deferred taxes to reflect estimated taxahémges, if applicable. We conduct periodic euvidna to
determine whether it is more likely than not thamng or all of our deferred tax assets will not éalived. Among
the factors considered in this evaluation are egtmof future earnings, the future reversal ofprmary differences
and the impact of tax planning strategies that areimplement if warranted. We are required to pte\a valuation
allowance for any portion of our deferred tax as$eat, more likely than not, will not be realizdSeptember 30,
2009. Based on this evaluation, the Company redoaddeferred tax asset valuation allowance of $l{bn

during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009. Altigh the carryforward period for state income tasppses is up to
twenty years, given the economic conditions, sw@nemic environment could limit growth over a rezsiole time
period to realize the deferred tax asset. The Cosndatermined the time period allowance for camyfard is
outside a reasonable period to forecast full ratibn of the deferred tax asset, therefore receghiae deferred tax
asset valuation allowance. The Company continumabyitors forecast information to ensure the vaaratillowanci
is at the appropriate value. As required by FASECAR0, Income Taxes, we recognize the financiaéstant
benefit of a tax position only after determiningtlhe relevant tax authority would more likelyrihzot sustain the
position following an audit. For tax positions magtthe more-likely-than-not threshold, the amotognized in
the financial statements is the largest benefithia a greater than 50 percent likelihood of bedadized upon
ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority

We expect to receive a Federal tax benefit of apprately $46 million based on the results of fisgahr 2009
and recent tax law changes for net operating lagylgack. Income tax benefits related to statesgvtiee Company
files tax returns only apply to future years. Ned@arrybacks are allowed.

The corporate federal income tax returns of the gamyg for 2006, 2007, and 2008 are subject to exatinim
by the IRS, generally for three years after theyféed. The state income tax returns and othee stiings of the
Company are subject to examination by the staiedaauthorities, for various periods generally agdur years
after they are filed.

NoTE G —CoMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Employment Agreements

On January 25, 2007, the Company entered into gghogment agreement (the “Employment Agreementth
the Company’s Chairman, President and Chief Exee@ifficer, expiring on December 31, 2009, provided
however, that Gary Stern is required to provideetyirdays’ prior written notice if he does not indeto seek an
extension or renewal of the Employment Agreemenddnuary 2008, the Company entered into a sittwilaryear
employment agreement with Cameron Williams, the Gany's Chief Operating Officer. On October 5, 2009, ats
announced that Mr. Williamgontract was not renewed and will expire Decemiie2809. On November 30, 20
the Company announced that it had entered intors@ting Services Agreement with Mr. Williams. Undlee
terms of the agreement, the Company will pay Mrdli#ns a monthly fee of $20,833.33 each month fldamuary
to November 2010 in exchange for certain consuliienyices through December 31, 2010. In additioexchange
for a release of all claims and liabilities, Mr. Méms is to be paid a fee of $100,000, plus reirsbment of his
monthly COBRA costs of up to $1,000 per month far bext year and the Company accelerated vestit§,667
stock options held by Mr. Williams at a price of $2 per share. Mr. Williams will also be paid $2Z887 if he
signs another release in favor of the Companyeaetid of this consulting term.

LEASES

The Company leases its facilities in Englewoodf€liNew Jersey and Sugar Land, Texas. The leases ar
operating leases, and the Company incurred retatédcexpense in the amounts of $611,000, $553,000 a
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$526,000 during the years ended September 30, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The future minimuasée
payments are as follows:

Year

Ending

September 3

2010 $320,00(
2011 13,00(
2012 —
2013 —
2014 —

$333,00(

The Company closed its Bethlehem, Pennsylvaniditotan February 2009. The Company is currently
reviewing lease proposals with regard to the EngtahCliffs, New Jersey location.

CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compsiiryvolved in numerous legal proceedings. The Gamy
regularly initiates collection lawsuits, using itstwork of third party law firms, against consumeso, consumers
occasionally initiate litigation against the Compaim which they allege that the Company has veada federal or
state law in the process of collecting their actoihe Company does not believe that these matermaterial to
its business and financial condition. The Companyait involved in any material litigation in whighwas a
defendant.

In July 2009, the New York Attorney General filed@ecial proceeding in New York State Supreme Court
against certain law firms and collection agencsegking to vacate approximately 100,000 defaulyjuents that
were taken in connection with actions in which gipalar process serving company served process Cldmpany
was not named in the action. Several of the thadyplaw firms used by the Company were named &ndants.
These law firms have indicated that they intendigorously defend the action. There are an immalteamber of
the Company’s accounts involved.

In settlement of a lawsuit filed by the Minnesotilofney General, the National Arbitration Forum ennced
in July 2009 that it would no longer administer somer or employment arbitrations. Later that motité,
American Arbitration Association announced a maiiata on the administration of certain consumer delliection
arbitration cases. The Company does not use drbitras a primary means of collection from consiwgnand these
changes are not expected to have a significantdbgrathe Company.

The Company has an ongoing dispute with one d@igfsificant third party servicers regarding certain
provisions in the servicing agreement between timpanies. The Company contends that there are dmdue the
Company under a profit-sharing arrangement. Thécarhas acknowledged the profit sharing arrangerinet
disagrees with the calculation of the amount owettlitionally, the servicer has asserted that then@any owes th
servicer certain amounts with regard to a portfelite and court costs allegedly incurred by theiser and not pai
to the servicer by the Company. The companies icoatio negotiate a settlement for these items.Cdrapany
does not believe the final settlement will haveaduerse material effect on the Company.

NoTE H —CONCENTRATIONS

At September 30, 2009, approximately 29% of outfpbios were serviced by five collection organizais. We
have servicing agreements in place with thesedbliection organizations as well as all other thpedty collection
agencies and attorneys that cover standard comiiggfees and servicing of the accounts.
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Equity Compensation Plan

On December 1, 2005, the Board of Directors adofitedCompany’s Equity Compensation Plan (the “Bquit
Compensation Plan”), which was approved by thekstolclers of the Company on March 1, 2006. The Bquit
Compensation Plan was adopted to supplement thep@uyis existing 2002 Stock Option Plan. In addition
permitting the grant of stock options as are pasditinder the 2002 Stock Option Plan, the Equitsn@ensation
Plan allows the Company flexibility with respectaguity awards by also providing for grants of ktawards (i.e.
restricted or unrestricted), stock purchase rights stock appreciation rights.

The general purpose of the Equity Compensation iBlemprovide an incentive to the Company’s empésy
directors and consultants, including executiveceffs, employees and consultants of any subsidjdnyesnabling
them to share in the future growth of the busin€bs. Board of Directors believes that the grantihgtock options
and other equity awards promotes continuity of ngangent and increases incentive and personal interdse
welfare of the Company by those who are primaslyponsible for shaping and carrying out the lomgeaplans
and securing growth and financial success.

The Board believes that the Equity Compensation Ridl advance the Company’s interests by enhanitgg
ability to (a) attract and retain employees, divestand consultants who are in a position to majaficant
contributions to the Company’s success; (b) reveangloyees, directors and consultants for theseibatibns; and
(c) encourage employees, directors and consultantéke into account the Company’s long-term irger¢hrough
ownership of the Company’s shares.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkrized for issuance under the Equity Compensation
Plan and 878,334 were available as of Septemb&2(83. As of September 30, 2009, approximatelydfibe
Company’s employees were eligible to participatthanEquity Compensation Plan. Future grants utideEquity
Compensation Plan have not yet been determined.

2002 Stock Option Plan

On March 5, 2002, the Board of Directors adoptedAkta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan (the02
Plan™), which plan was approved by the Companyisidtolders on May 1, 2002. The 2002 Plan was addpte
order to attract and retain qualified directorsicefs and employees of, and consultants to, thagamy. The
following description does not purport to be contplend is qualified in its entirety by referencehe full text of
the 2002 Plan, which is included as an exhibihto€ompany’s reports filed with the SEC.

The 2002 Plan authorizes the granting of incergteek options (as defined in Section 422 of the&}@ohd
non-qualified stock options to eligible employeéshe Company, including officers and directorglef Company
(whether or not employees) and consultants of th@agany.

The Company has 1,000,000 shares of Common Stdbkréed for issuance under the 2002 Plan and 242,3
were available as of September 30, 2009. As ofedeiper 30, 2009, approximately 105 of the Company’s
employees were eligible to participate in the 280#h. On December 11, 2009, the Compensation Cdeerof the
Board of Directors of the Company, granted 25,a00ksoptions to each director of the Company othan the
chief executive officer, for a total of 150,000ckm®ptions and 8,900 stock options to employedghefCompany,
who have been employed at the Company for at gsashonths prior to December 11, 2009. The gramts t
employees exclude officers of the Company. Theaserprice of these options was $8.07, fair mavkéie on the
date of grant. See Subsequent Events — Note O.

1995 Stock Option Plan

The 1995 Stock Option Plan expired on SeptembePQd5. The plan was adopted in order to attractratain
qualified directors, officers and employees of, andsultants to the Company. The following desmiptioes not

F-27




Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2009 and 2008

NoTE | —Stock OPTION PLANS — (CONTINUED)

purport to be complete and is qualified in its extyi by reference to the full text of the 1995 &t@ption Plan,
which is included as an exhibit to the Companyjzorés filed with the SEC.

The 1995 Stock Option Plan authorized the grargirigcentive stock options (as defined in Secti@a 4f the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€'QJoand non-qualified stock options to eligible @oyees of
the Company, including officers and directors & @ompany (whether or not employees) and consasltarthe
Company.

The Company authorized 1,840,000 shares of Comrtaok $or issuance under the 1995 Stock Option Plan.
All but 96,002 shares were utilized. As of Septenise 2005, no more options could be issued urdsptan.

The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under the plans:

Year Ended September 30,

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding options at the beginning
year 1,037,431 $ 11.6¢ 1,337,431 $ 9.3¢ 1,414,43" $ 9.4t
Options grante: 122,00( 2.9t — — 18,00( 28.7¢
Options cancelle (2,000 28.7¢ — — —
Options exercise (539 2.9t (300,000 1.4z (95,00) 13.9¢

Outstanding options at the end ofy  1,157,90! $ 10.7¢ 1,037,43 $ 11.6¢ 1,337,43t $ 9.3¢
Exercisable options at the end of y 1,081,912, $11.31 1,031,431 $ 11.5¢ 1,32543 $ 9.21

The Company recognized $164,000 of compensatioareserelated to stock options in the fiscal yededn
September 30, 2009. As of September 30, 2009, thaseb142,000 of unrecognized compensation caatiectto
unvested stock options. The Company recognized$92and $141,000 of stock based compensation expens
related to stock option grants in fiscal year 2808 2007, respectively.

The intrinsic value of the options exercised dufisgal year 2009 was not material. The intrinsatue of
options exercised during the fiscal years endede®aper 30, 2008 and 2007, was $6.3 million, and &llion,
respectively.

There was no intrinsic value of the outstanding exercisable options as of September 30, 2009 @@8.Zhe
aggregate intrinsic value of the outstanding aret@sgable options as of September 30, 2007 wa$$3#lion.

The average fair value of 18,000 options granteisoal 2007 was $28.75. The fair value was catedlaising
the Black Scholes method with a volatility of 36.384isk free interest rate of 4.94%, dividend ¢ief 0.47%, and
life as with all options, of 10 years.
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The following table summarizes information abow filans’ outstanding options as of September 309220

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Price Outstanding  Life (In Years) Price Exercisable Price
$0.810C- $ 2.875C 300,00( 1.C $ 26¢ 300,000 $ 2.6t
$2.8751- $ 5.750C 228,13: 6.€ 3.7¢ 152,14: 4.1¢
$5.7501- $ 8.625C 12,00( 2.1 5.9¢ 12,00( 5.9¢
$14.3751- $17.250( 218,61: 4.2 15.0¢ 218,61: 15.0¢
$17.2501- $20.125( 382,16( 5.C 18.2 382,16( 18.2
$25.8751- $28.750( 17,00( 7.2 28.7¢ 17,00( 28.7¢
1,157,90! 41 $ 10.7¢ 1,081,91. $ 11.31

The following table summarizes information abowgtrieted stock transactions:

Weighted Weighted

Year Ended Average Year Ended Average

September 30, 200 Grant Date September 30, 200 Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Unvested at the beginning of peri 80,667 $ 22.2¢ 4533: $ 28.7¢
Awards grantet 0 0.0C 58,00( 19.7:
Vested (40,99%) 24.2¢ (22,666 28.7¢
Forfeited (4,339 21.81 0 0.0C
Unvested at the end of peri 35,33t $ 19.7: 80,667 $ 22.2¢

The Company recognized $820,000, $921,000 and 890@f compensation expense during the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respgcthseof September 30, 2009, there was $382,000 of
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesstdcted stock.

The Company recognized a total of $984,000, $1(0Band $1,140,000 in compensation expense fdiste
years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and 200&ctasly, for the stock options and restricted ktgrants. As o
September 30, 2009, there was a total of $524,008re@cognized compensation cost related to unsesttek
options and restricted stock grants. The method tesealculate stock based compensation is thightriine pro-
rated method.

NoTE J —STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Coymgeclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating
$1,142,000, which includes $0.02 per share, perteaf which $286,000 was accrued as of Septe®beP009
and paid November 2, 2009.

During the year ended September 30, 2008, the Coymgeclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating
$2,270,000 which includes $0.04 per share, pertguaf which $571,000 was accrued as of Septe@®e2008
and paid November 3, 2008. During the year end@deSeer 30, 2007, the Company declared quartegly ca
dividends aggregating $2,221,000 which include®4@er share, per quarter, of which $557,000 wariad as of
September 30, 2007 and paid November 1, 2007.
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The Company expects to pay a regular cash dividehdure quarters, but the amount has not yet been
determined. This will be at the discretion of tleaitd of directors and will depend upon the Compafigiancial
condition, operating results, capital requirememtg any other factors the board of directors deehesant. In
addition, agreements with the Company’s lenders, finragn time to time, restrict the ability to paywalends. As of
September 30, 2009, there were no such restrictions

NoTE K —RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) Retirement Planriogall of its eligible employees. Matching cobttions
made by the employees to the plan are made aigbeetion of the board of directors each plan y€antributions
for the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 &bid\26re $74,000, $121,000 and $117,000, respegtivel

NoTE L — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB ASC 718, Compensation — Stock CompensatidkSC 718"), requires disclosure of fair value
information about financial instruments, whethenot recognized on the balance sheet, for whighptacticable ti
estimate that value. Because there are a limitetbeu of market participants for certain of the Camys assets
and liabilities, fair value estimates are basedjpdgments regarding credit risk, investor exp@ateof economic
conditions, normal cost of administration and ottig characteristics, including interest rate anepayment risk.
These estimates are subjective in nature and ipuaheertainties and matters of judgment, whichiaamtly affect
the estimates.

The carrying value of consumer receivables acqudwetiquidation was $208,261,000 at September2809.
The Company computed the fair value of the consusmaivables acquired for liquidation using itsefmaisting
model and the fair value approximated $277,000400®eptember 30, 2009.

The carrying value of debt and subordinated dedatgd party) was $130,868,000 and $221,731,000 at
September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Theritafd these loan balances are variable rate aod-germ,
therefore, the carrying amounts approximate fainea

NoTE M —RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

On April 29, 2008, the Company obtained a subotdthéoan pursuant to a subordinated promissory fnote
the Family Entity. The loan is in the aggregategpal amount of approximately $8.2 million, besrterest at a ra
of 6.25% per annum, is payable interest only eagrtgr until its maturity date of January 9, 20dhject to prior
repayment in full of the Company’s senior loan ligciwith the Bank Group. In December 2009 the pissary
note’s maturity date was extended to December @10 2and the interest rate was changed to 10%nmema. See
Note C- Subsequent Events.
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NoTE N —SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2009
Total revenus $ 18,448,000 $18,126,00 $17,238,00 $ 16,478,000 $ 70,290,00
(Loss) income before income ta>  (13,147,00) (8,674,00) 2,491,001 (128,182,00) (147,512,00)
Net (loss) incomi (7,837,000 (5,168,00) 1,478,00! (79,198,00) (90,725,00)
Basic net (loss) income per shi  $ (0.55) $ (0.3¢) $ 0.1C $ (5.55) $ (6.36)
Diluted net (loss) income per shi $ (0.5%) $ (0.3¢) $ 0.1C $ (5.55) $ (6.3€)
2008
Total revenue $ 34,275,000 $33,882,00 $23,572,00 $ 23,766,000 $ 115,495,00
Income (loss) before income tay 22,452,000 (12,954,00) 4,102,00 1,348,00! 14,948,00
Net income (loss 13,314,00  (7,707,00) 2,440,00 782,00( 8,829,001
Basic net income (loss) per shi  $ 0.9¢ $ (0.59) $ 0.17 $ 0.0t $ 0.62
Diluted net income (loss) per shi $ 0.9C $ (0.59 % 017 $ 0.0t $ 0.61

* Due to rounding the sum of quarterly totals fom@ags per share may not add to the yearly t

A significant portion of the $183.5 million of impeents recorded in fiscal year 2009, $137.0 millivere
recorded in the fourth quarter . Historically, mayithrough the year and into the fourth quarteltections tend to
be stable or perhaps increase in performance. Ptinis fiscal year, collections increased sliglithym the second
quarter to the third quarter, and given histortoahds, our expectation was to have a stable fayrénter with
regard to collections. However, we were not ablsustain that trend and fourth quarter collectiwese lower by
approximately 20% as compared to the third quaftéiscal year 2009. Subsequent internal and eatdorecast
models confirmed the trend seen in the fourth g@ua@ur impairment analysis indicated the amoriiraschedules
established at the time of the acquisition of thpacted portfolios were not in line with the ecompoonditions in
which we currently operate. Continued economiclehgkes in the fourth quarter, such as the peakirigeo
unemployment rate and conditions at a significantiser, which ultimately led to a bankruptcy fiinhave
impacted the Company’s performance in the fourtirgu. As such we concluded that the significargainments
were properly recorded in the fourth quarter ofdisyear 2009.

NoTE O —SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On December 14, 2009, Asta Funding, Inc. and itsisliaries other than Palisades XVI, entered imewa
revolving credit agreement with Bank Leumi, whigrmits maximum principal advances of up to $6 williThe
term of the agreement is through December 31, ZDli@.interest rate is a floating rate equal toBaak Leumi
Reference Rate plus 2%, with a floor of 4.5%. Theent rate is 5.5%. The loan is secured by catiteonsisting
of all of the assets of the Company except thodatifades XVI. In addition, other collateral fbetloan consists
a pledge by GMS Family Investors, LLC, an entityn@d by members of the Stern family. On Decembe0@9
approximately $3.6 million of the Bank Leumi crelitite was drawn and used to pay off in full the aémng
balance on the credit facility the Company formérhd with the Bank Group with IDB as agent.
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NOTE O —SuBSEQUENT EVENTS — (CONTINUED )

On December 11, 2009, the Compensation CommittdeedBoard of Directors of the Company, granted
25,000 stock options to each director of the Compmsiher than the chief executive officer, for ataif 150,000
stock options and 8,900 stock options to full tiemeployees of the Company, who have been employte at
Company for at least six months prior to Decemler2D09. The grants to employees exclude officktben
Company. The exercise price of these options wakr$he fair market value on the date of grant.

In December 2009, the subordinated debt third paaturity date was extended from January 9, 2010 to
December 31, 2010. Additionally, the interest rages changed to 10% per annum from 6.25% per annum.

The Company evaluated its September 30, 2009 fiabstatements for subsequent events through
December 29, 2009.
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EXHIBIT 10.32

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

THIS INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT  (“ Agreement’) is made and entered into as of this y ofa
December, 2009 bSTA FUNDING, INC., a Delaware corporation (* Astain favor of GMS FAMILY
INVESTORS LLC , a Delaware limited liability company (* GM3$and JUDITH R. FEDER (* Feder”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to a certain Revolving Promissory Notewan date herewith Bank Leumi USA (*
Lender”) has made a loan to Asta in the original prin€gr@ount of Six Million and 00/100 ($6,000,000) o
(the “ Loan”); and

WHEREAS, as an inducement to Lender to make the Loan to, Astader requested that GMS enter into
(i) that certain Guaranty of even date herewitthviénder (the ” Guaranty, (ii) that certain Account Control
Agreement with the Lender and UBS Financial Sesvice. (the “ Account Control Agreemenf and (iii) that
certain Pledge Agreement (the “ Pledge Agreerf)eintfavor of the Lender pursuant to which GMS igged Lender
a security interest in all of its rights, title aimerest in and to the Pledged Collateral (asnaefiin the Pledge
Agreement); and

WHEREAS , to induce GMS to enter into the Guaranty, thediet Control Agreement and the Pledge
Agreement, and to be bound by the terms thered§ Aas agreed to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing premises, ardther good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of whikhereby acknowledged, Asta hereby agrees asneil

1. Indemnification. Asta hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hatthless GMS and Feder and tl
respective members, managers, officers, directonployees, agents, heirs, executors, successarasdigns
(each an “Indemnified Party”) from all costs, demsyrclaims, liabilities, actions or causes of attiaterests,
penalties, damages, expenses, judgments or lasskgl{ng reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses)
(collectively, “Losses”) arising out of, in connext with, or in any way related to the Loan, thea@Gnty, the
Account Control Agreement and the Pledge Agreenieciyding without limitation, any Losses incurreg an
Indemnified Party as a result of the foreclosureeider’s security interest on the Pledged Colidt@wvith the
value of the securities held by the Pledged Accdasidefined in the Pledge Agreement) determinexf tee
date hereof).

2. Payment of ExpensesAsta agrees that it shall pay, within five (5yslafter written demand, all
out-of-pocket fees, costs and expenses incurrg@ddg or Feder in connection with the Guaranty, tleedunt
Control Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, this Agies® or any other documents executed or delivered i
connection therewith or herewith, including, withdimitation, all recording fees, filing fees aneasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses.

3. Fee. Simultaneously with the execution of this Agream@ésta shall pay GMS the sum of one
hundred sixty thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($160,@8@ fully earned, non-refundable fee in consitien of
GMS'’ entry into the Guaranty, the Account Contr@gréement and the Pledge Agreement.

4. Miscellaneous

(a) Binding Effect This Agreement shall be binding upon Asta anduixcessors and assigns (including
any transferee of all or substantially all of issets and any successor by merger or otherwispdnation of
law), and shall inure to the benefit of GMS andéteathd their respective heirs, successors andnassig

(b) Modification and Waiver No alterations or variations of the terms andvigions of this Agreement
shall be valid unless made in writing and signed\bia, GMS and Feder or their successors or pethitt
assigns.

(c) Governing Law and Jurisdiction This Agreement shall be governed and controletbavalidity,
enforcement, interpretation, construction, effew & all other respects by the internal laws ef $tate of Nev
York applicable to contracts made therein, withagfard to rules of conflicts of law.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Indemnification Agreement is executed anldvdeed as of the day and year
first above written.

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

By: /s/ Gary Ster

Name: Gary Stern
Title:  Presiden
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Exhibit 14.1

CODE OF ETHICS
FOR
SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS

SecTioN 1. PURPOSE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Asta Funglinnc. (the “Company”has adopted the following Code
Ethics (the “Code”) to apply to the Company’s Chigdecutive Officer; Chief Financial Officer; Chiétcounting
Officer; Controller; and Treasurer (the “Senior &igial Officers”). This Code is intended to foclen®r Financial
Officers on areas of ethical risk, provide guidatalelp them recognize and deal with ethical isspeovide
mechanisms to report unethical conduct, fosterdtamuof honesty and accountability, deter wrongdoand
promote fair and accurate disclosure and finamejbrting.

No code or policy can anticipate every situaticat thhay arise. Accordingly, this Code is intendeddove as a
source of guiding principles. Senior Financial ©dfis are encouraged to bring questions about platic
circumstances that may involve one or more of tlawipions of this Code to the attention of the Clodithe Audit
Committee, who may consult with inside or outsigigall counsel as appropriate.

SeEcTiON 2. INTRODUCTION

Each Senior Financial Officer is expected to adie e high standard of ethical conduct. The goadenaf the
Company depends on the way Senior Financial Officenduct business and the way the public percéinas
conduct. Unethical actions, or the appearance ethical actions, are not acceptable. Senior Fisdfficers are
expected to be guided by the following principlesarrying out their responsibilities.

* Loyalty. Senior Financial Officers should not be, or appede, subject to influences, interests or
relationships that conflict with the best interestshe Company

» Compliance with Applicable LawsSenior Financial Officers are expected to comyilty all laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Comp’s activities.

» Observance of Ethical StandardsSenior Financial Officers must adhere to highcathstandards in the
conduct of their duties. These include honestyfairdess.

SecTion 3. INTEGRITY OF RECORDS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING.

Senior Financial Officers are responsible for tbeuaate and reliable preparation and maintenantieeof
Companys financial records. Accurate and reliable prepamadf financial records is of critical importanteprope
management decisions and the fulfillment of the Gany’s financial, legal and reporting obligatioBsligence in
accurately preparing and maintaining the Comparecsrds allows the Company to fulfill its reportiagligations
and to provide stockholders, governmental auttesritind the general public with full, fair, accurgimely and
understandable disclosure. Senior Financial Offieee responsible for establishing and maintaiatepuate
disclosure controls and procedures, and internaiols and procedures, including procedures tretlasigned to
enable the Company to: (a) accurately documengandunt for transactions on the books and recdrtso
Company; and (b) maintain reports, vouchers, billgices, payroll and service records, businesasmement and
performance records and other essential data warth @and honesty.

Senior Financial Officers shall immediately brimgthe attention of the Audit Committee any inforioatthey
may have concerning:

(a) Defects, deficiencies, or discrepancies reltddtie design or operation of internal controlschhmay
affect the Company’s ability to accurately recqhcess, summarize, report and disclose its firgdudeita or

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have rotas in
Company’s financial reporting, disclosures or insdrcontrols.
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SecTioN 4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Senior Financial Officers must avoid any conflicfsnterest between themselves and the Company. Any
situation that involves, or may involve, a confladtinterest with the Company, should be disclgsexmptly to the
Chair of the Audit Committee, who may consult witkide or outside legal counsel as appropriate.

A “conflict of interest” can occur when an indivialis personal interest is adverse to — or may apteehe
adverse to — the interests of the Company as aewkianflicts of interest also arise when an indieild or a
member of his or her family, receives improper pesas benefits as a result of his or her positiothwhe Company.

This Code does not attempt to describe all possitdlicts of interest which could develop. Sometef more
common conflicts from which Senior Financial Offisenust refrain, however, are set forth below:

* Improper conducnot engage in any conduct or activities that acemsistent with the Company’s best
interests or that disrupt or impair the Companglationship with any person or entity with whicleth
Company has, or proposes to enter into, a busaressntractual relationshi

« Compensation from non-Company source&enior Financial Officers may not accept compgosdor
services performed for the Company from any soather than the Company. Senior Financial Officers
should obtain the approval of the Audit Committeierto accepting any paid employment or consulting
position with another entity

« Gifts. Senior Financial Officers and members of theimiadiate families may not accept gifts from persons

or entities where any such gift is being made geoto influence their actions in their positiortiwihe
Company, or where acceptance of the gifts couldterthe appearance of a conflict of inter

« Personal use of Company ass:' Senior Financial Officers may not use Compangt@ss$abor or
information for personal use, other than incideptakonal use, unless approved by the Chair oAtlulit
Committee or as part of a compensation or expeisgdursement prograr

« Financial Interests in other Business Senior Financial Officers should avoid havingoamership interest
in any other enterprises, such as a customer, isugplcompetitor, if that interest compromises dffficer’s
loyalty to the Company

SectioN5. CORPORATE OPPORTUNITIE

Senior Financial Officers are prohibited from: {@}ing for themselves personally opportunitiestegldo the
Company’s business without first presenting thqgeootunities to the Company and obtaining apprénaah the
Board; (b) using the Company'’s property, informafior position for personal gain; or (c) competivith the
Company for business opportunities.

SecTioN 6. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Senior Financial Officers should maintain the cdefitiality of information entrusted to them by thempany
and any other confidential information about ther(any, its business or finances, customers or mrpghat
comes to them, from whatever source, except whastadiure is authorized or legally mandated. Foppses of thi
Code, “confidential information” includes all nomHglic information relating to the Company, its mess or
finances, customers or suppliers.

Section 7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIO

Senior Financial Officers shall comply with lawslas and regulations applicable to the Companyuidticg
insider trading laws, and all other Company poficieransactions in Company securities are govelogate
Company’s Insider Trading Policy.
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SectioN 8. ENCOURAGING THE REPORTING OF ANY ILLEGAL OR UNETAIBGEHAVIOR

Senior Financial Officers must promote ethical h@raand create a culture of ethical complianceni&@e
Financial Officers should foster an environmentvirich the Company: (a) encourages employees tddalk
supervisors, managers and other appropriate pegbasen in doubt about the best course of acticparticular
situation; (b) encourages employees to report tiaia of laws, rules and regulations to appropreesonnel; and
(c) informs employees that the Company will nobwallretaliation for reports made in good faith.

SectioNn9. CONCLUSION

Senior Financial Officers should communicate arspsgated violations of this Code promptly to the iCba
the Audit Committee. The Board or a person or pessiesignated by the Board will investigate violas, and
appropriate disciplinary action will be taken by tBoard in the event of any violation of the Cageto and
including termination. Only the Audit Committee mgsant any waivers of this policy.
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Subsidiary Companies

Name

Asta Funding, Inc.

Asta Funding Acquisition I, LL(
Asta Funding Acquisition I, LLC
Asta Funding Acquisition IV, LLC
Asta Commercial, LLC

Asta Funding.com, LL(
Palisades Acquisition I, LL(
Palisades Acquisition Il, LL(
Palisades Acquisition 1V, LL(
Computer Finance, LL!
Palisades Collection, LL!
Palisades Acquisition V, LL(
Palisades Acquisition VI, LL(
Palisades Acquisition VII, LL(
Palisades Acquisition VIII, LLC
Option Card, LLC

Palisades Acquisition 1X, LL(
VATIV Recovery Solutions LLC
Palisades Acquisition X, LL(
Cliffs Portfolio Acquisition |, LLC
Sylvan Acquisition I. LLC
Citizens Lending Group LL(
Palisades Acquisition XI LL(
Palisades Acquisition XII LL(
Palisades Acquisition XIII LLC
Palisades Acquisition XIV LL(
Palisades Acquisition XV LL(
Palisades Acquisition XVI LLC
Palisades Acquisition XVII LLC
Palisades Acquisition XVIII LLC
Brook Mays Joint Ventur
Ventura Services LL(
Palisades XIl Do Brasil Gesto Financeira L
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Jurisdiction Under Percentage
Which Organized Owned
Delaware
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Colorado 100
Delaware 100
Texas 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Delaware 100
Massachusett 25
Delaware 100
Brazil 99.9

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated December 29, @i09espect to the consolidated financial stateimand
internal control over financial reporting includiedthe Annual Report of Asta Funding, Inc. on Fdr@K for the
year ended September 30, 2009. We hereby constre tncorporation by reference of said reporthe
Registration Statements of Asta Funding, Inc. omsoS-8 (File No. 333-142201, effective April 1802, File
No. 33399911, effective September 20, 2002, and File388-38836, effective June 8, 2000).

/sl Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
December 29, 2009
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Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdlggstration statements (No. 333-142201, No. 33319 and

No. 33:-38836) on Form S-8 of Asta Funding, Inc. of oyyart dated December 27, 2007 with respect to odit au
of the consolidated statements of operations, stalders’ equity and cash flows for the year endegt&nber 30,
2007, which report appears in the September 30 266ual report on Form 10-K of Asta Funding, Inc.

/sl Eisner LLP

New York, New York
December 29, 2009
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Gary Stern, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floivthe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjadnd

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal canitover financial reporting.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Stern
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeufifficer
(Principal Executive Officer)

December 29, 2009

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 302 has been provided to the Compadynall
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8&s and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Robert J. Michel, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floivthe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actdédul 3a-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentenisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjadnd

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal canitover financial reporting.

/s/ Robert J. Michel

Robert J. Michel
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

December 29, 2009

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 302 has been provided to the Compadynall
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8&s and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimce. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadag
September 30, 2009 as filed with the SecuritiesEx@hange Commission (the “Report”), I, Gary St&hijef
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant téoBed@6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the consoliiate

financial condition of the company as of the daessented and the consolidated result of operatibtise
Company for the periods presented.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Stern
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: December 29, 2009

This certification has been furnished solely puréua Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2802 is
not being filed as part of the 10-K as a separmseakure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynall
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8ms and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimce. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadag
September 30, 2009 as filed with the SecuritiesEx@hange Commission (the “Report”), |, Robert ictiv|, Chief

Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémil8 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant teocBex@6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the consoliiate

financial condition of the Company as of the dawessented and the consolidated result of operatibtise
Company for the periods presented.

/s/ Robert J. Michel

Robert J. Michel
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: December 29, 2009

This certification has been furnished solely puréua Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2802 is
not being filed as part of the 10-K as a separmseakure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynall
be retained by the Company and furnished to ther8ms and Exchange Commission or its staff pquest.
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